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JolNT sTocK соммЕRсlдL влNк'гURоNвАNrдlчD ,Б sUBslDlдRY

SТДТЕМЕNТ ОF МДIЧДGЕМЕNГS RESPONSIBILlTlES FОR ТНЕ РRЕРДRДТЛОN ДND ДРРRОЧДL ОF ТНЕ
coNsoLlDATED FlNдNclAL sтдтЕмЕNБ FоR тнЕ YЕдR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2о22

Management of Jojnt Stock commercial Bank "Turonbank" is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that рrеsепt fairly the financial position of Joint Stock Соmmеrсiаl Bank "ТUrопЬапk" ("the
Bank") and jts sUbsidiary (collectively - "the Grочр") as at З1 December 2022 and the related consolidated
statement of profit оr loss and other соmрrеhепSiче income, changes in equity and cash flows for the уеаr then
ended, and of si8nificant accountin8 policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements (the
"con5olidated fjnancial statements") in compliance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("ltRS").

lп рrераriпg the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

. Properly selecting and аррlуiпg accounting policies;

. Presentin8 information, including accountin8 policies, in а mаппеr that provides relevant, rеliаЬlе,
соmраrаЬlе and u nderstanda ble information;

о providin8 additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in lFRss аrе insufficient
to епаьIе users to understand the impact of particular transactions, оthеr events and conditions оп the
Group's financial position and financial реrfоrmапсе; and

. Makin8 ап assessment of the Group's ability to continUe as а going сопсеrп.

Мапаgеmепt is also responsible fоr:

о Designing, implementin8 апd maintaining ап effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout
the Grоч р;

, Maintaining adequate accounting records that аrе sufficient to ShoW and ехрlаiп the Grочр'S trапsасtiопs
and disclose with rеаsопаые accuracy at any time the consolidated financial position of the Group, and
which епаЬlе them to епSurе that the consolidated financjal Statements of the Group comply With ltRS;, Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with le8islation and accounting standards of the
Republic of Uzbekistan;

. Takin8 such Steps aS are rеаsопаЬlу available to them to safeguard the assets of the Grоuр; and. Preventing and detecting fraud and other irre8ularities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Grou р fоr the year ended 31 December 2О22 Wеrе approved Ьу the
Management of the Group оп 26 JUne 2О23.

Оп behalf of the Мапаgеmепt Board:
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lNDEPENDENT AUDlToR'S REPoRT

то the shareholders and the сочпсil of ,'oint Stock commercial Bank "тurопьапk"

opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial 5tatements of Joint Stock Соmmеrсiаl Вап k "ТчrопЬап k" (hereinafter
- "the Bank") and its subsidiary ("the Group"), Which comprise the consoljdated statement offinancial position as
at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit оr loss апd оthеr comprehensive income,
consolidated Statement of changes in equity and the consolidated Statement of cash flows for the уеаr then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 5tatement5, including а su mmа ry of significa nt accoU ntin8 policies.

lп оUr opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial posjtion of the Group as at З], December 2О22 апd its consolidated financial реrfоrmапсе
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in ассоrdапсе With lnternational Fiпапсiаl Rероrtiпg
Standards ("lERSs").

Basis fоr Opinion

We conducted оur audit jn accordance With lnternational Standards оп Auditing ("lSAs"). Оur геs ponsibjlitjes
under those standards аrе furthеr described in the дUditоrЗ Responsibilities |оr the дudit of the consolidoted
Finonciol stotements section of ou r rерогt. we аrе independent of the Group iп accorda псе with the lnternational
Eth ics Sta n da rds Воа rd for Accou nt апls' Code oI Eth ics for Р rofessionol Дссоu nto nts (th е "lES ВД Code" ) together
with the ethical requirements that аrе relevant to оur audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Republic of uzbekistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities iп accordance with these
requirements and the lESBA code. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide а basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter

we draw attention to Notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the поп-
соmрliапсе With сегtаiп financial covenants of the Group's long-term lоап agreements set Ьу various
international fjnancial institutions and to Note б to the consolidated financial statements which describes the
restatement of corresponding figures for the year ended З1 December 2о21. our opinion js not modified in
respect of these matters,

Кеу Audit МаttеБ

кеу audit matters are those matters that, in оur professional ,iudgment, wеrе of most significance in оur audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the сurrепt period. These matters were addressed in the context of оur
audit of the consolidated financial statements as а whole, and in forming our орiпiоп thereon, and we do not
provide а separate opinio п th е TS

Tur8unboy Tokhirov, Qual uditor/Engagement Director

щ d.ioitt.,.oml.bout io l..h mо..

o 'D.loitt. & тщhе'Audit ora.niz.ton ttc, All nghts ..*fo.d.
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Why the matter Was determined to Ье а key

audit matter
How the matter was addressed in the audit

Collective ossessment of the expected credit
losses оп loons опd оdчопсеs to customers

As at З1 December 2022, grоss loans and
advances to customers rерrеsепt UZS7,07З,521
million, net of allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECL") of UZS 658,967 million assessed
оп а collective basis.

We obtained an understanding of processes and

control procedures related to the lоап origination,
credit risk management and ECL assessment for
loans and advances to customers, assessed оп а

collective basis.

Fоr loans assessed on а collective basis, there is
а risk of еrrоrs in the underlying data used in
assessment of the ECL, including errors iп lоап
data, inaccurate оr incomplete inputs and
assumptions Used in assessing probability of
default (PD) and loss given default data (LGD).

Due to the significance and sub.jectivity of
judgements used Ьу management of the Group
and the volume of lоапs assessed оп а collective
basis, We identified the aSSessment of expected
credit losses, particularly the assessment of the
probability of default and а loss given default as
а key aud it matter,

Rеfеr to Notes 3, 10 and 26 to the consolidated
financial Statements for the GroUp's accoUnting
policy and disclosures of gross carrying amounts
and related allowa nces balances,

We challenged the reasonableness of the
methodology on collective lоап loss provisioning and
its compliance With ltRS 9 Financial lnstruments
requirements.

We checked that the data inputs and key
assumptions used iп the models for assessing PDs
and LGDs reflect historical information about
incu rrеd credit losses.

With the involvement of очr credit risk advisory
Specialists, We tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the EcL on loans to customers
assessed оп а collective basis Ьу rе-регfоrmiпg and
calculating elements of the expected credit losses
based on relevant source data. This included
assessing the appropriateness of model design and
formulas used, considering modelling techniques
and recalculating PDs, LGDs and Exposure at default
("EAD").

Оп а sample basis, we tested the accuracy and
completeness of Statistics for recoveries of loans
used in the EcL models and traced back this
information to source data.

We eva|uated the ассчrасу and completeness of the
notes disclosed in the consolidated financaal
Statements relatin8 to the loans and advances to
customers in ассоrdапсе With ltRS 9 requjrements.

Turgunboy Tokhirov, Qualif ied tor/Епgа8еmепt Director
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lndividuol ossessment of the expected credit losses

оп lоопs опd оdvопсеs to customers

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's gross loans
assessed for impairment оп an individual basis

amounted lo |JZs 2,957,2-]З million, net of
allowance fоr expected credit losses ("ECL") of
UZS 51,081 million.

The amount of allowances fоr the EcL оп

individually significant lоапs is dependent on the
ассUrасу of allocation of loans to appropriate
stage of impairment in the provisioning system of
the Group.

Due to the significance of the gross саrryiпg
amount of individually assessed loans and the
complexity and subjectivity of management's

.judgements, We identified the individual
assessment of ECL as а key audit matter.

Refer to Notes З, 10 and 26 to the consolidated
financial Statements fоr the description of
impairment indicators оп individually significant
loans and disclosure of gross саrryiпg amounts
and related allowances for loans.

We obtained an understanding of the lоап origination
and credit riSk management proceSseS.

We assessed the Group's definitions of significant
increase in credit risk and credit-im pairment for
assessment of individual loans'EcL. we also evaluated
the design and implementation of controlS related to
individual assessment of the EcL on lоапs to customers.

Fоr а sample of loans, we performed а detailed credit
review and challenged the Group's analysis of whether
there was а significant iпсrеаsе in credit risk (stage 2) оr
default (stage 3). lп оrdеr to evaluate whether the loans
have Ьееп appropriately classified to the respective
stage, We analysed internal credit ratingS (financial

rating), credit risk factors and checked if rеiечапt
impairment events, Such as delinquency of interest or

рriпсiраl, restructUring events and сеrtаiп financial

регfоrmапсе indicators had been identified оп а timely
man ner.

on а sample basis, We rе-регfоrmеd calculations of
allowances for ECL for individually significant loans in

stage 3, including reviewing the Group's documented
credit assessment of the Ьоrrоwеrs, challenging
assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as the
valuation of collateral held, cost and time to sell the
collateral under various probability-Weighted scenarios
agreeing key assumptions to SUррогtiпg documents.

We evaluated the adequacy and completeness of
disclosures in the consoiidated financial statements
relating to the loanS to customers in ассоrdапсе With

ltRS reqUirements.

other lnformation -Аппчаl Report

Mana8ement is responsible for the оthеr information. Тhе other information comprises the information included
in the AnnUal rероrt, bUt does not inclUde the consolidated fina ncial statements and oU r auditor'S rерогt thereon.
The Аппчаl rероrt is expected to Ье made available to us аftеr the date of this auditor'S rероrt.

our opinion оп the consolidated financial statements does not сочеr the other information and we will not
express апу form of assuranc оп US lo теоп

ТUrg unboy Tokhirov, Qualifi

е

ditor/Engagement Director

lп раrtiсu|аr, thеrе iS а risk that ехроsчrеS With

significant increase in credit risk апd credit-
impaired exposures (movements between stage 1,

Stage 2 and stage 3) аrе not completely or
accurately identified/classified as at the rероrtiпg
date, as not all relevant qualitative and
q uantitative information WaS captured.

Additionally, the ECL on individually significant
credit-impaired loans in stage З may Ье misstated
due to еrrоrs related to the estimation of future
cash receapts from the sale of collateral оr use of
inappropriate or u nsupported information.
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ln connection With оUr audit of the consolidated financial statements, очr responsibility is to read the other
information identified а bove when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent With the consolidated financial statements оr our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwjse appears to Ье materially misstated.

When we read the Аппuаl rероrt, if We conclude that there is а material misstatement thеrеiп, we аrе required
to communicate the matter to those charged With gоVеrпапсе.

Responsibilities of Мапаgеmепt апd Those Сhацеd with Gочеrпапсе fоr the Consolidated Financial Statemenв

Management is responsible for the рrераrаtiоп and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
ассоrdапсе with lnternational Financial Rероrtiпв Standards ("lFRSs"), and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to епаЬlе the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud оr еrrоr.

lп рrераriпg the consolidated financial statements, mапаgеmепt is responsible for aSsessin8 the Group's ability
to continUe as а gоiпg concern, disclosing, as applicable, matter5 related to goin8 сопсеrп and using the going
сопсеrп basis of accountinB unless management either intends to liquidate the GroUp оr to cease operations,
оr has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with gочеrпапсе аrе responsible for overseeing the Group's financial rерогtiпg process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Fiпапсiаl Statements

oUr objectives аrе to obtain reasonabie assuTance about whether the consolidated financial statements aS а
whole аrе frее frоm material misstatement, Whether due to fraud оr еrrоr, and to issue ап auditor's rероrt that
includes очr opinion. Reasonable assurance is а high level of assurance, but iS not а guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance With lSAs will always detect а material misstatement When it exists. Misstatements сап
arise from fraud or еrrоr and аrе considered material if, individually оr in the аggrеgаtе, they could rеаsопаЬlу
Ье expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
5tatements.

As раrt of ап aUdit iп accordance with lSAs, We eХercise professional ,judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throu8hout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoIidated financial Statements, Whether
due to fraud or еrrоr, design and реrfоrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide а basis for оUr opinjon. The risk of not detecting а

material misstatement resultjng from fraud is higher than for опе resulting from еrrоr, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, оr the override of internal control.
obtain ап understandin8 of internal control rеlечапt to the audit in оrdеr to design audit procedures that
are appropriate iп the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
EvalUate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made Ьу mапа8ement.

Turgunboy Tokhirov, Qual jfied Audit n8a8ement Director
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We commUnicate Wjth those сhаrgеd With gочеrпапсе regarding, аmопg other matterS, the planned scope and
timing of the aUdit and significant audit findings, including апу signifjcant deficiencies in internal сопtrоl that We
identify during our audit.

We also provide those сhаr8еd With 8очеrпапсе With а statement that we have complied With rеlечапt ethical
requirements rеgаrdiпg independence, and to communicate With them аll relationships апd other matters that
mау rеаsопаЬlу Ье thought to bear оп our independence, and whеrе applicable, related safeguards,

Report of findings from procedures реrfоrmеd iп ассоrdапсе with the rеquirеmепь of Law of the Republic of
Uzbekistan No. LRU-580 dated 5 November 2019 "Оп Banks and 8ankin8 Activiv'

Management of the Grоuр is responsible fоr the Bank's compliance with prudential ratios set Ьу the Сепtrаl bank
of the Republic of Uzbekistan ("Central bank") and ensuring that internal сопtrоl and organization of risk
mапаgёmепt systems comply with Central bank requirements.

ln accordance with Articles 74 of LaW of the RepUblic of Uzbekistan No. LRU-580 dated 5 November 2О19 "оп
Banks and Banking Activity" (the "Law"), we have реrfоrmеd procedures to check:

- the Bank's compliance With prudential ratios as at 31 December 2022 set Ьу the Сёпtrаl bank;

- Whether the elements of the Bank's internal control and organization of risk management systems
comply with Сепtrаl Ьапk requirements,

These procedures Wеrе selected based on oUr judgment, and were limited to а п analysis and study of documents;
а comparison of the Bank's approved requirements, procedures and methodologies with Сепtrаl bank
requirements, as well as recalculationS, comparisons and reconciliations of пumеriсаl data and оthеr information.

Turgu пЬоу Tokhirov, QUalified Au Епgаgеmепt Dirесtоr

Сопсludе on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going сопсеrп basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, Whether а material Uncertainty ёхists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue aS а 8оiпg сопсеrп. lf We conclude that а

mаtеriаl чпсеrtаiпtу eХists, we are required to draw attention in оUr auditor'S rероrt to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial Statements оr, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opjnion. Очr conclusions аге based оп the audit evidence obtained up to the date of очr auditor'S rероrt.
НоWечеr, future events оr conditions may cause the Grоuр to cease to continue as а gojng сопсеrп.
Evaluate the overall presentation, Structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the diSclosures, and whether the consolidated financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in а mаппеr that achieves fair presentation.

trоm the matters commUnicated With those charged with governance, we determine thoSe matterS that Were of
most Significance in the audit of the consolidated financial Statements of the current period, and аrе therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matter5 in our auditor's rероrt unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or Whеп, in extremely rаrе circumstances, We determine that а matter should not
Ье communicated in our rероrt because the adverse consequences of doing so would rеаsопаЬlу Ье expected to
outweigh the pUblic interest benefits of such communication.
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Based on оur procedures with rеSресt to the Bank's compliance With prudential ratios set Ьу the central bank, we
found that the Bank'S prudential ratios, as at З]. DесеmЬеr 2022, Wеrе Within the limits set Ьу the Сепtrаl bank.

We have not реrfоrmеd апу procedures оп the underlying accounting data of the Bank, other than those which
we considered necessary to епаЬlе us to eХpress ап орiпiоп aS to Whether the Bank's consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the conSolidated fanancial position of the Bank aS at
З1 DесеmЬеr 2О22, апd its consolidated financial реrfоrmапсе and consolidated cash flows for the уеаr then
ended jп ассоrdапсе with IFRS.

Based оп our procedures with respect to Whether the elements of the Bank's internal сопtrоl and organization of
risk management system5 comply With central bank rеqчirеmепts, we found that:

4Ъi-*
Turgunboy Тоkhirоч, Qualified Au En8a8ement Dirесtоr

our findings from the procedures реrfоrmеd аrе as follows.

о in ассоrdапсе with Central bank reqUirements and recommendations, а5 at з1 December 2022, the Bank's
internal audit fUnction Was subordinated and accountable to the Supervisory Board, and the risk
manaвement function of the Bank Was not Subordinated and accountable to Subdivisions assumin8
correspond iпg riSkS;

. the frеquепсу of rероrts рrераrеd Ьу the Bank's internal audit function during 2022 complied with central
bank requirements. The rероrts wеrе approved Ьу the Bank's Sчрегчisоry Board and included
observations made Ьу the Bank's internal audit function iп respect of internal сопtrоl systems;

. as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022 the Bank has ап information security function in place as required Ьу the сепtrаl
bank, апd an information security policy was approved Ьу the Bank's Management Board, Тhе
information security function was subordinated to and reported directly to the Сhаirmап of the
Мапаgеmепt Board;

. Reports Ьу the Bank's jnformation security function to the сhаirmап of the Management Board durin8
2022 included ап assessment апd analysis of information security rjsks, and the results of actions to
manage such risks;

о the Bank's internaldocumentation, effective aS at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, which sets out methodolo8ies to
identify and mапаgе the Bank's significant risks, and carry out stress-testing, was approved Ьу the Bank's
authorised mапа8еmепt bodies in ассоrdапсе With Central bank requirements and recommendations;

. as at З1 December 2022, the Bank maintained а System for reporting оп the Bank's significant risks, and
оп the Ва nk's capital;

. the frequency during 2022 of reports рrераrеd Ьу the Bank's risk mana8ement functions, and which
соvеr the Group's management of signjficant risks, was in compliance with the Bank's internal
documentation, Those reports included observations made Ьу the Bank's risk mапаgеmепt functions as
to their assessment of the Group's significant risks, risk management system and recommendations for
improvementi

. as at 31 December 2022, the Supervisory Воаrd and Executive Mana8ement of the Bank had
responsibility to monitor the Bank's соmрliапсе With risk and capita l adequacy limits Set Ьу Ва nk internal
documentation. То exercise control очеr the effectiveness of Bank risk management рrосеdчrеs and
their consistent applicatjon during 2022, the SUpervisory Board and Executive Management of the Bank
rеgulаrlу discussed the rерогts рrераrеd Ьу the risk management and iпtеrпаl audit functions of the
Bank, and considered proposed measUres to eliminate WeaknesseS.
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Proced ures with respect to elements of the Ва п k's iпtеrпаl сопtrоl and оrgа nization of risk ma na8ement systemS

were регfоrmеd solely for the purpose of examini Whethеr these elements, as prescribed Ьу the Law and as

described above, comply with Central bank

"Deloitte & Touche" Audit organisation LLC is
included iп the Register of audit organisations of the
Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan
from 8 June 2021

26 J uпе 2023
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

Tu rgu пЬоу Tokhirov
Qualified Auditor/Engagement Director
Auditor qualification certificate authorizin8 audit of
companies, #05422 dated 20 Au8uSt 2016 issued Ьу

the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan

Auditor qualificatjon certificate authorizin8 audit of
banks, #6/11 dated 29 Магсh 2021 issued Ьу the
central bank of the RepUblic of Uzbekistan

Acting Director
"Deloitte & ToUche" Audit organisation LLc
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соNsоLlDдтЕD sтдтЕмЕNт оF FlNдNсlдL роsrпоN лS дт з1 DEаEMBER 2022
(iп milliопs of l)zbek Soums)

Notes
31 DесеmЬеr

2о22
31 DесеmЬеr

2021 (Reýtated)*

ASSEБ
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from оthеr banks
Debt securities of the Gочеrпmепt of the RepUblic of

uzbekistan at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customer5
FiпапсjаI assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Deferred income tax asset
Рrеmisеs, equipment and intangible aSsets
Right-of-use assets
other assets
Nоп-счrrепt assets held fоr sale

7,з0
8,з0

9,з0
10,з0

11
2з
t2
72

1з,30
t4

1,466,651
359,146

з70,486
9,з20,7 46

1,,254,954
424,885

354,606
8,27 4,6о5

25,о67
55,874

з16,704
].4,з61

14з,2з4

28,8з1
714,652
435,з з8
1з,292

244,з19
11з,з 26

ToTALýSпs 12,466,787 10,864,290

LlABlLlTlБ
Due to other banks
customer accounts
Debt securities in issue
Borrowings from government, state and international

financial institutions
Lease laabilities
other liabilities

15, з0
16,з0

].7,з0

t,251,52t
3,о02,27 4

6,7 ].9,504
14,047
55,487

9з7 ,614
2,551,642

|з,414

5,674,181
L4,92з
29,з46

ToTAL L|ABlLlTlES 11,и2,8зз 9,221,L2o

EQUlп
Share capital
Shаrе premium
Retained еаrпiпgs
Revaluation rеsегче of financial assets at fair value

through оthеr comprehensive income
other rеsеrче

19
19

1,486,810
279

(79,з 18)

1-6,24з

t,499,7об
279

1,45,676

1з,з 29

{15,760)1(а )

ToTAL ЕQUlп t,42з,gil 1,643,170

ToTAL L|ABlLlTlES AND ЕQUlп 72,466,787 10,864,290

*See Note б fог details

Approved for i е and signed on beha|f of the Mana8ement Board оп 26 June 2О2З.

Мiпаеч Almura
Chief untant

ullayevich
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J о l NT sTocK со м м Е Rcl дL вдN K'TU Ro N в дN к, дN D,Б sU8s/D/Aлy
CONSOL|DДTED SТДТЕМЕNТ ОF РRОFlТОЛ ДОSSАND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE \NCOME
FoRTHEYEAR ENDED з7 DEаEMBER 2022
(iп millions of Uzbek Soums, except for еоrпiпgs реr share which аrе iп lJzbek Soums)

Notes 2022 202L

lnterest income
lnterest expense

20,з0
20,30

1,073,400
(611,8з2)

838,71з
(490,91з)

NП lNТЕRЕSГ lNCOME BEFORE CRED|T LOSSES

Expected credit losses оп loans and
advances to customers

Gain on modification of financiaI assets

20

10,30 (500,516)

1I,77з
(150,210)

з,5].1

461,568 347,800

NET lNтЕRЕSг (LoSS)/ lNcoME
Fее and commission iпсоmе
Fее and commission expense
Fоrеigп exchange trапslаtiоп gain
Net gain frоm trading in foreign currencies
Dividend income
Other operating income, net
Other rесочеry/(imра irment) provision
lmpairment of assets held fог sale

21,з0
21,з0

26
t4

22,з0

(27,L75l

t25,74t
(27,704)

5,700
44,079
1,24з

2з,714
1,860

(4,626)

201,101

t22,488
(28,169)

2,6t9
18,04з

79L
10,5].2
(7,754)

Administrative and оthеr

(LoSS)/PRoFlT вЕFоRЕ тдх
lncome tax benefit / (expense)

enseS з82,464 294,425

2з
(2з9,632)

27,79з
25,206
(з,197)

(LoSS)/PRoF|T FoR тнЕ YEAR (211,839) 22,ф9
Total basic and
(expressed in

diluted (

UZS реr:

loss)/earnings реr ordinary shаrе
sh а rе) 24 (239) зб

10



Jо|NT sTocк соммЕRclлL вдNк *тURоNвдNI( АrчD rБsu8slDlдRY
CONSOL|DДTED SТДТЕМЕNТ OF PROF|T OR tОSSДrЧD OTHER COMPREHENS|VE |NCOME
FoRTHE YЕдR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2022 (coNTlNUED)
(iп milliопs of Uzbek Soums)

Notes 2022 2o2l

(LoSS)/PRoFlT FoR тнЕ YEAR (211,839) 22,009

Other comprehensive income

ltems thot will поt Ье reclossified subsequently to рrоfit оr
/oss;

Fаir value gain on financial assets at fair value through
оthеr comprehensive income

тах effect
з,642
(728)

OTHER COMPREHENS|VE INCOME 2,91,4

ToTAL coMPREHENSlvE (LoSs)/lNcoM Е (208,925) 22,009

Approved fоr issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board оп 26 June 2О2з.

Minaev
Cha Chief

llayevich

ýffi

The notes оп poges 15-101 |огm оп integrol роп о| these consolidoted fiпапсiоl stotements

11
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JolNT sTocK coMMERclдL вдNк'тURоNвдNI( дND lБ sUBslDtдRY
coNsoLlDдED sтдтЕМЕNт oF сндNGЕs tN EQU|TY FoR тнЕ YЕдR ENDED з1 DE1EMBER 2о22
(iп millions of uzbek soums)

Revaluation rеsеrче of
fiпапсiаl assets at fair

value through оthеr
Note Share capitaI

Share

рrеmiчm
Retained
еаrпiпgs

оthеr
rеsеrче Totalcomprehensive income

Nоп-сопtrоlliпg
interest Total equiý

31 December 2020 887,106 2l9 128,2з2 22,742 1,0з7,699 7t5 1,0з8,414
Profit fоr the уеаr 22,009 22,w 22,ф9
Total comprehensive iпсоmе
for 2о2| 22,009 22,009 22,009

shаrеs issued
Treasury shares
Dividends declared
тrапsfеr of investment
revaluation rеsеrче uроп
disposal of investments iп
equity inStruments deSignated
as at FWоСl, net of tax

Adjustment arising from
disposal of subsidiary and
investments iп equity
instruments designated as at
Fvтосl to the owner

612,600

(1з,з78)

612,600

(1з,378)(1з,з78)

8,81з (8,81з)1(а)

1(а) (15,760) (15,760) (715) (16,475)
31 DесеmЬеr 2021 1,499,706 2l9 145,676 1з,з29 (15,760) 1,643,170 1,64з,170
Loss for the уеаr (21 1,8з9) (211,8з9) (211,8з9)
Total comprehensive loss
for 2о22 (211,8з9) 2,9I4 (208,925) (208,925)

Redemption of shares
Dividends declared

19, 1(а)

19

(12,896) (2,864)
(10,291)

15,760
(10,291) (10,291)

31 DесеmЬеr 2022 1,186,810 219 (79,з18) t6,24з

Аррrочеd fоr and оп behalf of the Мап agement Воаrd on 26 June 2023

Mizaev k

t,42з,954 t,42з,954

Ch]ef AccountantСhаirmап

The notes оп pages 15-10]. fоrm an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements

layevich

12
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JolNT sTocK соммЕRсlдL вдNк *тURоNвдNI( дND,Б sUвs/D/дRу
СОNSОL|DДТЕD SТДТЕМЕNТ OF CASH FLOWS
FoRTHEYEAR ENDED з7 DEаEMBER 2022
(iп millions of Uzbek Soums)

Notes 2022
202L

(Restated)*

Cash flows frоm opeBting activities
lnterest rесеiчеd
lnterest paid
Fееs and commissions received
Fееs and commissions paid
lncome received from trading in foreign currencies
Оthеr operating income received
Staff costs paid

Administrative and other operating expenses paid
lncome tax paid

955,074
(604,106)

].1з,196
(27,704)
44,079
2з,7t4

(209,65з)
(1з5,480)
(40,572)

844,61з
(475,951)

126,697
(28,169)

18,04з
5,665

(!74,711,)
(78,287)
(з0,410)

Cash flows from operating activities before
changes iп ореrаtiпg assets and liabilities 118,548 207,490

Net decrease/(increase) iп due frоm other banks
Net iпсrеаsе in loans and advances to customers
Net increase iп other assets
Net iпсгеаsе in due to оthеr banks
Net increase in customer accounts
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

65,924
(1,з40,5з2)

(12,080)

307,585
4з9,877

4,з17

(100,1з0)
(1,316,968)

(з,368)
1,60,701,

45],750
(4,590)

Net cash used in operating activities (416,з61) (599,115)

Cash flows frоm investing activities
Acquisition of premises, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds frоm disposal of premises, equipment

and intangible assets
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive lncome
Acquisition of debt securities of the

Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Proceeds from redemption of debt securities of the

Gочеrпmепt of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Dividend income received

(217,598)

1,450

(122)

(1,8з8,927)

1,82з,000
1,58з

(229,зз6)

(з57,760)

\зt,774
79I

544

Net cash used iп investing activities (230,614) (453,987)

1з



JolNT sTocK coMMERclдL влNк "гURоlч8д/чrдlчD /Б sUвslDlдRY
CONSOLIDДTED SТДТЕМЕNТ ОF ФSН FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2о22
(iп millions of lJzbek Soums)

Cash flows from fiпапсiп8 activities 2027 2021

19

з42,914

7,2t8,L77 2,42о,47о

(з49,229)

(1з,400)
(2,319)

(з, з80)

|L,297,Lt6].
20,5з5
(9,3з5)
(з,lз7)
(6,з42)

Net cash frоm fiпапсiпg activities 849,849 1,467,989

Effect of exchange rate changes оп cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of changes in expected credit losses
8,778

45
t6,161

(210)

Net iпсrеаsе in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the be8innin8 of the уеаr 7 ,зо

2LL,697
r,254,954

4з1,438
82з,516

саsh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,3 0 1,466,651 1,254,954

Non-cash transactions:
Сопчеrsiоп of debt into shоrеhоldеr capitol

share capital
other Ьоrrоwеd funds
Due to other banks

Redemption of shores
Share са pital

269,686

|2зз,з22)
(з6,364)

(12,89б)

Approved for issue and signed оп behalf of the Management Board on 26 June 2О2З.

Mirza Al
ch Accountant

bdullayevichс

плоN
BANK

Сhаirmа

тhе notes оп pages 15-1o1form ап integralpart ofthese consolidated financia|statements
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Notes

lssue of ordinary shares
Proceeds from borrowings from government, state

and international fina псiаl institutions
Repayment of borrowings frоm government, state

and international financial institutions
proceeds from debt securities in issue
Repayment of debt securities in issue
Dividends ра jd

Repayment of lease liabilities

19

19
19

19
19



JolNT sTocK соммЕRсlдL вдNк тURоNвдNк" дND lБ sUBslDlдRY
NотБ то тнЕ coNsoLlDдTED FlNАNадt sитЕмЕlчБ
FоR тнЕ YцR ENDED 37 DEoEMBER 2022

1. lntroduction

The Bank Was incorporated in 1-990 Ьу the Ministry of Agriculture апd Water Мапаgеmепt and is domiciled in
Uzbekistan, lt i5 registered in Uzbekistan to саrry out banking and foreign exchange activities and has operated
under banking license No,8 issued Ьу the Сепtrаl bank of Uzbekistan ('the CBU") and renewed on 25 December
2021.

As at з]. December 2о22, thе number of Bank's employees was L,464 |З! December 2О21: 1,487).

ShareholdeB. As at 3]. December 2О22 and 2О21, the interest of the Shareho|ders iп the Bank's share capital was

2о22 2027

Le8al entities:
FUnd for Reconstruction and Development
of the RepUblic of Uzbekistan (UtRD)

The п,4inistry of Еiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan (lч]ОF)
Legal entitieS

90.09%

8.67%

0.61-%

89,зl%
9A6%
0.6з%

SU btota l 99,з7% 99.40%

lnd ividua ls а,6з% 0,60%

Total 100% 100%

AS at З1 DесеmЬеr 2022, the total number of shareholders was 9,28О, which included 2,з5з le8al entities and
6,927 individuals (31 December 2021:9,24з, Which included 2,ЗбО legal entities and 6,88З individuals).

Subsidiarie* AS at З1 December 2о22 апd 2О21, the Bank's Subsidiaries wеrе the following enterprises:

Name Date of
investment

OwneBhip Owneвhip Country
2о22 2о21

lndustry

LLC Turon Plaza Hotel December 2О21 100% 100% Uzbekistan ASSet management

The Bank is а Joint Stock Compa ny limited Ьу sha res а nd Was Set U р in accorda псе With rеgu lationS of the Repu blic
of Uzbekistan ("Uzbekista n").

principal activity. Тhе Bank's principal activity is commercial banking, retail banking, operations with securities,
foreign currencies and origination of loans and guarantees. The Bank accepts deposits frоm legal entities and
individuals and makes loans and transfers payments. The Bank conducts its banking operations from its head
office in Tashkent and 20 Ьrапсhеs with in Uzbekistan as of З 1 Decembe г 2О22 \З! Decem Ьеr 2О21: 2О Ьrа nches),

The Bank paгticipates in the state deposit insurance scheme, which was introduced Ьу the uzbek Law #збо-lI
"lnsurance of lndividual Bank Deposit" on 5 Арril 2ОО2. оп 28 November 2оо8, the РгеSidепt of Uzbekistan issued
the Decree presidential Dесrее # 4057 stating that in case of the withdrawal of а ljcense of а bank, the state
Deposit lnsurance tuпd 8Uarantees rерауmепt of 1ОО% of individual deposits regardless of the deposit amount,

Re8istered address and place of business. Тhе Bank's registered address is 4а, АЬау Street, Tashkent, 1ОооОО,
uzbekistan.
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JolNT STocK coMMERclдL вдNк 'гURоNвдNк' дND lБ sUBslDlдRY
NoTEs то тнЕ coNsoLlDдED FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FоR тнЕ YЕдR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2022

(о) Disposol of subsidiory опd investments iп equity iпstrumепь designohd os ot FVToa

LLc Fеrоп leasing was established in the form of а Ljmited Liability Соmрапу in accordance With the legislation of
the RepubIic of Uzbekistan оп 31 Мау 2007. The main activity LLC Fеrоп leasing is lending of fiпапсе lease loans
to retail Ьоrrоwеrs.

Ассоrdiпg to the Dесrее of cabinet of Ministers #266 dated 4 Мау 2021, LLc tеrоп Leasing and the оwпеrshiр in
,JSC Uzselhozmashservice, JSc Universal Sчguгtа, LLC Dimax Metall Servis,.JSc Boshtransloyiha, JSc оhапgаrопdоп,
JSc UzаgrоSUgUrtа, JSc Samarqanddon mahsu lotla ri, JSC В uxorogazsa noatq u rilish, JSc Qashqadaryo parmalash
ishlari, ]SC Qashqadaryo texnologik trапsроrt, ]SC Elsis-Savdo was transferred to the State Дssеts Management
Аgепсу of the Republic of Uzbekistan at the book Value of UzS ]"2,986 million Ьу decreasing the ownership of the
Ministry of Fiпапсе in the Group's share capital. Management believes that the Grочр lost control over the
subsidiary and transferred equity instruments dUring 2О21.

The share capital reorganisation рrосеdurе has Ьееп completed at the end of 2022 Ьу decreasing the ownership
of the Ministry of Finance in the Grоuр's share capital at the book value of UZS 12,986 million,

(Ь) originotion о| LLcTuron sоrmоуо Rivoj

LLC Тurоп Sarmoya Rivoj was found on 22 December 2О21 in ассоrdапсе With the legislation of the Republic of
Uzbekistan. The main activity of Тчrоп Sarmoya Rivoj i5 asset mana8ement. lп 2о22, in accordance With decision
of the sole shareholder N98 dated 15 August 2о22 LLC Тчrоп Sarmoya Rivo1 has Ьееп renamed to the
LLC Тurоп Plaza Hotel.

2. opeЁtin8environment

Emerging markets such as Uzbekistan аrе subject to different risks than mоrе developed markets, including
есопоmiс, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting busine5ses jn
uzbekistan continue to сhапgе rapidly, tax and regulatory frameworks are subject to varying interpretations. The
future economjc direction of Uzbekistan is heavily influenced Ьу the fiscal and monetary policies adopted Ьу the
gочеrпmепt, together with developments jn the lеgаl, rеgulаtоry, and political environment.

At the end of 2022 the Uzbekistan's gross domestjc product ("GDP") grеW Ьу 5.7%. ln 2О22, the highest inflation
over the past three years was recorded in the country, amounting to !2.з% реr аппum (iп 2О21, inflation WaS
9.98% реr annum).

The military and political conflict between Russia and ukraine escalated in еаrlу 2о22. дs а result, several
countries introduced economic sanctjons against Russia and Belarus, including measures to ban new investment
а nd rеstriсt interaction with major fina nciaI institutions and many state enterprises. As а rе5u lt of these sanctions,
the ехрогt of labour to Russia and the related level remittances mау also rеduсе, which could have а negative
impact on the есопоmу of Uzbekistan.

мотеоvеr, in March 2022, the uzbekistan soum depreciated against major foreign сurrепсjеs amid the externa]
8eopolitical situation. То reduce the negative impact of external factors оп the economy of uzbekistan, the
сепtгаl Bank of the Repu blic of Uzbekistan made а пUmЬеr of ad.jUstments to the baSe rate throughout 2О22 and
fixed it at 15% реr annum at the end of the year соmраriпg to 14% per annum at the beginning of the period, lп
addition, interventionS on the сUrrепсу market Were регfоrmеd to suрроrt the Uzbekistan SoUm ехсhапgе rate
agajnSt fоrеi8п сurrепсiеs. НоWечеr, there iS unceгtainty related to the futUre developments of geopolitical riSks
and their impact on the есопоmу of the Republic of Uzbekistan,
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JolNT sTocK соммЕRсlдL вдNк тURоNвд,ч["А/чD ,Б sUвs,D/длу
NэTES то тнЕ соNsоLlDдтЕD FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FоR тнЕ YЕдR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2022

Mana8ement of the Group is monitoring developments in the economic, political, and geopolitical Situataon and
ta king measures it considers necessary to support the sustainability and development of the Grou p's business for
the foreseeable future. Ноwечеr, the consequences of these events and related future changes may have а
significant impact on the Grоuр's operations.

з. Summary of significant accountin8 policies

Going сопсеrп.Тhе consolidated financial statements have been рrераrеd оп the assumption that the GrоUр is а
8oing сопсеrп and Will continUe in operation for the foreseeable future.

The Group's activities continue to Ье affected Ьу the uncertainty and instability of the сurrепt economic
environment, The financial position and the results of the Вапk continue to Ье significantly impacted Ьу the
reforms of the government.

Fоr the уеаr ended З1 December 2022, the Grоu р jncurred а cash outflow frоm operating activities in the amou nt
of UZS 416,з61 million (3J, DесеmЬеr 2О21: UZS 599,115 million). Тhе cash outflow from operating activities is
explained Ьу on-lending the funds received from international financial institutions and the state to fiпапсе the
8оvеrпmепt апd investment projects Which led to ап iпсrеаsе in the loans and advances to customerS Ьу
UZS 2,884,71З million оr 30% (31 December 2021: 2,62З,ООО оr 32%).

AS at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, the Bank Was in а breach of certain financial covenants Set Ьу agreements between the
Group and the Asian Development Bank, LLC lnternational Development Projects, Ехрогt lmport Bank of Turkey,
lslamic corporation for the Development of the private sector and lnternational lslamic Тrаdе Finance
Соrроrаtiоп (lТtС) as discussed iп detail in Note 17. This, as а consequence, triggered cross default clauses
stipulated in the lоап agreements signed between the Group and Акд дusfu h rkred it-G esellschaft mbH.
AS а result, borrowings iп the amoUnt of UZS 1,459,154 million Were classified as "Demand and less than 1 month''
Within the liquidity disclosure, Accordingly, the Group had а cUmulative liquidity shortfall up to 1уеаr of UZS
2,477,764 milIion (З1 DесеmЬеr 2021: UZS бО5,175 million), aS discussed in detail in Note 17 and 26 of the
consolidated financial statements. The Management is in commUnication With its creditors and working оп an
action рlап on compliance with covenants.

continued опgоiпg support Ьу the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan {"the State"). The Group is а
state owned bank With the МоF and UtRD as key shareholders, jointly holding 98.76% interest in the Share
са pital of the Bank as at З1 DесеmЬеr 2О22 (З 1, December 2О2 r:98.77%|. The Group is а strategic fina ncia l

institution of the Republic of Uzbekistan, responsible for the development of strategic industries.

The Bank plays а vital rоlе in strate8ic development of certain spheres of the Republic of uzbekistan.
AS at з1 DесеmЬеr 2022, borrowings from the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan amounted
to UZS 2,096,975 million (З1 DесеmЬеr 2021: 1,7З6,З54 million) (Note 17) and customer accounts of State
entitie5 amoUnted to UZS 882,041 million (31 DесеmЬеr 2О21:664,566 million) (Note 16), respectively, Тhе
Gоvеrпmепt will continue financing the Grочр on ап ongoing basis, The maturaty of funds received frоm
shareholders and customer accounts of State entities сап Ье renegotiated if that Will Ье necessary;

17

lп DесеmЬеr 2022, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its lоп8 and 5hort-term foreign and lосаl сurrепсу ratings оп
Uzbekistan at ВВ-/В, The outlook was rеmаiпеd as "stable". Тhе decision was made due to the slowdown in the
growth of country's externaldebt, improved fiscal policy and reforms.

Mana8ement of the Group be|ieves that the Group will Ье able to continue as а going сопсеrп, through the
following:



JolNT sTocK соммЕRсlдL вдNк *iURоNвдNк" дND lБ sUBslDlдRY
NoTEs то тнЕ coNsoLlDдTED FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FоR тнЕ YЕАR ENDED з1 DEOEMBER 2022

ln addition, during 202З the Group has received additjonal financing Under existing credit lines for а total
amount of UZS 506,388 million, including financing from the Association for the Development of Pasture
Fаrms for UZS 2,500 million, from lvlinistry of lnvestment and Fоrеigп Trade fоr USD З,l5О million
(UZS equivalent of 35,З60 mil|ion), from Ministry of Finance for UZS З6,З5О million and USD 2.665 million
(UZS equivalent of 29,91б), from the UERD for UZS ЗЗ,190 million, Ехрогt lmроrt 8ank of China for USD
5.619 mjllion (UZS equivalent of бЗ,076 million) and frоm LLc lnternational Development Projects for EUR
25.581 miIlion (UZS equivalent of 305,996 million);
Тhе Bank also has committed iпtеrЬапk deposits jn amoUnt of approximately UZS 1,оlо,291 million as at 31
DесеmЬеr 2022 that сап Ье accessed to meet liquldity needs;
Also, the mana8ement rе8Ulаrlу assess the stability of its other non-government cuStomer accounts fu пd ing
base based оп past реrfоrmапсе and analysis subsequent to the reporting date, Дссоrdiпg to its assessment
and the past ехреrjепсе, these customer accounts provide а lопg-tеrm and stable source of funding for the
Group.

UFRD has confirmed to the management that it Will continue to support the ореrаtiоп of the Bank, including
funding.

Тhе management believes that, based оп current forecasts and measures taken to mапаgе liquidity, and also
taking into account the economic situation in the country and the Strengthening of the national cUrrency, the
Group has enough funds to continue its activities in the foreseeable future.

Bosis of рrероrОtiоп, These consolidated financial statements have Ьееп рrераrеd iп ассоrdапсе With
lnternationalFinancialReportingStandards ("lFRS") Underthe h istorica l cost со nventio n, as modified Ьу the initia l

recognition of financial instruments based оп fair value. The рriпсiраl accounting policies applied in the
рrераrаtiоп of these consolidated financial statements аrе set out below. These policies have Ьееп consistently
applied to аll the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Group is required to maintain its records and prepare jts consolidated financial statements for regulatory
pUrposes iп Uzbek Soum5 in accordance With Uzbekjstan Accountin8 Le8islation and related instructionS (''UДL'').
These consolidated financial statements аrе based оп the GrоUр's UAL books and records, adjUsted and
reclassified in оrdеr to comply with ItRS,

These consolidated financial statements аrе presented iп millions of uzbek soums ("uzs"), unless otherwise
indicated. Historical cost is gепеrаllу based оп the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
serVices.

Fuпdiопоl сurrепсу. ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Grоuр's entities аrе
measured using the сurrепсу of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("the functional currency"). The functional сurrепсу of the Group is UZS, The presentational сurrепсу of the
consolidated financia l statements of the Group is also UZS. All values are rounded to the пеаrеst million UZS, except
when otherwise ind icated,
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consolidoted fiпопсiоl stoEments. Subsidiaries are those investees, anclUding Structured entities, that the Grочр
controls becauSe the Grоu р {i) has роwеr to direct relevant activities of the jnvestees that significa ntly affect their
returns, (ii) has exposure, оr rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investees, and (iii) has the
ability to Use its роWеr over the investees to affect the amount of investor's returns.

The existence and effect of SUbStantive rights, including substantive potential votin8 rights, аrе considered when
assessing whether the Group has power очеr another entity.

Fоr а right to Ье substantive, the holder must have practical ability to exercise that right when decisions about
the direction of the rеlечапt activities of the jnvestee need to Ье made.

The G rou р may have роwеr over an investee even when it holds less tha n majority of voting роwеr iп ап investee.
ln Such а case, the Grоuр assesses the size of its votin8 rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings ofthe
оthеr vote holders to determine if it hаs de-facto роWеr over the investee, Protective rights of other investors,
such as those that relate to fundamental changes of jnvestee's activities or аррlу only in eХceptional
circumstances, do not рrечепt the Group from controlling ап investee. Subsidiaries аrе consolidated from the
date оп which control iS transferred to the Group, and are deconsolidated from the date on Which control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries other than those
acquired from parties Under common control. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contin8ent ljabilities
assumed in а business combination аrе measured at thejr fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any non-controlling interest.

The Group measures non-controllin8 interest that rерrеsепts present oWnership interest and entitles the holder
to а рrороrtiопаtе shаrе of net assets iп the event of liquidation on а transaction Ьу transaction ba5i5, either at:
(а) fair value, оr (Ь) the поп-сопtrоlliпg interest's рrороrtiопаtе share of net assets of the асquirее. Non-
controlling interests that аrе not present ownership interests are measured at fair value.

The consideration transferred for the acquiree is measured at the fair value of the assets given up, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed, including fair value of assets оr liabilities from contingent
consjderation аrrапgеmепts, but excludes acqUisitlon related costs such as advisory, legal, valuation and similar
professional services, Transaction costs incurred for issuing equity instruments are deducted from equity;
transaction costs incurred for issuing debt аrе deducted from its carrying amount and а|l other transaction costs
associated With the acqUisition аrе expensed.

lntercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between grочр companies аrе
eliminated; unrealised losses аrе also eliminated unless the cost cannot Ье recovered. The Bank and jts
subsidiarieS use uniform accoUnting policieS consistent With the Grочр'S policieS,

Non-controlling interest is that раrt of the net results and of the equity of а subsidiary attributable to interests
which аrе not owned, djrectly оr indirectly, Ьу the Bank, Nоп-сопtrоlliпg interest forms а separate component of
the GrоUр'S equity.

Дссоuпtiпg lor the е||есВ oJ hуреriпflоfiол. The Republic of UzbekiStan has previously ехреriепсеd relatively high
levels of inflation and was considered to Ье hyperinflationary as defined Ьу lAS 29 "tinancial Rерогtiпg in
Hyperinflationary Economies" ("lAS 29"), lAS 29 reqUires that the financial statements рrераrеd in the сurrепсу
of а hyperinflationa ry economy Ье stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the statement of financial
poSition date.
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lt states that rероrtiпg operatin8 results and financial posjtion in the lосаl сUrrепсу Without restatement is not
useful because money loses purchaslng роWеr at such а rаtе that the comparison of amounts frоm transactions
and оthеr events that have оссurrеd at different times, ечеп Within the Same accountin8 реriоd, is misleading,

Cosh ОПd cosh еquiУОlеЛts, Cash and cash equivalents аrе items which аrе rеаdilу convertible to known amounts
of саsh and which аrе subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash and cash eqUivalents include deposits Wjth the cBU and all interbank placements With оrigiпаl maturities of
less than three months. Funds restricted fоr а period of mоrе than three months on origination are excluded
frоm cash and cash equivalents. cash and cash equivalents are саrriеd at amortised cost.

The payments оr receipts presented in the statement of cash flows represent transfers of cash and cash
eqUivalents Ьу the Group, including amoUnts charged оr credited to current accounts of the Group's
counterpaгties held wjth the Grоuр, such as loan interest income or principal collected Ьу charging the cu5tomer's
сurrепt account or jnterest payments or disbursement of loans credited to the customer's счrrепt account, which
represents cash оr cash equivalent frоm the cUStomer'S perspective.

Due frоm other Ьопk. Amounts due from оthеr banks are recorded whеп the Group advances mопеч to
соuпtеrраrtу banks with no intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative rесеiчаые due on fixed оr
determinable dates. Due from the cBu include non-interest Ьеаriпg mandatory rеsеrче deposit held with the
cBU a8ainst deposits from customers. This deposit iS not available to finance the Group's day to day operation5,
and hепсе is not considered as рагt of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements. Amounts due from other banks аrе carried at аmогtisеd cost.

Debt securities oIthe Gоvеrппепt of the Republic oJ lJzbek'ston. Debt securitie5 of the Government of the Republic
of uzbekistan аrе classified as debt securities at аmогtisеd cost under lFRs g, since the Grоuр holds them for
investment purposes/ the "hold to collect" business model апd the cash flow characteristics assessments.

Fiпапсiоliпstrumепв- key mеоsurеmелt terrný. Dependin8 on their classification financial instruments аге carried
at fair value, оr amoгtised cost as described below.

Fаir value is the рriсе that would Ье received to 5ell ап asset оr paid to trапSfеr а liability in an оrdеrlу transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Тhе best evidence of fair value is price in ап active
market. Ап active market is one in Which transactions for the asset оr liability take рlасе with sufficient frequency
and Volume to provide pricing information on ап ongoing basis.

Fаir value of financial instruments traded in ап actjve market is measured as the product of the quoted price for
the individUal asset or liability and the quantity held Ьу the entity, This is the case еVеп if а market's поrmаl dai|y
trading Volume is not Sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to 5ell the position in а single
transaction might affect the quoted рriсе.

ValUation techniques such as discounted cash flow models оr models based on recent arm's length transactions
оr consideratjon of financial data of the investees, а rе used to measu rе fair value of сеrtа in financia l instru ments
for which external market pricing information is not availab|e.
Fair value measurements аrе analysed Ьу level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level опе аrе
meaSUrements at qUoted рriсеs (Unad,iusted) in active markets for identical assets оr liabilities, (ii) level two
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The characteristicS ofthe economic environment of Uzbekistan indicated that hyperinflation had ceased effective
from 1January 2007. Restatement procedUres of lAS 29 аrе thеrеfоrе опlу applied to assets acquired оr revalued
and liabilities iпсчrrеd or assumed prior to that date.
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measurements аrе valUations techniqueS With all material inputs observable for the asset оr liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) оr indirectly (that is, derjved frоm prices), and (iii) level three measurements аrе
ValUations not based оп solely observable mаrkеt data (that is, the meaSurement requires significant
unobservable inputs).

cosf is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire
ап asset at the time of its acqUisition and includes tranSaction costs. All investments in eqUity instruments and
contracts on those instruments аrе measured at fair value. However, in limjted circumstances, cost may Ье ап
appropriate estimate of fair value. That may Ье the case if insufficient mоrе recent information iS avaiIable to
measure fair value, оr if the thеrе iS а Wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the
best estimate of fair valUe Within that rап8е.

Amortised cost is the amount at Which the financial instrument was recognised at initial reco8nition less any
рriпсiраl repayments, plUS accrued interest, and fоr financiaI assets less any write-down for incurred impairment
losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of апу
premium or dascount to maturity amount usin8 the effective interest method. дссruеd interest income and
accrued anterest eХpense, including both ассruеd coupon and amortised discount or premium (including fees
deferred at ori8ination, if апу), are not presented separately and аrе included in the саrryiпg values of related
items in the Statement of financial position.

The effective interest method is а method of allocating interest income оr interest expense очеr the relevant
period, so а5 to achieve а constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rаtе) оп the саrryiпg аmочпt,

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly di5counts estimated future cash payments оr receipts (excluding
future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrUment оr а shorter period, if appropriate, to
the пеt саrryiпg amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable
interest instruments to the next interest rерriсiпg date, except fоr the premium оr discount which reflects the
credit spread оvеr the floating rate specified in the instrument, оr other variables that are not reset to market
rates. such premiumS or discounts аrе amortised очеr the whole expected life of the instrument. The present
vaIue calculation includes аll fees paid оr recelved between parties to the contract that аrе an inte8ral раrt of the
effective interest rate.

Fiпапсiаl assets. All financial assets аrе recognized and derecognized оп а trade date whеrе the purchase or sale
of а financial asset js under а contract whose terms rеqчirе delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established Ьу the market concerned, and аrе initially measured at fair ValUe, plus transactjon costs, except for
those financial assets classified as at fair ValUe through profit or loss (hereinafter (FVTPL))). Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acqUisition of financial assets classified а5 at tWРL аrе recognized immediately in
profit or loss,

All recognized financial assets that are Withjn the scope of lFRS 9 Financial lnstrUments ("lFRS 9") аrе required to
Ье su bsequently measured at а mortised cost оr fair value оп the baSiS of the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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ТrОПsОСtiОП costs аrе incremental costs that аrе direcly attributable to the acquisition, issue оr disposal of а
financial instrument. Ап iпсrеmепtаl cost is опе that would not hаvе Ьееп incurred if the transaction had not
taken place, Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling
a8ents), advisors, Ьrоkеrs апd dealers, levies Ьу regulatory agencies and Securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums оr discounts, financlng costs оr internal
ad min istrative or holding costs.
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Specifically

Retention of ап asset to obtain the cash flows StipUlated Ьу the contract. ThiS business model suggests
fjnancial asset mапаgеmепt aims to realize cash flows Ьу receiving principal and interest payments оVеr the
life of the financial instrument. within the framework of this business model, holding а financial asset to
maturity is а priority, but еаrlу diSposal is not prohibited.

Retention of ап asset with а vjew for obtaining contractual cash flows and sale of fjnancial assets. This
business model asSUmes that the management off]nancial asSets is aimed at both obtaining contractual cash
flows and sale of financial assets. within the framework of this business model, the receipt of cash from the
sale of а financial asset is а priority, which is characterized Ьу а grеаtеr frequency and volume of sales
соmраrеd to "holding an asset to receive contractual cash flows'' business model.

' Retention of ап asset for other purposes. within the framework of this business model, financial assets сап
Ье managed with the following purposes:

- mana8ement With а view to selling cash flows through the sale of financial assets;
- liquidity management to meet daily funding needs;
- а portfolio, which management and регfоrmапсе is measured оп а fаir value basis;
- а portfolio, which matches the definition of held for trading. tiпапсiаl assets аrе deemed to Ье held for

trading if they wеrе acquired mainly with а VieW to subsequent disposal in the пеаr future (up to 18О
days), gaining 5hоrt-tеrm profit, оr represent derivative financial instruments {except for а financial
8uarantee оr derivative financial instrument that Wa5 de5i8nated as а hedging inStrument).

ln accordance with lFRs 9, financial assets аrе classifjed as follows;

о loans and advances to customers classified as assets at amortised cost are contained within the framework
of а business model which aims to rесеivе cash flows exclusively for repayment of unpaid interest and
principal stipulated Ьу loan agreement and that have contractual cash flows that аrе soleIy payments of
principal and interest ("SPPl") оп the рriпсiраl amount oUtstanding;о balances on correspondent accounts, interbank loans/deposits, repo transactions are classified, as а rule, as
assets, estimated at amortised cost, since they аrе mana8ed within the framework of а business model,
whjch aims to receive cash flows stipulated Ьу the contract, and that have contractual cash flows that are
SPPl;

, debt securities may Ье classified jnto апу of the three classification cate8ories, taking into account the
selected business model and compliance with the SPPl criterion;. eqUity securities аrе gепеrаllу classified as instruments at fаir value through profit оr loss;, trading securities and derivatives аrе classified as financiai assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Fiпапсiаl assets оr financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at tVTРL аrе:

. Assets With contractual cash flows that аrе not SPPI; оr/апd, A5sets that аrе held in а business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows оr held to
collect and sell; оr

. Assets designated at FVТРL using the fair value option.

Financial liabilities аrе classified as at fair value through profit оr loss Where the financial liability is either held for
tradingoritisdesignatedasatfairvaluethroughprofitorloss. Afinancial liabilityisclassifiedisheldfortrading
if:

о it has Ьееп acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the пеаr term; оr
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it iS а раrt of an identified poгtfolio of financial instruments that the Grочр mапаgеs together and has
а recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; оr
it js а derivative that is not desi8nated and effective as а hedging instrUment.

А financial liability other than а financial liability held for trading, mау Ье designated as at fair value through profit
оr loss upon initial reco8nition if:

5uch deSignation eliminates or significantly reduces а measurement оr recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise аrisе; оr
the financial liabllity forms part of а group of financial liabilities, which is managed and its реrfоrmапсе
is evaluated on а fair value basis, in ассоrdапсе with the Group's documented risk mапаgеmепt оr
investment Strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally оп that basis; оr
it forms раrt of а contract containing опе оr mоrе embedded derivatives, and lFRS 9 permits the епtirе
combined contract (asset оr liability) to Ье designated а5 at fajr ValUe thrоugh profit оr loss.

Fiпапсiаl assets and financjal liabilities at fair value throu8h profit оr loss аrе recorded iп the consolidated
statement offinancial position atfairvalue. changes in fairvalue аrе rесоrdеd in net (loss)/gain оп financial assets
and liabilities at fair value thrоugh profit оr loss. lnterest еаrпеd оr incurred js accrued in jnterest income оr
expense, respectively, according to the terms of the contract, while dividend income is гесоrdеd in "оthеr
income" when the right to receive the payment has Ьееп established,

Fiпопсiоl ossets otfoir volue through other аmрrеhепsivе iпсоrпе. The fair value of the financial assets at fair va lue
throu8h other comprehensive income Wеrе determined aS the рrеsепt value of future dividends Ьу assuming
dividend growth rаtе of zero per annum. The Management bUi|t its expectation based оп previous ехрегiепсе of
dividends received оп financial assets at fair value through other соmрrеhепsiче income очеr multiple years, апd
accordingly calculated the value of using the average rаtе of return оп investments. Management believes that
this аррrоасh accurately reflects the fair value of these secUritieS.

Debt iпstrumепь ot omoltised соý оr ot loir volue through other соmрrеhепsivе iпсоmе ("FWОСП. The Group
assesses the classification and measurement of afjnancial asset based on the contractual cash flow
characterjstics of the asset and the Group'S business model for mапаgiп8 the asset,

tоr an asset to Ье classified and measured at amortised cost оr at tvТосl, its contractual terms should give rjse
to caSh flows that аrе solely payments of principal and interest оп the principal outstanding.

Fоr the purpose of SPPl test, principal iS the fair value of the financial asset at initial reco8njtion. That principal
а mou nt may chan8e over the life of the fina ncia l asset (e.g. if there а rе rерауmепtS of рriпсiраl), lnterest consists
of consideration for the time ча lUe of mопеу, for the credit risk aSsociated With the principa l amount outsta ndin8
during а particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as а profjt mar8in. The SPPl
assessment is made in the сurrепсу iп which the financial asset is denominated.

contractual cash flows that аrе sppl аrе consistent with а basic lending arrangement. contractual terms that
introduce eХposure to risks оr volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to а basic lending
аrrап8еmепt, such as ехроsurе to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual
cash flows that аrе sppl, An originated or ап acquired financial asset can Ье а basic lending аrrапgеmепt
irrespective of Whether it is а lоап in its legal form.
Ап assessment of business models fоr mana8ing financial assets iS реrfоrmеd at the date of initial application of
ltRS 9 to determine the classification of а financial asset. The business model is applied retrospectively to аll
financial assets existing at the date of initial application of ltRs 9. The Grоuр determines the business models at
а level that reflects how groups of financial assets аrе managed tоgеthёr to achieve а paгticUlar business
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ob,iective. The Group's business model does not depend on management's intentions fоr ап individual
instrument; thеrеfоrе, the business model assessment is регfоrmеd at а higher level of aggregation rather than
оп an inStru ment-by-instru mепt basis,

The GroUp has more than one business model for mапаgiпg its financial instruments that reflect how the Group
mапаgеs its financial assets in оrdеr to gепеrаtе cash flows. The Group's business models determine whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.

The Grоuр considers all rеlечапt information available when making the busjness model assessment, Ноwечеr,
this assessment is not регfоrmеd based оп scenarios that the Group does not reasonably eХpect to occur, such
as so-called 'worst case' or'stress case'scenarios. The Grоuр takes into account all rеlеvапt evidence available
such as:

How the реrfоrmапсе of the business model and the financial assets held Within that business model
аrе evaluated and rероrtеd to the entity's key management реrsоппеl;
The risks that affect the регfоrmапсе of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in рагtiсчlаr, the way in which those risks аrе managed; and
HoW mапаgеrs of the business аrе compensated (e,g. whether the compensation is based on the fair
va lue of the assets managed оr оп the contractual cash flows collected),

At initial recognition of а financial asset, the Grоuр determines whеthеr пеwlу recognized financial assets аrе
раrt of ап existing business model оr whether they reflect the commencement of а new business model, The
Group reassess its bUSiness models each rероrtiпg period to determine whether the business models have
changed since the preceding period. Fоr the current rероrtiп8 period, the Grочр has not identified а change in
its business models.

When а debt instru ment measu red at fa ir va lue thrоUgh оthеr comprehensive income (hеrеiпаftеr ( FwoclD) is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previous|y recognized in ocl is reclassified from eqUity to profit оr loss. ln
contrast, for ап equity investment designated as measured at FVТОСl, the cUmulative gain/loss previously
recognized in ОСl iS not subsequently reclassified to profit оr loss but transferred Within eqUity. Debt instruments
that аrе sUbseqUently mеаsurеd at amortlsed cost оr at FVТОСl are SUbject to impairment,

Lоопs ond odvonces to сustоmеrs. Loans а nd advances to customers аrе non-derivatjve financia l assets with fixed
Оr determinable payments that аrе not quoted jn an active market. Loans to customers granted Ьу the Grочр are
jnitially rесоgп ised at fair va lue plus related transaction costs that d irectly rеlаtе to acq u isition оr creation of such
financial assets, Subsequently, loans аrе саrriеd at amortised cost Using the effective interest method. Loan5 to
customers аrе саrriеd net of any allowance for expected credit losses.

lmроirmепt of Iiполсiоl ossets
Expected credit (oss (ECL) mеоsurеmепt - definitions

ECL is а probability-Weiвhted measurement of the present value of future cash shortfalls {i.e., the Weighted
аVеrа8е of credit losses, with the respective risks of default оссчrriпg iп а giчеп time period used as Weights). дп
ECL measUrement is unbiased and should Ье determined Ьу evaluating а range of possible outcomes.
An ECL measurement is based on four components used Ьу the Grоuр:

EXpoSUre at Default (EAD) - ап estimate of exposure at а future default date, takin8 into account
expected changes in exposure after the rерогtiп8 date, jncluding repayments of рriпсiраl and jnterest,
and expected drawdowns оп committed facilities.
Probability of Default (PD) - an estimate of the likelihood of default to occur оvеr а given time period.
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Loss Given Default (LGD) - ап estimate of а loss arising оп default. lt is based on the difference between
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from апу
collateral, lt uSUally expressed aS а percentage of EAD.

Discount Rate - а tool to discount an expected loss from the present value at the rероrtiпg date. Тhе
discount rate represents the effective interest rate (ElR) for the financial instrument оr ап
approximatjon thereof.

Calculation of financial assets impairment Was made takin8 into account the following factors

ln оrdеr to calculate the expected credit losses, the Bank регfоrms loan assessment on an indjvidual basis
and on а group basis depending оп gепеrаl credit risk features.
Expected credit losses represent estimates of expected credit losses weighted at probability of а default
and calculated as present value of аll expected losses in amounts due. calculations аrе based on justified
and verified information, which may Ье received without any si8nificant costs оr efforts, calculation of
the present value of the expected future cash flows of the secured financial asset reflects the cash flow
that may result frоm foreclosure, less the cost of obtaining and selling collateral, regardless of whеthеr
the recovery is probable оr not. The allowance is based оп the Group's own experience in assessing losses
and mana8ement assumptions about the level of losses likely to Ье recognised оп assets in each category
of а credit risk, based on debt servicing capabilities and Ьоrrоwеr's credit track rесоrd.
lmpairment for treasury operations (investments in debt securities, rеvетsе rерчrсhаsе transactions,
interbank loans and deposits, correspondent account tranSactions, accounts receivable under treasury
transaction5) is calculated taking into account the counterparty's rating, probability of default, duration
of а transaction апd the extent of loss in case of а default.
Assets classified at fair value through profit оr loss are not sUbject to impairment Uпdеr
ltRS 9.

The estimated credjt losses for treasury operations are estimated оп an individual basis (except fоr individual
claims in the form of receivables).

Fоr col|ective assessment of credit losses, loans to customers аrе segmented Ьу criteria fоr determining the
transition between Stages 1, 2 and 3. The presence of at least опе criterion is sufficiently lead to the change of
transaction classifications, reflectin8 the iпсrеаsе in credit risk:

Sta8e 1: LoanS Wjthout signifjcant increase in credjt risk (SlcR)

All loans at initial rесоgпitiоп are clas5ified into stage 1 and remain in stage 1 until the identification of
factors that indjcate а significant increase in credit risk, eхcept for acquired оr created loan-impaired
loa ns.
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Stage 2: Loans With significant increase in credit risk (SlcR)

Loans in which the maХimum number of days overdue on principal or interest rапве5 from 31 days to 90
days;
LoanS in the category of "substandard" ассоrdiпg to the Regulation on the classification procedure of the
CBU;
Loans that wеrе credit-impaired (Stage З) as at the end of the рrечiочs qчагtеr due to опе or more
transition criteria of Stage 3, and which as at the end of the сurrепt quarter have Signs of Sta8e 1 оr 2;

lп the absence of historical information about the number of overdue days fоr accrued interest, loans fоr
which there jS an amount of overdue interest at the end of the current quarter;
Loans for which there i5 an amount of overdue interest at the end of the previous quarter, and the
amount of overdue interest at the end ofthe сUrrепt quarter has decreased оr is equalto the amount of
overdUe interest at the end of the счrrепt quагtеr;
Loans for which reserves wеrе created for mоrе than 1О% to 25% of the principal outstanding rеfеrriпg
to the rероrtiпg date of the loan portfolio, in accordance With the Regulation on the classification
рrосеdurе of the cBU.
Loans that have been restructured and loans which 25% of рriпсiраl have Ьееп repaid from the date of
restructu riпg.

Sta8e З: Financial asset is iп default

Loans for which the maХimum number of overdue days оп principal or interest i5 more than 9О days;
Loans in the category of "u nsatisfactory", "doubtful" and "bad" in ассоrdапсе with the RegUlation оп the
classification procedure of the CBU;
Loans that have been restructured since initial гесоgпitiоп (|оап5 with the status "Restructured in the
loan роrtfоliо, including loans for which the repayment was less than 25% of the principal debt since the
date of the last restructuring оr the last revision), (except in cases of restructuring of loans,
when the financial condition of the Ьоrrоwеr is stable and allows the Ьоrrоwеr to rерау the debt to the
Bank and When restructuring occurs at the decision of higher authorities);
Loans for which there is а court decision оr а trlal is in рrоgrеss (loans for which thеrе аrе сочгt decisjon
dates in the lоап portfolio);
The рrеsепсе of debt оп off-balance sheet accounts due to the рriпсiраl debt and ассrчеd interest in
ассоrdапсе with the Regulation on the classification procedure of the cBu and the Regulatjon оп Non-
Ассrчаl of lnterest of the CBU;
Loans fоr Which the сопtrасt has expired, but the ЬоrrоWеr has not fully repaid the debt ассоrdiпg to the
payment schedu lе;

Acquired or created credit impaired financialasset (PoCl);
Loa ns fоr wh ich reserves have been created for 25% or mоrе of principal amount posted on the rероrtiп8
date of the lоап рогtfоliо, iп ассоrdапсе With the Regulation on the classificatjon procedUre of the cBU.
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An asset is estimated оп ап individual basis if the total debt of the Ьоrrоwеr at the rерогtiп8 date exceeds the
materiality level and is in stage З, The level of materiality is determined as 0.5% of arithmetic ачеrа8е of Bank's
total eqUity minUs revalUation rеsеrче реr National accounting standards fоr the last two уеаrs. lf the materiality
of the Bank for determinin8 ап individually significant asset increases Ьу mоrе than 2 times in the calculation for
the next period (fiscal уеаф, then the materiality level for this next реriоd (fiscal уеаr) shall not exceed the Bank's
materiality level fоr the previous period (fiscal уеаr) mоrе than 2 times, and it will Ье equal to the lеVеl of
materiality multiplied Ьу 2.Тhе level of materiality is analysed at least опсе а year to assess its adequacy and
applicability, and based on the results of this analysis, the lеvеl of materiality mау Ье revised,

Based on the results of the assessment at еасh rерогtiпg date, questionnaire for each individually significant
ЬоrrоWеr With the necessary explanations and comments is filled out to identify Signs of а significant iпсrеаsе in

credit risk and credit impairment, The questionnaire is completed on the basis of the loan portfolio and the
information contained in the monitoring rероrts, and other information in the credit folder. After determining
Whether there is an evidence of а significant increase in credit risk, as well as impairment, dependin8 оп the
results of such analysis, the Bank classifies the asset to one of the following stages:

Stage 1: "Loans With low credit risk"

All loans at initial recognition аrе classified into Stage 1 and rеmаiп in Stage 1 if по Significant iпсrеаsе in
the level of сrеdit risk has Ьееп identified оr until the factors indicating ап increase in credit гisk have
Ьееп identified, except for loan5 acquired or created credit impaired;

Stage 2: "Loans with increased credit risk"

Вrеасh of сопtrасt, such as а delay of payment frоm Зl tо 90 саlепdаr days;
ln case when Bank has information about overdue debts iп other credit institutions (if information is
available for the Bank) оп the рriпсiраl debt and / or the accrued interests frоm Зl tо 9О calendar days;
Loans, iп the category of "substandard" according to the Re8ulation оп the classification рrосеdurе of
the CBU;
Actualorexpectedsignificantchangeintheoperatingresultsoftheborrower,Examplesincludedecrease
in revenue, increase in operationai risk, inefficiency of working capital, рrоЬlеms related to management,
оr changes of scope jn соmmеrсiаl activity оr сhапgеS in the organizational structure (for example,
termination of а business segment), which lead to а significant сhапgе in а Ьоrrоwеr's abiiity to meet its
debt obligations. Тhе crjterion is based оп reduce of financial condition of the Ьоrrоwеr Ьу опе class. The
class of the financial condition of the Ьоrrоwеr - score is based оп calculations of economic indicators
(ratios of сочегаgе, liquidity, autonomy, asset tUrпоVеr and net sales profitability);
Actual оr expected (based on reasonable а nd supported information) decrease of the borrower's external
credit rаtiпg Ьу 2 оr mоrе notches;
Reduction of financial support from the state, the раrепt organization оr апоthеr affiliated or8anization;
А significant deterioration in the quality оr condition of the collateral according to the data of the last
monitoring report, which is expected to rеduсе the economic incentive fоr the ЬоrrоWеr to make
the planned payments stipulated Ьу the contract or otherwise affect the probability of default (if the
information is available). When the security iS а gUаrапtее of third раrtiеs, significant financial difficulties
of the gUarantor;
Existing оr forecasted negative chan8es in commercial, financial оr economic conditions (actual оr
eXpected increase in interest rates оr actual or expected increase in unemployment) or actual or
eXpected negative chan8e iп regUlatory, economic or technological conditions of the ЬоrrоWеr'S activity
(fоr example, decrease in demand of product due to changes in technology);
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ВоrтоWеr Whо haS по evidence of impairment оr evidence of а significant increase in credit risk at the
rерогtiп8 date, but Who has Ьееп classified aS credit impaired (in Sta8e 3) based on the calculation of
previous rероrtiпg of eXpected credit loss.
Expected Ьrеасh of contract that could lead to the exemptions for covenants оr amendments to
covenants, to temporary exemption from interest payments, iпсrеаsе in interest rates, establiShment of
requirements fоr additional collateral, guarantees оr оthеr changes to the contractual base of the
inStrument;
Reasonable and sчрроrtеd information about опе or several of the following factors;
. the presence of uncertainty in rеsресt of going сопсеrп in the auditor's rерогt of the financial

statements of the Ьоrrоwеr;
о involvement in lеgаl proceedings of the Ьоrrоwеr (co-borrower), which may worsen its financial

condition;
о violation of covenants опе оr mоrе times within three months prior to the reporting date;

Stage З: cred it-im ра ired loans

Вrеасh of contract terms, such as default оr delayed payment of 9О саlепdаr days оr more;
lf the Bank has information оп cross-default, overdue payments for 9О calendar days оr more on loans
With а maturity of mоrе than one уеаr to other creditors;
LoanS in the "u nsatisfa ctory", "doubtful" and "bad" categories according to the Regulation on the
Classification ProcedUre of the cBU;
The рrеsепсе of Ьоrrоwеr's significant financjal difficulties, The criterion is based оп reduce of financial
cond ition of the ЬоrrоWеr Ьу two оr more classes. Тhе Ьоrrоwеr's class of the financia l condition is based
on calculations of economic indicators (ratios of coverage, liquidity, autonomy, asset tчrпочеr and net
sales mаrgiп);
Loans that were restructured from the time of initial rесоgпitiоп (lоапs with the status "restructurеd" in
the lоап portfolio, including loans that Wеrе repaid less than 25% of the principal debt since the date of
the laSt restructuring оr the last revision) (except fоr the cases of loan restructurin8, whеп the financial
condition of the Ьоrrоwеr is stable and allows the Ьоrrоwеr to рау off the debt to the Bank and when
the revisjon and restructuring occurs at the discretion of higher aUthorities);
Lack of communication with thе Ьоrrоwеr, as weil as the lack of information to determine the financial
condition of the Ьоrrоwеr (со-Ьоrrоwеr) for the last 12 months;
Reduction of the borrower's external credit rating to СС and lower, in accordance to the rating agencies
like Sta nda rd&Рооr's, Moody's lnvestors Service и Fitch;
Writing off раrt and / or the entire amount of debt on the principal debt and / оr accrued interests;
Сеаsiпg of ассruаl interest оп а loan due to the deterioration of Ьоrrоwеr's financial condition (поп-
accrual);
Availability of information about the death of the Ьоrrоwеr (со-Ьоrrоwеr) of an individual;
purchase or creation of а financial instrument with а big discount that reflects the credit losses iпсurrеd;
Borrower's appeal to the соuгt With а Statement of reco8nition of its bankruptcy or filing а claim Ьу а
third раrtу to dесlаrе the ЬоrrоWеr bankrupt in accordance With the legislation of the Republic of
Uzbekistan and loans uпdеr court decision оr соuгt proceedings are uпdегwау (loans fоr which there are
соuгt decision dates iп the loan portfolio);
Recall of а license or other рrорегtу titles fоr implementation of business activities;
the disappearance of ап active market for this financial asset.
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The amount of expected credit loSSeS for loanS that аrе classified in Stage 1 and iп Stage 2 is determined оп а

collective basis. Fоr certain loans that аrе determined to Ье individually significant and аrе classified as Stage 1,

the aIlowance of expected credit losses is calculated individually using the rating outlook (positive, stable,
negative) assigned Ьу international ratin8 agencies and based оп the probability of default ("PD") and loss given

default ("LGD) according to the DefaUlt StUdy data from international rating agencies (S&P, Fitch, Moody's).

Fоr each individually significant Ьоrrоwеr iп Stage З, опе of the following rерауmепt Strategies iS determined

lnitiol rесоgпПоп of finonciol iпstrumелЬ. All other financial instruments аrе lnitially rесоrdеd at fair value plus
transaction costs, Fair value at initjal recognition iS best evidenced Ьу the transaction price. А gain оr loss оп initial
rесоgпitiоп is only recorded if there iS а difference between fair value and tranSaction рriсе which can Ье
evidenced Ьу other observable current market transactions in the same inStrument оr Ьу а valuation technique
whose inputs include опlу data from observable markets.

All purchases and sales offinancial assets that reqUire delivery Within the time frame established Ьу regulation or
market convention {"regular way" purchases and sales) аrе rесоrdеd at trade date, Which is the date оп which
the Grоuр commits to deiiver а financial asset. All other purchases аrе recognised When the entity becomeS а

рагtу to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Derecognition of fiпопсiоl ossets, The Group derecognises financial assets whеп (а) the assets are redeemed оr
the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise ехрirеd оr (Ь) the Group has transferred the rights to the cash
flows frОm the financial assets оr entered into а qualifying раss-thrоugh аrrапgеmепt while (i) also transferring
substantially all risks and rewards of оwпеrshiр of the asSets or (ii) пеithеr transferring поr retaining sUbstantially
а ll risks and rewards of ownersh ip, but not retaining сопtrоl. control is retained if the cou nterpa гtу does not have
the рrасtiсаl ability to sell the asset in its entirety to ап unrelated third party Without needing to impose
restrictions оп the saIe,

Modificotion опd derecognition of fiпопсiоl ossets,

А modification of а financial asset оссurs when the contractual terms gоvеrпiпg the cash flows of а financial asset
are rene8otiated Оr otherwise modified between inatial recognition апd maturity of the financial asset. Д
modification affects the amount апd/оr timing of the contractual cash flows either jmmediately or at а future
date. ln addition, the introduction оr adjUstment of existing covenants of ап existing loan would constitute а
modification even if these new оr adjUsted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately bUt may affect
the cash flows depending оп Whёthеr the covenant js or is not met (e,g. а change to the increase iп the interest
rаtе that arises When covenants are Ьrеасhеd),

The Group renegotiates loans to customers iп financial difficulty to maximize collection and minimize the risk of
default. А lоап fоrЬеаrапсе js granted in cases where although the Ьоrrоwеr made all reasonable efforts to рау
uПdеr the original contractual terms, there is а high risk of defau|t оr defaUlt has аlrеаdу happened and the
Ьоrrоwеr is expected to Ье able to meet the revised terms.
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- "ReStructuring" 5trategy: restructuring the loan, revising credit conditions and developing an action рlап that
сап allow the Ьоrrоwеr to rерау the loan;
- Strategy "Realization of collateral": liquidation of а loan Ьу selling collateral.
The choice of the most appropriate strategy is determined based on the indivldual situation of the Ьоrrоwеr, its
availabiIity and consent to соореrаtiоп, the availability of opportunities to restore activity, production оr the
possibility of eliminating the causes that caused losses апd the inability to 5ervice the debt, the availability of
funds from other business lines of the Ьоrrоwеr, value, condition of pledges regarding debt and other factors.
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The revised terms in most of the cases include ап extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of
the cash flows of the lоа п (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amou nt of cash flows d ue (рriпсiра l

and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants. The Grочр has ап established forbearance policy, which
applies fоr соrроrаtе and rеtаil lendin8.

When а financial asset is modified the Grоuр assesses whether this modification results iп derecognition. lп

ассоrdапсе With the Group'S policy а modification results in derecognition When it 8ives rise to SUbstantially
d ifferent termS. То determine if the modif ied terms аrе su bstantially d ifferent from the ori8inal contractual terms
the Group considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification аrе по lопgеr SPPI, сhап8е in
сurrепсу оr change of counterparty, the extent of сhапgе in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

lf these do not сlеаrlу indicate а sUbstantial modifjcation, then

А quantitative assessment iS реrfоrmеd to соmраrе the present value of the rеmаiпiпg contractual cash
flows under the original terms With the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts
discounted at the original effective intereSt,

lf the difference in present value is grеаtеr than 10% the Group deems the аrrапgеmепt is substantially different
leading to derecognition.

lП the case whеrе the financial asset is derecognized the loss аllоwапсе for ECL is rеmеаsurеd at the date of
derecognition to determine the net саrryiп8 amoUnt of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised
carrying amount and the fаir value of the new financial asset With the new terms will lead to а gain оr loSS оп
derecognition. Тhе пеw financial asset Will have а loss alIowance measured based оп 12_month EcL except in the
rаrе occasions where the new loan is considered to Ье originated credit-impaired asset. This applies опlу in the
case Whеrе the fair value of the new lоап is recognized at а Significant discou nt to its revised раr amount because
thеrе remains а high risk of default, which has not been reduced Ьу the modification.

Modiflcotion опd derecog nition of fiпопсiоl liobilities

The GrОuр derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations аrе discharged,
cancelled оr have expired, The d ifference between the саrryiпg а mou nt of the financial liability derecognized and
the consjderation paid and payable is recognized in profit оr loss.

з0

The Group monjtors credit riSk of modified financial assets Ьу evaluating qualitative and quantitative information,
Such aS if the Ьоrrоwеr is iп past dUe status u пdеr the пеW terms.

When the Group exchanges With the existin8 lепdеr one debt instrument into another one With Substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
reco8nition of а new financial liabiIity, similarly, the Grоuр accounts for substantial modification of terms of ап
eХistin8 liability оr рагt of it aS an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the reco8nition of а пеw
liability. lt is assumed that the terms аrе substantially different jf the discounted present valUe of the cash flows
u Пdеr the пеW terms, including апу fees paid net of any fees received and discounted usiпg the original effective
rate iS at least 10 реr cent different frоm the discounted present Value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. lf the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the саrryiпg amount of the
liability before the modification; and (2) the present vaiue of the cash flows after modification should Ье
recognised in profit оr loss as the modification gаiп оr loss Within оthеr gains and losses,
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Рrеmisеs опd еquiрmелl Рrеm ises and equipment аrе stated at cost, restated to the equivalent purchaSing роWеr
of the Uzbekistan Soum at 31 DесеmЬеr 2006 for assets acqUired prior to 1 .JanUary 2007, less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairment, whеrе required,

Costs of minor rераirs and maintenance аrе expensed when incurred. Cost of replacing major parts оr
components of premises and eqUipment itemS аrе capitalised and the replaced рагt iS retired.

lf impaired, premises and equipment аrе written down to the higher of their value in use оr fair value less costs
to sell, The decrease in саrryiпg amount iS charged to profit оr loss, Ап imраirmепt loss recognised for an asset
in рriоr уеаrs is rечеrsеd if there has Ьееп а change in the estimates used to determine the asset's чаluе in use
оr fair value less costs to sell,

Gajns and losses on disposals are determined Ьу comparing proceeds With саrryiп8 amount and аrе recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit оr loss and other comprehensive iпсоmе,

Depreciotion. Land and construction jn рrоgrеss аrе not depreciated. Depreciation of premises and equipment iS

calculated USing the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values очеr their estimated useful
lives:

Build ings and premises

Off ice and соmрutеr equipment
зз

5- 10

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Grоuр would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset Wеrе already of the аgе and in the condition expected
at the end of its useful life, The residual value of an asset js nil if the Grоuр expects to use the asset untilthe end
of its physicai life. The assets' residualvalues and useful lives аrе reviewed, and adjusted if аррrорriаtе, at each
end of the rероrtiпg period,

lntongible ossets. Тhе Group's intangible assets have finite useful Iives and рrimаrilу comprise capitalised
computer software. Acquired computer software licences аrе capitalised on the basis of the costs iпсчrrеd to
acquire and bring them to use. All other costs associated With compUter software, е.g, its maintenance, аrе
expensed when iпсurrеd. Capitalised computer software is amortised on а straight line basis очеr eХpected USeful
lives of five years.

The Group os О lessee. Тhе Grоuр applies а single recognitjon апd measurement approach for аll leases, except
for short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such а5 electronjc terminals
апd other). The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-Use assets rерrеsепtiп8
the right to use the underlyin8 assets.

Ri8ht-of-use assets

The Grочр recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less апу accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted fоr any remeasurement of lease liabjlities.

з1

usefu l lives in чеаrs
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The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at оr Ьеfоrе the commencement date less апу lease incentives received, Right-of-use assets
аге depreciated on а Straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease Iiabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to Ье made over the lease tеrm. Тhе lease payments include fixed payments (less any lease
incentives receivable), variable lease payments that depend оп an index оr а rаtе, and amounts expected to Ье
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of а purchase option
reasonably certain to Ье exercised Ьу the Grоuр and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term ref|ects exercising the option to terminate, VаriаЬlе lease payments that do not depend оп an index or а

rate аrе rесоgпisеd as expenses in the period in Which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Judgements related to the application of lERS ],6

Although, fоr majority of its lease a8reements thеrе is an option to extend Shогt term lease agreements at
maturity With new terms With the consent of both parries, the Management of the Grоuр considers that these
аgrееmепts fall u nder lFRS16 exemption available fоr shоrt-tеrm leases due to the fact that аgrееmепts are not
enforceable after the initial lease term dUe to insignificant economic penalties to Ье incurred Ьу both parties in
case the lease is not extended. AS such, the GrоUр applies the eХemption for short-term leases consistently on
tranSition and su bsequently.

Under lFRS 16, right-of-use assets Wеrе assessed for impairment in accordance with lAS Зб lmpairment of
Assets.

The ri8ht-of-USe assets and lease disclosed in Note 12 to these consolidated financial statements

Fiпопсе leose receivobles. Whеrе the Group is а lessor in а lease which transfers substantially all the riskS and
rewards incidentalto ownership to the lessee, the assets leased out are presented as а finance lease receivable
and саrriеd at the present valUe of the future lease раYmепtS. tiпапсе lеа5е receivables аrе initially recognised at
commencement (when the lease term begins) using а discount rate determined at inception (the еаrliеr of the
date of the leaSe аgrееmепt and the date of commitment Ьу the parties to the principal provisionS of the lease).

The difference between the gross receivable and the present value rерrеSепts uпеаrпеd finance income, This
income is recognised очеr the term of the lеа5е using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects а

constant periodic rаtе of rеtчrп.

lncremental costs directly attribUtable to negotiatin8 and аrrап8iпg the lease аrе inclUded in the initial
measurement of the fiпапсе iease rесеiчаЬ|е and rеdUсе the amount of income recognised оVеr the lease term,
tiпапсе iпсоmе from leases is recorded Within interest income in profit оr loss for the уеаr.

lmpairment losses аrе recognised in profit оr loss for the уеаr when iпсurrеd aS а result of опе от moTe events
("loss event5") that оссчrrеd after the jnitial recognition of finance lease receivables.

з2
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The Group uses the same principal criteria to determine Whether there iS objective evidence that an impairment
loss has occurred as for loans саrrjеd at amortised cost, lmраirmепt losses аrе recognised through an allowance
account to write down the receivables' net саrryiпg amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which
exclude future credit losses that hаче not Ьееп incurred) dlscounted at the interest rates implicit in the finance
leaSes. The estimated future cash floWS reflect the cash flows that may result from obtaining and selling the as5ets
SUbject to the lease.

Duе to other ЬопЬ. Amounts dUe to other banks аrе recorded when mопеу or other assets аrе advanced to the
Grоuр Ьу соuпtеrрагtу banks, The non-derivative liability is carried at amoгtised cost.

Сustоmеr оссоuпts. cuStomer accounts аrе non-derivative liabilitieS to individuals, state or corporate customerS
and аrе саrriеd at amoгtised cost.

Debt securities iп iýsue. Debt SecUritie5 iп issue inc|ude promiSSory notes, bonds, certificates of deposit and
debentures issued Ьу the Group. Debt securjties аrе stated at аmогtisеd cost,

Borrowings frоm gоvегппепtl stote опd iпЕrпоtiопоl Iinonciol institutioлs. The Вапk obtains lопg term financing
from government, State and international financial institutions at interest rates at Which such institutions
ordinarily lend in еmеrgiпg markets and which may Ье lower than rates at which the Bank could source the funds
from lоса l lenders. As а resUlt of thiS financing, the Bank is able to advance fu ndS at advantageous rates to Speciflc
customers Which are dеtеrmiпеd Ьу the government and active usuaily iп agricultural sector.

lпсоmе toxes. lncome taХes have been provlded for in the consolidated financial statements in ассоrdапсе With
legislation enacted оr substantively enacted Ьу the end of the reporting period. Тhе income taХ сhаrgе comprises
current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in profit оr loss fоr the уеаr, eХcept if it iS recognised in other
comprehensive income оr directly iп equity because it relates to transactions that аrе also reco8nised, in the
Same or а different period, in оthеr comprehensive income оr directly in equity,

Deferred income tax is provided using the Ьа lа псе sheet liability method for tax loss саrry fоrwагds and tem роrаry
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and lia bilitieS and their саrryiпg amou nts for financial reporting
purposes. ln accordance With the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes аrе not recorded for temporary
differences on initial recognition of ап asset оr а liability in а transaction other than а business combination if the
transaction, When initial|y recorded, affects neither accounting поr taxable profit.

Deferred tax balances аrе measured at tax rates enacted оr substantively enacted at the end of the rероrtiпg
period, which are expected to аррlу to the period when the temporary differences will rечеrsе or the tax loss
саrry forwards wiIl Ье utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted only within the individual companies
of the Grоuр.

зз

When а liability iS eХtinguished for no consideration, the fair value of the liability extinguished should Ье
recognised aS capital contribution iп the Statement of changes in eqUity.

Cu rrепt taХ i5 the amou nt eХpected to Ье paid to, or rесоVеrеd from, the taХation authorities in respect of taxable
profits or losses for the счrrепt апd prior periods, Taxable profits оr losses аrе based оп estimates if the
consolidated financial statements аrе authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes other than on income
аrе rесоrdеd Within administrative and other operating expenSeS,
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Uпсеftоiп tox positions. The Group's uncertain tax positions аrе reassessed Ьу management at the end of each
rероrtiпg period. Liabiljties are recorded fоr jncome taХ positions that are determined Ьу management as mоrе
likely than not to result in additional taxes Ьеiпg levied if the positions were to Ье challenged Ьу the tax
authorities. The assessment is based оп the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted оr Substantively
enacted Ьу the end of the rероrtiпg period, and any known сочrt оr other rulings оп such issues. Liabllities for
penalties, interest and taxes other than on income аrе recognised based оп management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obli8ations at the end of the rероrtiпg period.

Trode poyoble опd other liobilities, Trade payables and other liabilities аrе accrued when the counterparty has

реrfоrmеd its obligations under the contract and are саrriеd at аmогtisеd cost.

shore copitol. ordinary shares and non-redeemable рrеfеrепсе shares with discretjonary djvidends аrе both
classified aS equity. lncremental costs directly attributable to the iSsUe of new shares are 5hown in equity as а

deductjon, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fаir value of consideration received over the ра r va lue
of shares issued is recorded as shаrе рrеmium in equity.

Dividends. Dividends аrе rесоrdеd in equity in the реriоd iп which they аrе declared. Апу dividends declared after
the end of the rероrtiпg period and before the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue аrе
disclosed in the subsequent events note. The statutory accounting reports of the Grочр аrе the basis for profit
distribution and other approprjationS. Uzbek legislation identifieS retained earnings as the basis fоr profit
d istribution,
Transactions With shareholders in their capacity as shareholders are recorded Within equity.

lпсоmе ond ехрепsе rесоgпПоп.lпtеrеst income and expense а rе rесоrdеd for а ll debt instru ments on а n accrual
basis using the effective interest method, This method dеfеrs, as part of interest income оr expense, all fees paid
оr received between the рагtiеs to the contract that are an iпtе8rаl рагt of the effective jnterest rаtе, transaction
costs and all other premiums оr discounts.

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received оr paid Ьу the entity relatin8 to the
сrеаtiоп оr acquisition of а financial asset оr issuance of а financial liability, fоr example fees for evaluating
creditWoгthiness, evaluating and rесоrdiпg guarantees оr colIateral, negotiating the terms ofthe instrument and
for processing transaction documents. commitment fees received Ьу the Group to оrigiпаtе loans at market
interest rates аrе inte8ral to the effective interest rаtе if it is рrоЬаЬlе that the Grочр Will enter into а Specific
lending аrrапgеmепt and does поt eХpect to sell the resulting lоап shortly after ori8ination. The Group does not
designate loan commitments as financial liabilities at fair value through profit оr loss.

When collection of loans and other debt instruments become doubtful of collection, they аrе written down to the
present value of expected cash inflows and interest income is thereafter recorded for the unwinding of the present
value discount based on the asSet's effective interest rаtе which was used to meaSure the impairment loss.

Аll other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally rесоrdеd оп an accrual basis Ьу
rеfеrепсе to completion of the specific transaction assessed оп the basis of the actual sеrчiсе provided as а
рrороrtiоп of the total services to Ье provided. Loan Syndjcation fees аrе recognised as jncome when the
syndication has been completed and the Group retains по part of the loan package fоr itself, or retains а рагt at
the same effective interest rаtе aS for the оthеr participants.

з4

commissions and fees arisin8 from negotiating, оr participating in the negotiation of а transaction for а third
рагtу, SUch as the acqUisition of loans, shares or other Securities оr the purchase оr sale of businesses, and which
аrе еаrпеd оп execution of the underlying transaction, аrе recorded оп its completion.



tоr credit-impaired financial assets, the interest income i5 calculated Ьу applying the ElR to the amortised cost of
the credit-jmpaired financial assets (i.e. the grоss саrryiпg amount less the aIlowance for expected credit losses).

Fоrеigп сurrепсу trолslоtiол. The functiona l cu rrency of the Grоu р, which is the cu rrепсу of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates and the Group's presentation счrrепсу is the national сurrепсу of the
Republic of Uzbekistan, Uzbek Soum ("UZS").

Monetary assets and liabilities аrе translated into Group's functional сurrепсу at the official exchange rate ofthe
cBU at the end of respective rерогtiпg period.

Foreign exchange gains апd losses resulting frоm the Settlement of the transactions and frоm the tranSlation of
monetary assets а nd liabilitieS into Grou p'S functional cU rrепсу at уеаr-епd official exchange rates of the cBU а rе
recognised in profit оr loss. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in а foreign счrrепсу, including equiф
investments, аrе translated usin8 the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of
exchange rate сhап8еs оп поп-mопеtаry items measured at fair value in а foreign сurrепсу аrе recorded aS раrt
of the fair value gain оr loss.

At З], DесеmЬеr 2022 апd 2021, the principal rаtе of exchange used fоr translating fоrеigп сurrепсу balances
Was

31 December
2о22

31 December
2о21

UZSI 1 USD
UZSI 1 EUR
UZSI 1снt

11-,225,46
11,961.85
12,155.34

10,837.66
Lz,224.88
11,790.з2

oIfsetting. Financial assets and liabilities аrе offset and the net amount rероrtеd in the consolidated statement
of financial position опlу when there i5 а legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to either Settle оп а net basis, оr to rеаliSе the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Еоrпiпgs реr shore. Рrеfеrепсе shares are not rеdееmаЬlе, and are considered to Ье participating sha rеs, Еаrп ings

реr share аrе determined Ьу dividing the profit or loSS attribUtable to owners of the Grочр Ьу the weighted
average пumЬеr of paгticipating Shares outstanding during the rероrtiп8 уеаr,

Sto|f costs опd rеlоtеd сопtiЬUtiолs. Wa8es, Salaries, contributions to the to the RepUblic of Uzbekistan State
pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits аrе
accrued in the уеаr in which the associated services аrе rendered Ьу the employees of the Group. The Group has
по legal or constructive obligation to make pension оr Similar benefit payments beyond the payments to the
5tatUtory defined contribution scheme,

sеgmепt rероltiпg. Ореrаtiпg se8ments аrе reported in а mаппеr consistent With the iпtеrпаl rерогtiпg provided
to the Group's chief operating decis|on mаkеr. Se8ments Whose rечепUе, resUlt оr assets аrе ten реrсепt оr more
of all the segments аrе rероrtеd Separately.

4. critical accountinв estimates апd judgements iп applyin8 accounting policies

The рrераrаtiоп of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates апd
judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the rерогtеd amount of income and expenses during the rероrtiп8 year.

з5
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Management evaluates its estimates and judgements оп an опgоiп8 baSiS, Мапаgеmепt bases itS eStimates and

.judgments оп historical experience and оп various оthеr factors that аrе believed to Ье reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ frоm these estimates under different assumptions оr conditions. The
following estimates and jUdgments аrе considered important to the роrtrауаl of the Group's financial condition.

Вusiпеss mоdеl osseýsment Classification and measu rement of financial assets depend5 on the rеsч lts of the SP Pl

and the business model test, Тhе Group determines the business model at а level that reflects how groups of
financial assets аrе managed to8ether to achieve а раrtiсulаr business objective, This assessment includes
judgement rеflесtiпg all relevant evidence including how the реrfоrmапсе of the assets is evaluated and their
регfоrmапсе measured, the risks that affect the реrfоrmапсе of the assets and how these are managed апd how
the managers of the assets аrе compensated.

The Grочр monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost оr fair value through other comprehensive
income that аrе derecognized рriоr to their maturity to Understand the reason for their disposal and Whether the
reasons ате consistent With the objective of the business for which the asset WaS held. Monitorin8 is раrt of the
Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for Which the remaining financial assets аrе held
continues to Ье appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been а change in business model and

So а prospective change to the classification of those assets.

sigпПсопt increose of credit isk. As explained iп Note 3, EcL аrе measured as ап allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for Stage 1 assets, оr lifetime ECL assets for Stage 2 оr Stage З assets. Ап asset moves to Sta8e 2 When its

credit risk has increased Significantly since initial recognition. ln assessing whether the credit rjsk of ап asset has

Si8nificantly increased the Grоuр takes into account qUalitative and quantitative reaSonable and supportable
information.

Fоr treasury operations, the Bank calculates ECL оп а financlal asset based not only оп the current estimates of
the credit quality of the counterparty/issuer at the reportin8 date, but also taking into account possible

deterjoration of the financiaI condition due to the аdчеrsе mасrоесопоmiс factors of the coUnterparty's/isSuer's
environment in the future. ln particular, the level of EcL for treasury operations is affected Ьу the rating outlook
(positive, stable, negative) assigned Ьу international rаtiпg аgепсiеs, Which affects the probability of default
("PD"),

The key inputs used for measuring EcL are:

Probability of default (PD);

Loss given default (tGD); and
Exposure at default (EAD).

Probobility of dеfоиlt PD constitutes а key input iп measuring EcL. PD is ап estimate of the likelihood of default
очеr а given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of
future conditions,

PD for treasury operations is determined according to the Default Study from international rating аgепсiеs (S&P,

titch, Moody's), which publish tabular data With the values of the probabilities of default.

a

зб

Fоr bank loans, the calculation of EcL takes into account the possible estimated effects of changes in

macroeconomic раrаmеtеr5 on forecasted cash flows, migration of collective loans and collateral coverage.
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The probabilities of default аrе majntained up to date and аrе updated on а periodic basis as the default Statistics
are u pdated,

Loss Giуел Defoult. LGD iS an estimate of the loss arising оп defaUlt. lt is based оп the difference between the
contractUal caSh flows due and those that the lепdеr woUld eXpect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral.

LGD for treasury operations iS determined according to the Default Study data from international rating agencies
(S&P, Fitch, Moody's) and depends оп the type of debt оп the financial asset: senior secu rеd/u nsecu red,

5Ubordinated, 5очеrеi8п, lп addition, LGD may Ье adjusted if collateral is provided for the asset, aS Well as if there
are indications of impairment for the financial asset (Stage 2 оr Stage 3).

LGD for collectively assessed loans is calculated based оп ап estimate of the recoverability of debt iп case of the
pledged collateral 5аlе With а discount period that соrrеSропdS to the pled8ed collateral implementation termS.

Ехроsurе ot Defoult. EAD is an estimate of the exposure at а future defaUlt date, taking into account eХpected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, and eХpected
drawdowns оп committed facilities. The Group's modelling аррrоасh for EAD reflects expected changes in the
Ьаlапсе outstanding over the lifetime of the lоап exposure that аrе permitted Ьу the счrrепt contractual terms,
such as amoгtization profiles, еаrlу rерауmепt or overpayment, changes in utilization of undrawn commitments
and credit mitigation actions taken before default. The Grочр uses EAD mode15 that reflect the characteristics of
the portfolios.

The Grоuр measures EcL on ап individual basis, or оп а collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar
risk characteristics, The measurement of the loss allowance is based оп the present Value of the asset's expected
cash flows using the asset's original ElR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or а collective
Ьа s is.

Models опd оssumрfrЬлs used. The G rou р uses various models а nd assu mption5 in measu ring fair value of financia l

assets as well as in estimating ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the most appropriate model for each type
of asset, as well as for determining the aSsUmptions used in these models, including assumptions that relate to
key drivers of credit risk,

The allowances for EcL of financial assets in the consolidated financial statements have been determined on the
basjs of existin8 economic and political conditions. The Bank iS not in а position to predict What changes in

conditions will take рlасе iп Uzbekistan and what effect such changes might have оп the adequacy of the
allowances for ECL of financial assets in future уеаrs.

DUring the уеаr ended 31 December 2022, the Group's Ьоrrоwеrs continued to ехреrjепсе the impact of the
covlD-19 pandemic, Management of the Group condUcted eХtensive rehabilitation works оп new applications
during 2022 and the пumЬеr of restructurjngs decreased.

з1

Measurement of allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL"), Almostall sectors ofthe есопоmу of Uzbekistan,
both in terms of individuals and lеgаl entities, have Ьееп adversely affected Ьу the unprecedented economic and
social disruption resulting frоm СОVlD-19 which has led to significant government intervention5 and sчрроrt.
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As at З1 DесеmЬеr 2022, total outstanding Ьаlапсе of fоrЬеаriпg loans amounted to UZS 1,67З,298 million оr
approХimately 18% of the gross loan portfolio Which comprise 99% (UZS 1,,667,О76 million) of соrроrаtе loans,

including finance lease receivables and 1% (UZS 6,222 million) of loans to individuals (З1, December 2021:
1,709,1З9 million or approximately 20% of the gross lоап portfolio which comprise 94% (UZS 1,608,962 million)

of соrроrаtе loans, including finance lease receivables, 6% (UzS 100,177 million) of loans to individuals).

Anyfurther extensions requested Ьу Ьоrrоwеrs and permitted Ьу the CBU or other Gочеrпmепt authoritie5 wеrе
regarded Ьу the Grочр aS а trigger for lоап impairment and was considered Ьу the Group aS а condition of
possible revision of the loan lmpairment stage, taking into account all criteria established Ьу the Bank'S

methodology,

The carrying amount of the allowance for ECL of loans to customers as at З1 December 2022 апd З1 December
2021 is UZS 710,048 million and UZS ЗЗ6,748 million, respectively.

Тhе Management is closely monitoring the sеrviсiпg of the loan рогtfоliо and Updatjng the EcL measurement aS

mоrе information becomes available to support ап update, iпсоrроrаtiпg alternative economic scenarios,
Changes in judgements and aSSumptions could result in а material adjustment to those estimates in the neХt

rероrtiпg periods.

Deferred iпсоmе tox osset recognition. The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxes recoverable
through future deductions from taxable profits, and is recorded in the statement of financial position, Dеfеrrеd
income taХ assets ате recorded to the extent that realisation of the related taХ benefit is probable. The future
taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable iп the future are based оп а medium term
business plan рrераrеd Ьу management and extrapolated results thereafter. The business рlап is based оп
management expectation5 that are believed to Ье reasonable under the ciгcUmstances.

Voluotion of fiпопсiоl iпstrumепВ,Т he Group uses valuation techniqueS that include inputs that are not based оп
observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.

5. Application of new and revised lnternational Financial Reportin8 Standards (lFRSS)

New and revised lFБ Standards in issue but not yet effective.

At the date of authoriSation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and
revised ltRS Standards that have Ьееп issued but аrе not yet effective:

зв

Тох legislotion. Uzbekistan tax, currency and customs legislation is sUbject to Vаryiпg interpretations. Refer to
Note 2з,



New оr revised stondord оr interpretation

Applicoble to оппчоl
reporting periods

Ьеgiппiпg оп or ofter

Дmепdmепts to lДs 1 "classiJicotion oJ Liobilities as current or Nоп-счrrепt" (os part ol the
project to formulate Дппчаl lmрrочеmепts to lFRs 2010-2012 cycles).

дmепdmепts to lAs 8 - "Definition of дccounting Estimotes"
Дmепdmепts to lДs 1 опd lFRs Рrdсtiсе stotement 2 - "Disclosure of Дссочпtiпg Policies"
Дппчоl lmрrоvеmелts to /FRs stondords 2018-2О20:
Аmепdmепts to lДs 72 Deferred Тох Relating to Дssets опd Liobilities Ari'ing fгоm о single

тrопsосtiоп
Дmепdmепt to lFRs 70 апd lДS 28 sale or contribution of Asset' between оп lnvestor and its
Associote or Joint venture

1Jопчаry 202З
1Jonuory 202З
1Januory 202З

1 tanuory 2а2З
Dote to Ье determined

Ьу the lдsВ

The Group does not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will hаче а material impact on the
financial Statements of the Grоuр in future periods,

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as curTent оr non-curTent js based on rights that аrе in
existence at the епd of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected Ьу eХpectations about
whеthеr an entity Will ехеrсisе its right to defer settlement of а liability, explain that rights are jn existence if
covenants аrе complied With at the end of the rероrtiпg period, and introduce а definition of 'settlement'to
make clear that settlement rеfеr5 to the transfer to the сочпtеrраrtу of cash, equity instruments, оthеr assets or
Services,

The amendments аrе applied retrospectively for annual periods Ьеgiппiпg on оr after 1 JanUary 2023, With еаrlу
application permitted.

АmепdmепБ to lý 8 "Definition of Accountin8 Estimates". The changes to lAS 8 focus entirely on accounting
estimates and сlаrifу the following:

The definition of а change in accounting estimates is replaced With а definition of accounting
estimates;
Entlties develop accounting estimates if accounting policies reqUire item5 in financial statements to
Ье measured in а Way that involves measurement unceгtainty;
The Board clarifies that а сhапgе in accounting estimate that results from пеW information or new
developments is not the correction of an еrrоr;
А сhапgе in ап accounting estimate may affect опlу the current period's profit or loss, оr the profit
or loss of both the current period and future periods.

The amendments аrе effective for аппчаl periods beginning оп оr after 1January 202З and changes in accounting
policies and changes iп accounting estimates that occur оп оr after the start of that period. Еаrliеr application is
permitted,

1

2

з

4
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Amendments to lý 1 tlassification of Liabilities as Счrrепt or Nоп-счrrепС (as part of the project to fоrmчlаtе
АппUаl lmprovements to lFRs 201G2012 rycles). The amendments to lAS 1 affect only the presentation of
liabilities as сUrrепt оr поп-счrrепt in the statement of financial position and поt the amount or timing of
recognition of апу asset, liability, income оr eХpenses, or the information disclosed about those itemS.
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Amendments to lAS 1 and lFБ PGctice Statement 2 - "Disclosure ofAccounting Policies". DisclosU rе of AccoU nting
Policies (Amendments to lAS 1 and lFRS Practice Statement 2) amends lAS 1 iп the following ways:

Ап entity is now required to disclose its materjal accounting policy information instead of its
significa nt accou nting policieS;

Several раrаgrарhs аrе added to explain hоw an entity сап identify material accounting policy
information and to give examples of When accounting policy information is likely to Ье materia|;
The amendments clarify that ассочпtiпg policy information may Ье material because of its nature,
even if thе related amounts are immaterial;
The amendments clarify that accounting policy information iS material if users of ап entity'S financial
statements would need it to understand other material information in the financial statements; and
The amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information, such
information shall not obscure mаtеriаl accounting policy information.

ln addition, lFRS Practice Statement 2 has Ьееп amended Ьу adding guidance and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the 'four-step materiality process'to accounting policy information in оrdеr to
sчрроrt the amendments to lAS 1.

The amendments аrе applied prospectively. The amendments to lAS 1 аrе effective for annual periods beginning
оп оr after 1January 2023, Earlier application is permitted. once the entity applies the amendments to lAS 1, it
is а15о permitted to аррlу the amendments to lFRS Practice Statement 2.

Annual lmрrочеmепь to lFБ 2018-2021 cycles. The list of amendments includes amendments to the thrее
standards, as well as а n nual improvements to the Воаrd, which аrе changes that clarify the wording or eliminate
miпоr inconsistencies, omissionS оr contradictjons between the reqUirements in the standards,

The amendments to |FRS З Business Combinations update the reference in lFRS 3 to the conceptual
trаmеwоrk fоr Financial Statements Without changing the accounting requirements fоr а business
combination,
Amendments to lAS 16 Рrореrtу, Plant and Equipment prohibit deducting from the value of рrореrtу,
plant and eqUipment the amounts received from the sale of manufactured 8oods While рrераriпg the
asset for its intended use. lnstead, these sales revenue and related costs аrе recognized in profit оr loss.
АmепdmепБ to lAs З7 "Provisions, contin8ent LiabiljtieS and contingent ASsets" determine the costs to
Ье included in assessing whether the contract is опеrоus,
Annual improvements introduce minor amendments to lFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of lnternational
Financial Rероrtiпg Standards", ltRS 9 "tiпапсiаl lnstruments", lAS 41 "AgricUlture" and illustrative
examples ассоmрапуiпg lFRS 16 "Leases".

All amendments аrе effective on 1 January 202З, еаrlу application is permitted

Amendments to lAs 12 "Deferred Тах Relating to Assets and Liabilities Arising from а Sin8le Transaction". The
amendments introduce а fUrther eХception frоm the jnitial rесоgпitiоп eХemption, Under the amendments, an
entity does not аррlу the initial recognition exemption fоr transactions that give risе to equal taxable and
dedUctible temporary differences.

Depending оп the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible tеmроrаry differences may arise on initial
recognjtion of ап asset and liability in а transaction that is not а business comblnatjon and affects neither
accounting поr taxable profit. Fоr example, this may arise upon recognition of а lease liability and the
corresponding ri8ht-of-use asset applying lFRS 16 at the commencement date of а lease. Following the
amendments to lAS 12, ап entity is required to rесоgпisе the related deferred tax asset and liability, With the

4а
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reco8njtion of апу dеfеrrеd tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in lAS 12. The Воаrd also adds ап
illUstrative example to lAS 12 that explains how the amendments are applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur оп or after the Ьеgiппiпg of the earliest соmраrаtiче period

рrеSепtеd, ln addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity recognises:
. А deferred tax asset (to the eХtent that it is рrоЬаЬlе that taxable profit Will Ье available against which

the deductible temporary difference сап Ье utilised) and а deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with:
. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities;
. Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amountS reco8nised as

рагt of the cost of the related asseu

The cUmUlative effect of initially applying the amendments as ап adjustment to the openin8 Ьаlапсе of
retained earnin8s (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

The amendments аrе effective fоr аппuаl rероrtiпg реriоds Ьеgiппiпg оп оr after 1 January 202З, With еаrliеr
application permitted.

Amendment to |FRS 10 and lAS 28 Sale or contribution of Дsets between an lnvestor and its Дsociate or Joint
venture. The amendments to ltRs 10 and lAs 28 deal with situations whеrе there is а sale оr contribution of
assets between ап investor and jts associate оr joint Venture. Specifically, the amendments state that 8ains оr
losses resulting from the loss of control of а Subsidiary that does not contain а business iп а transaction With ап
associate оr а joint venture that is accounted fоr using the equity method, аrе recognized in the parent's profit
оr loss опlу to the extent of the unrelated investorS' interests in that associate оr joint ventu rе.

Similarly, gains and losses resuIting from the remeasurement of investments retained in апу former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or а joint Venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair чаlче аrе
recognized in the former parent's profit or loss опlу to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new
aSsociate оr joint ventUre.

6, Restatement

ln 2022, the Grou p's ma nagement revisited the accou ntin8 of guarantees issued to the borrowers u nder financing
agreements With lcD and lТFС. Ассоrdiпg to the financing agreements the Bank acts aS an agent for lCD and lТFС
and its Ьоrrоwеrs. Each disbursement of funds Ьу lCD and lТtС to the Ьоrrоwеrs are sесчrеd Ьу the guarantees
issued Ьу the Bank and recognized as off Ьаlапсе (Note 29). As at 31 DесеmЬеr 202]. the Bank has breached
financial covenants set Ьу lcD and lТFС financing аgrееmепts. As а result the Management considered to classify
these funds as оп demand, То ргочidе а better Understanding of their nature to the чsеrs of the consolidated
financial Statements, the Mana8ement restated itS "Loans and adVances to customer5" liпе item and "Borrowings
from government, State and lпtеrпаl Financial lnstitutions" line jtem in the consolidated statement of financial
position Ьу grоssiп8 up the guаrапtееs from off Ьаlапсе to оп Ьаlапсе (Note 10 and 17). The related disclosure
of contingencies and commitments WaS restated (Note 29).

4-],

The effective date of the amendments has yet to Ье set Ьу the Board; however, еаrllеr application of the
amendments is permitted. The Management of the Bank anticipate that the application of these amendments
may have ап impact оп the Group's consolidated financialstatements in future periods should such transactions
arjSe.
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As а result of the rеtrоsресtiче соrrесtiоп of еrrоr and for the purpose of consistency in presentation the
соmраrаtiче information was restated.ln ассоrdапсе with lAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Еrrоrs" the above reclassification and restatement was accounted retrospectively.

Notes Д previously

rероrtеdlп millions of Uzbekiston Soums Adjustments д restated

Loans and advances to customers 10 8,105,890 168,7 15 8,214,605

TOTALASSПS 10,695,575 168,715 10,864,290

Borrowings frоm gочеrпmепt, state and
international financia l institutions" 17 5,505,466 168,7 15 5,674,18t

ToTAL L|ABlLlTlES 9,052,405 168,715 9,221,72о
ToTAL LlABlLlTlES AND EQUITY 10,695,575 168,715 10,864,290

NoteS Д previously
reportedlп millions of Uzbekiston Soums Adjustments As restated

Guarantees issued 29 526,1,82 (168,715) з57,467

Total gross guarantees issued 526,182 (168,715) з57,467
Total credit related commitmenъ 558,464

7. Cash and cash equivalents

31December
2о22

31 December
2ozl

cash on hand
Correspondent accounts and overnight
placements with оthеr banks

Cash balances with the CBU (оthеr than mandatory rеsеrvе deposits)
Placements with оthеr banks with original maturities of less

than three months

614,901

514,t22
з19,816

18,000

46з,475

зз2,01з
з59,696

100,000

(188) (2з0)Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Total cash and cash equivalenъ 1,466,651 1,,254,954

42

727,179 (168,715)

lп milliопs of Uzbekiston Sоums



The analysis of credit quality and credit ratings of cash and cash equivalents aS at З]. DесеmЬеr 2022 js as
follows:

cash Ьаlапсеs with
the cBU (other than
mandatory reserve

deposits)

514,122

correspondent
accounts and

overnight
placements with

other banlý

placements with
other banlý with

оrigiпаl maturities of
less thап three

months

з1,406
160,425
7з,656
з5,5з5
2,146

16,6з4
I4

18,000

Total

574,L22
з1,406

160,425
7з,656

255,5з5
2,].46

з4,6з4
74

Totalcash and cash eqUivalents,
excluding cash оп hand, gross 51,4,722 з19,816 18,000

Le5Si allowa псе for expected
credit losses (106) l22) (60) (188)

Totalcash апd cash equivalents,
excluding cash оп hand 514,016 з19,794 |7,94о 851,750

lп millions of Uzbekiston soums

cash balances with
the cBU (other

than mandatory
rеsеrче deposits)

Соrrеsропdепt
accounts апd overni8ht
placemenв With other

Ьап ks

placements with other
banlG With original

maturities of less than
three months Tota l

- central bank of uzbekistan
_ АА_ (s&P)
_ А_ (Fitch)
- В1 (Moody's)
- вв- (S&P)

- ВВВ (Fitch)
- в {S&P)
- В (Fitch)

- ВааЗ (Moody's)

з59,696
з

66,106
I07 ,7 40

8.869
1о2,7 42

2,1,44

44,4о9

70,000

з0,000

з59,696
3

66,106
777,74о

8,869
7о2,742

2,].44
30,000
44,4о9

Total cash and cash
equivalents, excluding
cash оп hand, вrоss з59,696 зз2,01з 100,000 791,7о9

(6) |r42) (82) (230)

Total cash and cash
eqUivalents, excluding
cash оп hand зз1,871
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lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums

- сепtгаl bank of uzbekistan
- А1 (Moody'S)
- Ва3 (Moody's)
- ВВ- (Fitch)

- В1 {Moody's)
- в+ (5&р)
- В2 {Moody's)
- Unrated

851,938

The analysis of credjt quality and credit ratings of cash and cash aS at З1 December 2021 is as follows:

Less: аllоwапсе for expected
credit losses

99,918 791'479з59,690
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The analysis of credit quality of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

lп millions of Llzbekiston Soums
З1 December

2о22
31 December

2o2t

Stage 1

Stage З

851,924
14

797,709

Total cash and cash equivalents, gross 851,938 79L,709

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (188) (2з0)

Total cash and cash equivalents 851,750 791,,479

Fоr the balances with the CBU, the quality categories аrе determined based оп the sovereign rating ВВ-
(as at 31 December 2021: ВВ-) set Ьу international rating agencies.

Gеоgrарhiсаl and interest rаtе analysis of cash and cash equivalents аrе disclosed iп Note 26, lпfоrmаtiоп on
related раrtу balances is disclosed iп Note 26.

8. Due from other banks

lп milliопs of Uzbekiston Soums
31 DесеmЬеr

2о22
31DесеmЬеr

2o2t

Placements with other banks with original maturities of mоrе
than thrее months

Mandatory minimum rеsеrче deposit with Сепtrаl Bank of Uzbekistan
Restricted cash

зз4,804
26,з22

865

401,044
24,8з4

1,590

Less: allowance fоr expected credit losses (2,845) (2,58з)

з59,146 424,885

The mandatory minimum rеsеrче deposit with CBU represents non-interest Ьеаriпg deposits held iп accordance
with CBU instructions. The Grоuр does not have the right to use these deposits for the рчrроsеs of funding its
own activities. Fоr related accounting policy, rеfеr to Note З.

Restricted cash represents V|SA and МаstеrСаrd guаrапtее deposit accounts with local banks. The Grоuр does
not have the right to use these funds for the рurроsе of funding its own activities.

Amounts due frоm other banks аrе not collateralised.

44

Total due frоm оthеr banks
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Analysis Ьу credit quality of amounts due frоm other banks outstanding as at З1 December 2022 is as follows:

lп millions of
uzbekistan soums

placements with other
banks With оrigiпаl
maturities of mоrе
than thrее months

Mandatory
minimum reserve
deposit with cBU

Restricted
cash Tota l

- central bank of uzbekistan
- ВаЗ (Moody's)
- ВВ- (Fitch)
- В2 (Moody'S)
- В1 (Moody's)
- в+ {s&P)

26,з)2 26,з2z
92,298
|4,5з7
59,000

169,150
684

92,298
14,з66
59,000

169,140

171

10
684

тоъl due from other banks,

Less: аllоwапсе for expected credit losses \2,828) (17)

s з61,991

(2,845)

Total due frоm other banký зз1,976 з59,146

Analysis Ьу credit qUality of amounts due from other banks outstanding as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2021 is as follows

рlасеmепts with other
banks with original
maturities of more
than three months

Mandatory minimum Restriсted
cashlп millions о uzbekiston soums

- сепtrаl bank of uzbekistan
- ВВ- (Fitch)
- В1 (Moody's)
- в {s&P)

reserve de it with cBU

24,8з4
1,028

10
552

Total

24,8з4
80,811

з27,211
552

79,78з
з21,,261,

401,м4 24,8з4 1,590 427,468

Less: allowance fоr expected credit loSSes {2,560) \22) (1) {2,58з)

Total due from other banks з98,484 24,812 1,589 424,885

tоr the balances With the CBU, the quality categories are determined baSed оп the sоVеrеi8п ratin8 ВВ-
(as at 31 December 2021: ВВ-) Set Ьу international ratin8 aвencies.

The analysis of credit quality and credit ratings of due frоm оthеr banks i5 presented in the table beloW

lп millions of Uzbekistoл sourns
з1 December

2о22
з1 December

2о27

Stage 1 з61,991

Total due from banks, gross з61,991 427,46а

Less: allowance for expected credjt loSSeS (2,845) (2,58з)

Total due frоm banks 359,146 424,885

Geographical and interest rаtе analysis of due from other banks аrе disclosed in Note 2б. lnformation оп related

раrtу balances is disclosed in Note з0.
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з34,8м 26,з22 865

26,305 865

Total due from other Ьапlс, gross

427,468
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9. Debt securities of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan at amortised cost

lп millions of Uzbekistan Soums о//о Maturity
31 December

2о22
31 DесеmЬеr

2о27

Bonds of the central bank of the
Republic of Uzbekistan
Government bonds of the Ministry of Fiпапсе
of the Republic of Uzbekistan

15%-16%

15-16о/о

осtоЬеr 2022-
FеЬruаrу 202З

NочеmЬеr 2022-
June 202З

31з,951

56,96з

з49,487

5,500

Less - Allowance for expected credit losses (428) (з81)

Total Debt securities з70,486 354,606

Bonds of the Сепtrаl bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan аrе short-term securities denominated in UZS, issued at
а discount to face value of UZS 1,000 million and with maturities of 45 to 90 days.

Government bonds of the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan аrе securities denominated in

Uzbekistan Soums issued at а discount to face value of UZS 1,000 million and with maturity of 182 days.

As at З1 DесеmЬеr 2022 апd 2021, попе of debt securities of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan at
amortised cost wеrе pledged as соllаtегаl against borrowings of the Grоuр.

10. Loans and advances to customeБ
З1 DесеmЬеr

2о22
31 December

lп millions uzbekiston sоums

Соrроrаtе loans, including finance lease receivables
Loans to individuals
Loans to individual епtrерrепеurs

2o2t

8,з09,678
1,,64о,812

80,з04

7,з59,з47
t,I75,767

16,2з9

Total loans and advances to customers, gross 10,030,794 8,611,з53

Less - Allowance fоr expected сгеdit losses (710,048) (336,748)

Total loans and advances to customers 9,з2о,746 8,274,6о5

As at З]. December 2022, соrроrаtе loans include finance lease rесеiчаЬlеs of UZS 27,4tЗ million
(З1 DесеmЬег 2021, UZS 8,849 million). Net investment in finance lease is collateralised Ьу the equipment leased.
The Grоuр is not permitted to sеllоr pledge the collateral in the absence of default Ьу the lessee.

As at З]. DесеmЬеr 2О22, the Grоuр had 10 largest Ьоrrоwеrs with the total aggregate amount of
UZS З,З11,554 million (2O2t: UZS 2,68З,291 million) or ЗЗ% of the gross lоап portfolio (202t: З2%).
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з1 December
2о22

31 DесеmЬеr
2021(Restated)

sta8e 1 (12-month EcL)
Stage 2 (tifetime EcL)
stage З (Lifetime EcL)

6,184,480
2,5з2,4оо
1,зlз,914

7,1,56,296
807,192
647,865

Total lоапs апd advances to
customeБ, grоss 10,030,794 8,611,з53

(710,048) (зз6,748)

Total loans and advances to cuýtomers 9,з2о,746

The table below summarizes the grоss carrying amounts of loans and advances to customers analysed Ьу type
of collateral obtained Ьу the Group aS at З1 December 2022:

lп millions oJ Uzbeklston Soums

corporate loanS,
including fiпапсе
lease receivables

Loans to
individuals -

сопsчmеr loans

Lоап5 to
individuals -

епtrерrепеurs Total

LoanS collateraliSed Ьу:

- real estate
- insUrance
- equipment and inventory
- vehicles
- other assets
- cash deposits
LoanS gUaranteed ЬY other partieS*

LJnsecured loans

2,922,825
бз8,618
508,669
188,519
з1,477
4,777

з,995,2з1
19,562

24,045
26,41t

з,22\

25,551
1,010

з,518,101
1,08з,112

508,669
з65,з21
з1,557
4,9з5

4,49t,677
27,428

17з,581
80

158
470,88з

6,856

Total loans and advances
to customers, 8ross 8,з09,678 1,640,812 80,з04 10,0з0,794

LeSs - АllоWапсе fol expected credit
losses (649,998) (5з,048) i7,002) (710,048)

7,659,680 t,587,7Ф 7з,зо2 9,з2о,746

*Loons gUоrопtееd Ьу other porties iпсlчdе оmоUпt of lоопs issued uпdеr guorontee of the Stote fчпd Ior suрроrt
of е пtrер rе п е u rsh ip о ctivitie s,

41

LesS - АllоWапсе for expected credit losses

8,274,6о5

57 7,2з7
418,02з

Total loans and advances to customeБ
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lnformation about collateral at З1 December 2021 (Re5tated) is as follows

lп millions ol Uzbekiston soums

corporate loans,
including finance
lease receivables

Loans to
individuals -

сопsчmеr
loans

Loans to individuals -

епtrерrепеUrs Tota l

Loans collaterali5ed Ьу:

- rеаl estate
- eqUipment and inventory
- other assets
- insUrance
- vehicles
- cash deposits
LoanS gUaranteed Ьу other parties

unsecured loans

2,544,о22

58з,887
555,з97
467,44з
2з6,109

7,11,з

2,942,854
22,522

426,зо2

1з8
228,105

199,518
154

з27,572
з8

24,9з5
92

20,0з4
22,589
7,74з

1,,446

2,995,259
58з,979
575,569

7L8,\з?
442,77о

7,267

з,265,812
zz,5ф

Total loans and аdчапсеs
to customers, grosý 7,з59,з47 t,L75,767 76,2з9 8,611,з5з

LeSs - AlIowance for expected credit
losses {з08,650) |22,415) (5,62з) (зз6,748)

7,050,697 7,L5з,292 70,616 8,274,6о5

The table below summarizes carrying value of loans and advances to customers analysed Ьу economic sector
concentration5

З1 December 2022 З1 December 2021 (Restated)
lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums amount % amoUnt %

ManUfacturing
con5tructioл
AgricUltUre
Моrtgаgе, сопsчmеr and other lоапs to
individuals

Trade and services
Тrап5роrt апd communication
IndividUal Entrepreneurs

2,6о5,625
2,з87,060
7,77о,з41

26
24
18

1,798,96з
2,2з8,94з
1,,472,641

7,77 5,767
7,660,772

188,028
7 6,2з9

21

26
17

1,4

19
2

1

1,640,812
1,408,24з

1з8,409
80,з04

6
4
1

1

1

1

Total loans and advances to customers, 8ross 8,611,з5з 100

As at З]. DесеmЬеr 2022, mort8a8e, consumer and other loans to individuals for the amount UZS 176,435 million
(2021: UZS 98,004 million) wеrе pledged as collateral against Ьоrrоwiпgs from the JSС "Моrtgаgе Refinancing
Company of Uzbekistan" in Note 17,

The tables below analyse information about the significant changes in the grоss саrryiпg amount of loans and
advances to customers aS at з], DесеmЬеr 2022:
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Total loans and advances to
customeБ

10,0з0,794 100
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NoTEs то тнЕ coNsoLlDдTED FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FoR тнЕ YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Loans and advances to customeБ

stage 1

12-month EcL
stage 2

Lifetime EcL
Stage З

Lifetime EcL Totai

Grоss саrryiп8 аmочпt as
at 1January 2022 7,0з1,570 807,191 60з,877 8,442,6з8

chan8es in the gross саrryiпg amount
- Тrапsfеr from Stage 1

- Transfer from Stage 2

- ТrапSfеr from Stage З
- chan8es due to modifications that did
not reSUlt in derecognition

NeW assets isSued оr acquired
Financial assets that have Ьееп

derecognised
Foreign exchange differences
and other movements

written off assets

|2,286,797l
187,545

2,286,797

|1,2з4,74з\
170,866

667,о4з

(199,445)

?а Бq1

1,,о47 ,798
(170,866)

184,75з

(2з8,161)

14,585

|I27 ,472\

(184,2з4)

2,884,7Iз

(1,124,198)

1з9,з47

(727,472|

Groýs саrryiп8 amount as
at з1 December 2022 10,0з0,794

LosS аllоwапсе as at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2022 (72,595) (315,773) (321,680) (710,048)

*The line "Changes due to modifications that did not resu|t in derecognition" represents changes in the gross
саrryiпg amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost issued in рriоr periods Which have not been fully
repaid duriпg 2022, апd transfers of new issued fjnancial assets measured at amoгtised cost between stages.
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(1,0з6,0з0)

2,884,71з

(686,592)

90,071

6,184,480 2,5з2,400 1,зlз,914
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FоRтнЕ YEAR ENDED з7 DEаEMBER 2022

As at З]. DесеmЬеr 2021 (Restated)

Loans and advances to customers

Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2

Lifetime ECL
Staвe 3

Lifetime ECL Total

Gross саrryiпg amount as
at 1 January 2021 5,з07,958 1,209,08з 496,597 7,01з,6з8

Changes in the gross carrying amount
- Transfer frоm stage 1

- Тrапsfеr frоm stage 2

- Тrапsfеr from stage З

- Changes due to modifications that did
not result iп derecognition
New assets issued оr acquired
Financial assets that have Ьееп

derecognised
tоrеigп exchange differences
and оthеr movements

(656,540)

791,,546

(452,2з1)

2,62з,000

(563,429)

105,992

656,540
(1,209,786)

22з,958

122,764

(272,042)

16,675

4t8,24o
(223,958)

79,907

(134,456)

11,535

(249,560)

2,62з,000

(909,927)

Lз4,2о2

Gross саrryiпg amount as

at 31 December 2о21 7,156,296 8o7,192 647,865 8,611,з5з

Loss allowance а5 at
31 December 2021 (102,м6) (105,654) (129,048) (3з6,748)

Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Lifetime ECL

Stage 3
Lifetime ECL Total

Loss аllоwапсе for ECL as at
1 January 2022 102,046 105,654 129,048 зз6,748

Changes iп the loss аllоwапсе
- Тrапsfеr from stage 1

- Тrапsfеr frоm stage 2

- Тrапsfеr frоm stage З

lncreases due to change in credit risk
Decreases due to change in credit risk
-New assets issued оr acquired
Fiпапсiаl assets that have been

derecognised
Changes iп models/risk parameters
tоrеigп excha nge differences
and other movements

written off assets

(5з,104)

24,908

(20,14з)

165,964

(tt,462|
( 1з6,172)

558

53,104
(7з,з68)
24,51о

168,562
(7,040)

(22,t48)
64,8з2

1,66]

48,460
(24,510)

з06,7t2

|74,46о)
65,871

(1,969)

(127,472)

475,274
(27,18з)

165,964

(108,070)
(5,469)

256

(\27,472)

Loss allowance for ECL as at
31 DесеmЬеr 2022 72,595 зL5,77з з21,680 710,(и8

+The line "financial assets that have Ьееп derecognised" represent financial assets that have Ьееп rераid
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The tables below analyse information about the significant changes in the expected credit loss of loans and
advances to customers as at 31 December 2О22:

Loans and advances to customeБ
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Loans and advances to customers

Stage 1

12-month EcL
staвe 2

Lifetime EcL
sta8e З

Lifetime EcL Tota l

Loss аllоwапсе for ECL as at
1January 2021 61,668 100,455 194,155

Сhапgеs iп the loss allowance
- Transfer frоm Sta8e 1

Transfer from stage 2
- Transfer from Sta8e З
lncreases due to сhапgе in credit risk
Decreases due to сhапgе in credit risk
-NeW aSsets issued оr acquired
Financial assets that have Ьееп

derecogniSed
Сhапgеs in modelS/riSk раrа meters
Fоrеigп exchange differences
and other movements

(5,896)

48,789

(з 1,з82)
бз,O0з

(з,614)

з 1,989

(з2,875 )

5,896

{6з,872)
з4,042
45,6зб
(5,4з8)

(10,674)

18,688

19,708

15,08з
(з4,042)

60,696

(з0,40з)
11,709

5,550

106,зз2
(з6,820)

бз,O0з

(44,691)

62,з86

|7,617\

LosS allowance for EcL as at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2021 102,046 105,654 129,048 зз6,748

The information оп transfers above reflects the migration of financial assets measured at amortised cost from
their initial stage (оr the stаgе aS at the beginning of the rероrtiпg date) to the 5ta8e they Wеrе in aS at the
rероrtiпg date.

This information does not reflect the intermediate stage that the financial assets measured at amortised cost
could Ье assigned to throughout the rерогtiп8 period.
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As at 31 DесеmЬеr 2021:

з2,оз2
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Analysis Ьу credit quality of loans outstanding as at 31 December 2О22 is as follows.

Соrроrаtе loans,
including finance
lease receivables

Loans to individuals
- consumer loans

Loans to
individuals -

lп millions uzbekiston 5oums

Not past due loans
past due loans:

- less than З0 days overdue

- 31 to 90 days overdue

- 91 to 180 days overdue

- 181 to З60 days overdue

- очеr 360 days overdue

з,786,601

471,,1,44

905,087

106,зз9

61,099

22,1з5

L,477,L95

60,814

54,9t7

23,597

)) q)q

1,360

пеUrS

м,424

Total

5,з28,z2о

536,840

968,985

1з0,825

84,9зб

2з,7L5

е

4,882

8,981

889

908

220

Total past due loans 1,565,804 16з,617 15,880 7,745,зо]-
Total loans that аrе collectively
assessed fоr imраirmепt 5,з52,405 t,ilo,8L2 80,з(и 7,о7з,52t

Not past due lоапs
past due loans:

- less than З0 days очеrduе

- 31 to 90 days overdue

- 181 to З60 days overdue

- over З60 days overdue

2,792,051,

60,180

67,656

з7,з86

2,792,o5I

60,180

67,656

37,з86

Total due loans

Total loans that аrе individually
assessed for impairment 2,957,27з

165,222

2,957,27з
Total lоапs and advances to
customeБ 8,з09,678 1,640,812 80,3(и 10,0з0,794

- lmpairment provisions
assessed on а collective basis

- lmpairment provisions for
individually impaired loans

(598,917)

(51,081)

(5з,048) (7,002) (658,967)

(51,081)

Less al|owance fоr expected
credit losses (649,998) (5з,048) (7,002) (710,048)

Total loans and advances to
customeБ 7,659,680 t,587,7il 7з,зо2 9,з2о,746
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Analysis Ьу credit quality of loans outstanding as at 31 December 2021 (Restated) is as follows

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums

Соrроrаtе loans,
including fiпапсе
lease receivables

Loans to
individuals -

сопsчmеr loans

Loans to
individuals -

епtrерrепеUrs Total

Not past due loans
past due loans:

- less than 30 days overdue

- 3]. to 90 days overdue

- 91 to 180 days overdue

- 181 to З60 days overdue

- очеr З60 days overdue

4,42I,69L

181,255

27з,452

55,652

48,508

2,284

L,ф8,927

з5,25-7

62,4з0

\5,464

\2,687

1,002

62,199

6,246

6,1lб
155

1,,497

26

5,5з2,817

222,758

з41,998

7L,27L

62,692

з,з72

Total past due loans 561,151 126,840 14,(и0 7о2,оз7
Total loans that аrе collectively
assessed for impairment

4,982,842 7,175,767 76,2з9 6,2з4,u8

Not past due loans
past due loans:

- less than З0 days overdue

- 91 to 180 days overdue

- 181 to З60 days overdue

- очеr 360 days overdue

2,21з,595

28,008

7з,888

з3,718

27,296

2,2!з,595

28,008

73,888

зз,718

27,296

Total past due loans 162,910 - - 162,910

Total loans that аrе individually
assessed for impairment 2,з76,505 2,з76,505

Total loans and advances to
cuStomeБ 7,з59,з47 1,,175,767 76,2з9 8,б1l,з53

- lmраirmепt provisions
assessed on а collective basis

- lmpairment provisions for
individually impaired loans

(296,075)

|12,575)

(22,475) (5,62з) (з24,77з|

(12,575)

Less allowance for expected credit
losses (з08,650) (22,475l (5,62з) (3з6,748)

Total loans and advances to
cuStomeБ 7,050,697 I,75з,292 70,616 8,274,6о5

lnterest rate analysis of loans and advances to счstоmегs and related раrtу balances аrе disclosed in Note 26 and
Note 30 respectively.

5з
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11. Financial assets at fair value throu8h other comprehensive iпсоmе

As at З1 December 2022 and 2021, the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income аrе
presented as follows:

country of 31 DесеmЬеr
2о22

з1 December
2о2!Name

lSc UzKDB
lSc Моrt8аgе Refinancing company of
uzbekistan

other

Nature of business rе tion

Financialservices uzbekistan

Financialservices

оthеr

uzbekistan

uzbekistan

25,з57

з,з67

\07

21,,892

з,000

175

Totalfinancial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 28,8з1 25,067

The fаir value of financial assets at fair value through оthеr comprehensive income were determined as the
present value of future dividends Ьу assuming dividend growth rаtе of zero реr аппчm. The Management built
its expectation based on рrечiочs experience of dividends recejved оп financial assets at fаir value through other
comprehensive income over multiple уеаrs, and accordingiy calculated the value using the аVеrа8е rаtе of return
оп investments. Management believes that dividend discount аррrоасh accurately reflects the fair value ofthese
securities.

As at 31 December 2022, revaluation rеsеrче of fina ncial assets at fair value throu8h оthеr com prehensive iпсоmе
amounted to UZS 3,642 million less tax effect of UZS 728 million.

As at 3 ], Decembe r 2О22 апd 2021, попе of the equ ity investment were pledged as collateral against borrowings
of the Group.
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12. Premises, equipment and intan8ible assets

lп rrlillions о|
UZbeki'ton sочm5

Buildings off се and
and computer

premises equipment

constrUc-
tion in

рrоgrе5s

Total

рrеmisеs апd
equipment

СоmрUtеr
Sоftwаге

licenses
Right-of -

use assets

cost at
з1 DесеmЬег 2020

Depreciation/
amort]Sation charge

65,676

(14,701)

160,21з

(52,007)

1з,986 2з9,875

(66,708)

5,17-7

|7,217)

16,678

\2,926)

261,7з0

(70,851)

Саrryiп8 amount at З1
DесеmЬеr 2020

50,975 108,206 1з,986 77з,161 з,960 7з,752 190,879

AdditionS
Disposals
Net transfers
Depreciation/amorti5ation
сhаrgе (Note 22)

67,541

l72)
4,з87

64,4о2
(470)

588

17,198

(зз,491)

1,49,1,41

(542)
(28,516)

2з,080
(2)

28,516

17з,901
(544)

(з,606) (27,60з) (з1,209) (891) |1,,о17) (зз,177)

Саrrylпg amount at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2021

779,225 145,12з {2,307) 26aм1 54,66з 14з61 з31,065

cost at з1 December
2о21
Accumulated
depreciation/

amortisation

1,з7,5з2 224,1зз

(18,з07) (79,610)

(2,з07) з59.958 56,771 18.з64 4з5,09з

(97,917) (2,108) (4,00з) (104,028)

Саrryiп8 amount at
з1 December 2021 1r9,22s 145,12з (2,з07) 262,о41 5466з 14з61 зз1,065

Addition5
Disposals
Net trапsfеrs
Dергесiаtiоп/аmогti5аtiоп
сhаr8е (Note 22)

з4,296
(261)

2з,581

2з,765
(1,189)
(567)

96,з90

(25,198)

154,451
(1,450)

\2,184I

(з9,10з)

11,з16

2,1,84

(6,580)

166,з17
(1,450)

610

(6,691) lз2,412) (1,679) |41,з62)

Саrryiпg amount at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2022

170,150 7з4,72о 68,885 з7з,755 61,58з |з,ъ2 4,4а,630

cost at
з1 DесеmЬег 2022

Accumulated
depгeciation/

amortisation

195,148 246,742

(24,998) \I\2,o22)

68,885 51,о,775 7о,271 1а,974 600,020

(1з7,020) (8,688) (5,682) (151,з90)

Сагryiпg аmочпt at
з1 December 2022 170,150 7з4,12о 68,885 з7з,755 61,58з 7з,292 448,6з0

As at З1, December 2О22 апd 2021, рrорегtу and equipment included fully depreciated assets of UZS З1,749
million and UZS 24,З,74 million, respectively.

ASSetS in the Warehouse are included in the office and computer equipment

The Bank leases sечеrаl assets mainly buildings fоr banking service offices. Тhе ачеrа8е lease tеrm of these
banking service offices determined as 5 уеаrs.
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1з. Other assets

lп millions of Uzbekiston Sоums
31 DесеmЬеr

2о22
31 DесеmЬеr

2о21

other financial asseъ
commission income receivable
Receivables frоm international money trапsfеr companies
Dividends receivable
other receivables

14,094
1,,252

203

2,955

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (1,82з) (617)

Total other financial assets 16,681 570

Рrерауmепts fоr рrореrtу and equipment
Repossessed collatera l

Рrераid income tax
Рrераid tax other than income tax
Prepayments for services
Settlements with еm ployees
lпчепtоrу
other

164,0з0
18,845
15,950

з46
1з,404
з,885
з,870
8,598

89,51з
25,998
7,09t

5,475
з,з67
7,287
9,93з

Less: provision for impairment (1,290)

Total other non-financial assets 227,6з8 142,6il

Total other assets 2ц,зL9 14з,2з4

Рrерауmепts for рrореrtу and equipment as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022 include prepayments in the amount of UZS
145,000 milIion made to Discover lnvest LLC for construction of hotel fоr tourism development.

As at З1 December 2022, receivables from money transfer companies consists mainly of receivables from
Zolotaya Коrопа, Western Union and Contact which was reimbursed during January 2О23.

Analysis Ьу credit quality of other financial assets is as follows

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums 2о22 2о27

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

1,069
13,970
з,465

570

677

Total оthеr financial assets, grоss 18,504 t,187

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (1,82з) (617)

Total оthеr financial asseъ 16,681 570

The expected credit loss movement of financial assets is presented in Note 26.
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L4, Nоп-счrrепt assets held fоr sale

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums
31 December

2о22
З1 December

2о27

Repossessed assets:
- Buildings held fоr sale
- Equipment held for sale
- other assets

78,547
з8,5з7

868

Less: lmpairment of assets held for sale (4,626)

Total repossessed assets 11з,326

As of December 2022, поп-сurrепt assets held for sale include the repossessed building and equipment of
Bek Teks LLC amounted iп UZS 40,009 million and UZS З6,507 million, respectively. ln DесеmЬеr 2022, the
Group's management аррrочеd and initiated active customer sеаrсh ргоgrаms within опе уеаr. The assets
received wеrе measured at the lower of their саrryiпg amount and fair value less costs to sell. As at 31 DесеmЬеr
2022, ап impairment of rеасquirеd assets classified held fоr sale was recognized in the amount of UZS 4,626
million.

15. Due to other Ьапlс

lп millions of Uzbekiston Sочms
31DесеmЬеr

2о22
31December

2o2L

Теrm deposits of banks and оthеr financial institutions
Due to Gazprombank JSC on Сustоmеr LC

Correspondent accounts and overnight placements of оthеr banks

t,2t2,оз9

з9,482

928,511
8,670

4зз

Total due to оthеr banks L,25t,52L 9з7,6L4

As at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, the interest rаtеs fоr the tеrm deposits of banks and оthеr financial institutions was
frоm 2.5% to 6% (202t: 5,25% to 6%) iп foreign banks and 4% to 6.5% (2О21: 4.5% lo 7%) iп local banks,
respectively. The average maturity of the deposits was очеr 1 уеаr (2О2!: очеr 1 уеаr) and аvеrаgе rеmаiпiпg
maturities of 175 days (2021: З42 days) in foreign banks and очеr 1 уеаr (2021: очеr 1 уеаr) with ачеrаgе
rеmаiпiпg maturities 316 days (2О21,: 205 days) iп local banks, respectively. As at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, tеrm
deposits of banks and оthеr financial institutions includes non-interest bearing deposit amounts frоm
Gаrапt Bank fоr the amount of USD З.8 million (UZS equivalent 42,657 million) pledged as соllаtеrаl u пdеr deposit
placed in UZS Ьу JSCB ТurопЬапk in Garant Bank (Note 8).

Соrrеsропdепt accounts and overnight placements of the banks as at 31 December 2022 included amount of
соrrеsропdепt accounts of оthеr banks at OJSC "ОriепЬапk" and obligations to other banks оп payments of
plastic cards of individuals through the Processing Centres.

Geographical, сurrепсу, maturity and interest rate analysis of due to оthеr banks аrе disclosed in Note 26.
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16. customer accounts

lп millions oJ Uzbekiston soums
з1 DесеmЬеr

2о22
з1 December

2o2l

state and pUblic organisations
- cUrrent/settlement account5
- term depoSits

other le8alentities
- cUrrent/settlement accounts
- term deposits

lndividuals
- current/Settlement accoUnt5
- term depoSitS

з15,728
566,зlз

749,29о
74,567

27з,765
7,о22,671,

406,278
258,288

575,595
146,01з

Total customer accounts з,ф2,274 2,551,Ф2

As at З1 December 2022 and 2021, customer accounts amounting to UZS 1,604 milliоп and UZS 2,040 million,
respectively, Wеrе used aS collateral for letters of credit issued Ьу the Group disclosed in Note 29 апd customer
accounts amounting to UZS 4,9З5 million and UZS ],26-| million, respectively, wеrе used as collateral fоr loans
and advances to customers issued Ьу the Group (Note 10).

Below table summarizes industry concentration of customer accounts

з1 December 2022 31 DесеmЬеr 2021
lп millions oJ Uzbekistan sочms Аmочпt % Amount %

lndividuals
state and public organiSationS
con5truction
5erviceS
ManUfactUring
Trade
AgricUltUre
Тrап5роrt and communication
other

1,,296,з76
882,041
з61,016
115,799
110,з20
64,211
64,777
42,995
64,7з9

1,165,468
664,566
25о,049
1зз,719
\44,481,
94,885
з9,275
з1,548
21,651

4з
29
12

4
4
2

2

2

2

46
26
10

5

5

4
2

1

1

Total customer accounts з,ф2,274 100 2,551'Ф2 100

As at З1 December 2022, the Group had опе {З]. December 2021; two) customer With а total Ьаlапсе of
UZS 1б0,061 million (З1 December 2021: UZS 207,388 million), which individually exceeded 1О% of the Group's
eqU ity.

Gеоgrарhiсаl and interest rate analysis of customer accounts are disclosed in Note 26.

5в

2зз,609
9з1,859
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NoTEs то тнЕ coNsoLlDдTED FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕмБ (coNTlNUED)
FoR тнЕ YЕдR ENDED з1 DE0EMBER 2022

17. Borrowin8s from 8overnment, state and international financial institution
з1 December з1 DесеmЬеr

2о27
(Restated)

Тhе Export lmроrt Bank of china
Ministry of Fiпапсе of the RepUblic of Uzbekistan
Asian Development Вапk
The National Bank for Foreign Economic Affairs of RepubIic of Uzbekistan
LLc lnternational Development Projects
The Ехрогt-lmроrt Bank of china via The National Bank for Fоrеigп Economic Affairs
of the Republic of Uzbekistan
VЕв.RF
lnternational Development A55ociation ("lDA") via МОF
,lSc Моrtgаgе Refinancing Соmрапу of Uzbekistan
lslamic corporation fоr the DeveIopment of the Private sector
АКА Ausfuhrkredit-Gesellschaft mbH
MiniStry of lnvestment and Fоrеigп Trade
lnternational lslamic Trade Fiпапсе corporation (lТFС)

FUnd for Reconstruction and Development of Uzbekistan
Тhе Ехроrt lmport Bank of Turkey
council of FarmerS, Dehkan Fаrms and Landowner5
JscMB lpoteka-bank
Jsc Bank "ASaka"
Jscв o'zsanoatqurilishbank
Jsc Aloqabank
karakul Association
JscB Mikrokreditbank
ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s.

lScB АgrоЬапk
other

2о22

2,224,\86
2,096,975

998,757
181,87з
\75,о02

17з,510

151,2з9
1,4з,5о7

104,015
98,з27
85,618
50,990
78,110
з2,06з
2з,580
18,561
1з,955
15,685
1з,861
\0,446
8,667
4,6з2
з,650

12,295

1,759,459
\,7з6,з54

977,115
20,025

278,269
767,992
15з,з 19
79,561

146,086
66,628
47 ,125
22,629
12,909
з8,582
2-7,794

20,790
15,з59

12,460
22,1з7
10,000
9,428

21,454
5,175

6,719,504 5,674,181

Воrrоwiпgs frоm the Export lmport Bonk of Сhiпо

AS at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022 апd 2021, borrowings from The Ехрогt lmроrt Bank of China include Ьоrrоwiпgs within
the framework of various projects such as "Modernization of UE Cascade of Nizhne-Bozsu HPPs, UE Cascade of
Tashkent НРР and UE Cascade Shakhrikhan HPPs", "Modernization of а Small Hydroelectric Роwеr Plant uпdеr
the Tuyabuguz Rеsеrчоir, Cascade of а Small Hydroelectric Роwеr Plant оп the Great Fеrgапа Canal, Kamchik
Hydropower Plant on the Akhangaran River and the Cascade of Zarchchob HPPs оп the Tupalang River",
"construction of the "Kamolot" hydroelectric Station оп the Chirchik-Bozsu trасt and modernization of the
"Kaskad Kadirinsky" hydroelectric power Station", "Modernization of the chirchik НРР (НРР-10), Modernization
of the Tashkent НРР (НРР-1), Modernization of the Samarkand НРР (НРР-2В)", and "Construction of the Shaudar
hydroelectric роWеr station оп the Dаrgоm canal, Construction of а hydroelectric роWеr station at picket 1З5 +

50 of the Dargom canal". As at З]" DесеmЬеr 2 О22 апd 2О2r, the outstanding amounts were as following:
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lп millions of Uzbekistan sочms

Воrrоwiпр from gочеrпmепt, state and internationa l fiпапсiа l institutions
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NoTEs то тнЕ соNsоLlDдЕD FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FoRTHE YЕдR ENDED 37 DEаEMBER 2о22

Оrigiпоtiоп dote Moturity date Nоmiпоl interest rote, % Сurrепсу
зl DесеmЬеr

2о22
з7 DесеmЬе|

2021
9 November 2018

22 April 2018
10 November

2018
З FеЬrUаrу 2021
29 Jапчаry 2021

21January 20З8
21 Jапuаrу 20З8

21January 20З8
21July 20З9
21July 2039

2%

2./"

USD
USD

UsD
USD
USD

7 tз,1,7 з
662,766

687,з9з
бз9,818

2%

2%

2%

з66,140
259,225
222,882

249,018
oq q?ч

аз,295
2,224,L86 1,759,459

Borrowings frоm the Ministry oI Fiпопсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan

As at 31 December 2О22 апd 2021, Ьоrrоwiпgs frоm the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of Uzbekistan
inclu d е:
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originotion dote Moturity dote Nоmiпоl interest rote, % Сurrепсу
з7 DесеmЬеr

2022
з7 DесеmЬеr

2021

15 JUne 2020
21 october 2019
15 January 2016

15 JUne 20з5
15 october 204з
15 March 20з4

15 June 2020 15 June 20з5

З0 JUne 2018 15 september 2042

14.оо%

бm LlBoR + lBRD variable
Spread + 1%

5,00%

1,4.00о/о

з.O0о/о

бm LlBoR + lBRD variable
Spread + 1%

1,4.ооо/о

0.00%

бm LlBoR + lBRD variable
spread + 1%

1з.00%
0.00%

1з,00%
14.ооо/о

\7 ,6о%

1,4,0о%

14-00%

UZs

U5D

USD
Uzs
UsD

USD

UZs
UZS

U5D

UZS

U25

Uz5
UZs

Uz5

UZs

UZ5

Uzs
Uzs

UzS

UzS
USD

Uzs
UZS

UzS

UzS

UZS

Uzs
UzS
UzS
UzS
UzS
UZS

UZS

UzS

з04,898

28з,552

2з8,25з
r88,7 з7
144,985

118,27о

100,0з8
92,275

81,718

50,280
50,169
50,02 5

50,000

45,022

45,о1,7

зз,Oз1

з0,406
28,88з

26,998

20,116
11,6з5
11,0з9
1о,21,2

10,128

10,000

9,874

9,7 44
9,7 41,

9,151
8,з65
4,489
з,о22
) чlч

1,098

з07,245

272,9зз

)io 1qq

186,з7 2

152,о2з

69,76з

100,000

816

50,169

50,000

50,000

11,,7зб

28,785

21,699

з0,6з9

10,621
10,зlз

10,000

9,881

9,845

8,з62

1,096

1,101

758
652

1з,lз1

31 october 2019 15 осtоЬеr 204з

15 FеЬrUаrу 2021
19 March 2019

15 FеЬruаrу 2026
19 Маrсh 20з4

24 August 2020 15 DесеmЬеr 2029

8 JUne 2022
28 J чпе 2018
28 ос|оьеr 2о22
28 July 2021
2з November
2о22
4 Jчпе 2021
2з December
2о21
24 AUgust 2022
6 september 2019
29 DесеmЬег
202I
28 AuguSt 2020
9 AUgu5t 2022
6 September 2019
7 october 2021
9 FеЬrUаry 2022
16 November
2о21,

26 November
2о2о
25 June 2022
25 ]чпе 2020
10 ]чпе 2022
29 october 2020
2з ]Uпе 2022
5 october 2022
27 Дрri| 2О22

24 December
2о21
15 JапUаrу 2016
29 JUl'y 2О22

27 JUne 2014
1 NочеmЬеr 2021
28 March 2022
з December 2020
19 october 2021

9 JUne 2042
13,July 20ЗЗ
26 ]апuаrY 2024
28 ]uly 2026

21- Лрr|| 2О24

з June 2026

15 DесеmЬеr 2029

25 August 2042
15 September 20З4

з0 December 2041

24 AU8USt 2040
1 J Une 202з
15 September 20З4
7 осtоЬеr 2041
10 FеЬruаrу 2042

Зl J Ulу 202З

25 November 2040

18 JUne 2040
24 June 2040
9 Маrсh 2040
25 october 20з5
1 Мау 202З
1 September 202З
1FеЬrчаrу 202З

24 December 20з5

15 March 20з4
29 July 20Зб
22 JUпе 2оз4
1 November 20з5
4 Ja пчаry 202З
з1 December 20з5
З1 August 2022

1з.00%
74.00%

1з.00%

1з.00%
72,оо./.

з,5о%
1з.00%
1з.00%

1з.00%

1з,00%
1з.00%
1з.00%
з,00%
1,2,оо./.

1,2.о0./о

1,2.00%

10.00%

4.50%
10.00%
4.50%
10.00%

0.00%
15.00%

10.00%

UZS
UZS

UZS
UZS

UZS

Uzs
UZS

1,006
9з8
695
664

26

2,ф6,975 1,7з6,з54
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л/отЕs Iо IнЕ coNsoLlDдTED FlNдNсlдL sтдтЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FоR тнЕ YaR ENDED з7 DEаEMBER 2022

Borrowings from Дsiоп Development Вопk ("ДDВ")

As at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022 and 2021, Ьоrrоwiпgs from Asian Development Bank ("ADB") jnclude the following
borrowings received within agreements concluded between the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Uzbekistan, the Rurаl Restructuring Аgепry and the Bank Within the framework of the project "Development of
Value Chain in the fruit and ve8etable growin8 Sector":

originotion dote Moturity dote Nоmiпоl interest rote, % СUrrепсу
з7 DесеmЬеr

2022
з7 DесеmЬеr

2021
12 DесеmЬеr 2018
10 FebrUary 2020
5 April 2017
10 FеЬruаrу 2020

15 December 20з7
16 JUne 20з0
15 November 20зб
15 JUne 20з0

зо/о

14./.

з%

з./.

USD
UZS

USD

USD

694,262
772,5з9
92,845
з9,111

71,5,2\9
16з,675
95,6з0
з,251

99а,757 977,775

Во rrowings frоm LLC "lnternotiono l Development Projects"

Оп october 2022, ап assi8nment а8rееmепt Was concluded between VEB RF and LLC "lnternatonal Development
Projects", in which all obligations at the time of transfer of rights uпdеr the main credjt line аgrееmепt Were
transferred to the LLC "lnternational Development Projects". As at З1 December 2022, Ьоrrоwiпgs frоm
LLc lnternational Development Projects" include the following Ьоrrоwiпgs received Ьу the Bank Within the
frаmеwоrk of the project "Modernization of the Tupolangskaya НРР iп the SаrriаSsу district of the Surkhandaryn
rеgiоп" and project "Construction of а small hydroelectric power plant at Piket 102+00 of the Dаrgоm canal and
SHPP YuFK-3 on the South Fergana Canal":

originotion dote Moturity dote Nоmiпоl interest rote, % Сurrепсу
з7 DесеmЬеr

2022
з1 December

2021
28 ,]une 2021
9 JUly 2021

28 June 20з1
8 July 2031

151,65з
2з,з49

1,45,215

22,777

2%

775,ф2 167,992

According to the rеfiпапсiпg аgrееmепt No. Рt/R-2019/3 dated 15 FеЬrчаry 2019, concluded between the
National Bank for Foreign Economic Affairs of the Republic of Uzbekista n and the Bank, based оп lоа n agreement
between the Nationa| Bank for Foreign Economic Affairs of the Republic of Uzbekistan and the Ехрогt-lmроrt
Bank of China, in the framework of the projects aimed to finance projects aimed at the purchase of equipment
and technologies from People's Republic of Сhiпа. The Bank Was granted USD З0,000,000 for а period of 5 years,
including а 24-month grасе period, at а rаtе of 4% per аппum, where the 3% is the interest of the Ехрогt-lmроrt
Bank of China.
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Borrowings frоm the Export-lmport Вопk о| Сhiпо vio the Notionol Вопk for Fоrеigп Есопоmiс дJfоirs of the
Republic oI Uzbekiston
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FоRтнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2022

Воrrоwiпgs frоm lпtеrпоtiопаl Development Дssосiоtiоп vio МОF ("lDД")

Оrigiпоtiоп dote Moturity date Nоmiпоl iпtеrеst rote, % Сurrепсу
37 DесеmЬеr

2022
37 DесеmЬеr

2021
19 FеЬruаrу 2018
24 Jчпе 2014
19 August 2009
24 June 2014
19 August 2009

15 Мау 20З7
15 March 20З2
15 Маrсh 2029
15 Маrсh 20З2
15 Маrсh 2029

4%

4%

Libor бm
бо/о

l!%

\25,475
17,98з
4,9tб
2,L99

666

125,41,7

19,208
5,4-7]
2,44з

774

USD

USD
USD

UZS

UZS

151,239 153,з19

Воrrоwiпgs frоm JSC Mortgoge Rеfiпопсiпg Соmрапу of lJzbekistan

31DесеmЬеr
2022

37
DесеmЬеr

2021Оrigiпоtiоп dote Моturiф dote Nоmiпоl iпtеrеst rote, % Сurrепсу
18 FеЬruаrу 2022
19 NочеmЬеr 2021
24 DесеmЬеr 2020
28 June 2022
26 August 2021,

21 FеЬruаrу 2022

19 June 2039
11 FеЬruаrу 20З9
7 June 20З8
7 NочеmЬеr 20З9
16 FеЬruаrу 20З9
10 November 20З9

12.5%

12.5%

1з%

tз%
125%
12.5%

UZS
UZS

UZS

UZS

UZS
UZS

42,054
з5,985
з0,698
21,02о
t2,997

753

з5,876
з0,689

72,996

14з,507 79,561

Во r rоwi пg s f rо m АКА Дu sf u h r k rеd it-G ese l l sc hoft m Ь Н

Oriqinotion dote Моturiф dote Nоmiпоl iпtеrеst rote, % Сurrепсу
31DесеmЬеr

2022
З7 DесеmЬеr

2021
З January 2022
14 FеЬruаrч 2020

20 December 2027
1 Арril 2026

6 month EUR|BOR + t.6%
6 month EUR|BoR + 1.7%

EUR

EUR
50,704
47,62з 66,628
98,з27 66,628

Borrowings from the Ministry of lnvestment опd Fоrеigп Trode

Оriqiпоtiоп dote Moturity dote Nоmiпоl interest rоtе, % Сurrепсу
З7 DесеmЬеr

2о22
31DесеmЬеr

2027

З0 March 2021
5 june 2021

1 January 2025
25 November 20З2

2% USD

UZS
82,5з 1

з,087
46,109

1,616t0%

85,б18 47,725

Оrigiпоtiоп dote Moturity date Nоmiпоl interest rаtе, % Сurrепсу
31 DесеmЬеr

2022
31 DесеmЬеr

2027
19 October 2021 18 August 2026 \.5% USD з2,06з 38,582

32,06з 38,582

бз

Воrrоwiпgs frоm the Export lmроrt Вопk of Turkey
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NотЕs то тн Е coNsoLlDдED Fl NдNсIдL sтдЕмЕNБ (coNTlNUED)
FоR тнЕ YаR ENDED з7 DEаEMBER 2022

AS at 31 December 2О22 апd 2021, the Grоuр was not compliant With financial covenant оп Ratio of NPL to the
ag8re8ate of all loans and advances to customers Stipulated in the line of Trade tinancing Аgrееmепt #UZB/210

- UZB/211 between the Bank and lnternational lslamic Trade Fiпапсе Соrроrаtiоп (lТFС). As at З1 DесеmЬеr
2022, the Group Was not compliant with financial covenant оп Ratio of NPL and on Ratio available amount of
stable fund|ng to rеquirеd amount of stable funding stipulated in the line of financing agreement between the
Вапk and lSlamic Corporation fоr the Development of the Рrivаtе Sector,

As at З], December 2022 апd 2021, the Bank has pledged contractual rights to collateral under the guarantees
issued Ьу Bank to lslamic corporation Development for the amount of UZS 123,473 million and UZS rr9,2о7
million, respectively.

Со mр l io псе with cove п о nts

А5 at З1 DесеmЬеr 2О22, the GroUp Was not аЬlе to comply with sечеrаl financial covenants set Ьу agreements
between the Grоuр and the Asian Development Bank, LLc lnternational Development Projects, Export lmport
Bank of Тurkеу, lslamic Соrрогаtiоп for the Development of the Private Sector and lnternational lslamic Trade
Fina nce Corporation.

This non-compIiance has triggered cross default clauses stipulated in the credit facility аgrееmепts between the
Group and АКА Ausfu h rkrеd it-G esellSchaft mbH.

As at 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, the Management classified long-term ЬоrrоWiпgs frоm Asian Development Bank, LLC
lnternational Development Projects, Ехрогt lmрогt Bank of Turkey and АКА Au sfu h rkred it-G ese llschaft mbH as
"demand and less than 1 month". Management have had regular dialogue With these financial institutions
regarding the Ьrеасhеs of covenant and believe there will Ье по impact оп the Bank's operations, application of
any sanctions поr acceIeration of апу repayment.
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lslomic Corporotion for the Development of the Privote Sector опd lпtеrпоtiопоl lslomic Trade Fiпопсе Соrроrоtiоп
(lтFс)

The sечеrаl borrowing аgrееmепts stipUlate financial covenants. Тhе Group haS to comply With сегtаiп financial
covenants, non-compliance of which may give the lender а right to rесаll funding.
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FoR тнЕ YцR ENDED 31 DEаEMBER 2022

18, other Liabilities

ln milliопs oJ Uzbekiston Sочms
з1 DесеmЬеr

2о22
з1 December

zo27

Accounts payable to suppliers
Payable to employees
Security deposit оп mопеу tranSfer
Settlements оп international mопеу transferS
PaYables to State Guarantee tUпd
Dividends payable to shareholders

25,192
7,41о
6,567
з,161

442
215

2,506
1,611
4,772
1,з05

з88
845

Total other financial liabilities 4з,59з 7о,827

Deferred income оп origination of guaranteeS and letters of credit
EXpected credit losses for Bank's gчаrапtее5 (Note 29)
TaxeS payable other than iпсоmе tax
sUbscription deposits for Shares
other

8,852
572
7з2

2

2,з96

7,920
з,785
4,587

10
2,217

Total other non-financial liabilities 11,894 18,519

Total other liabilities 55,487 29,з46

As at З1 December 2022, accounts payable to suppliers comprise payables оп amount of UZS 14,298 million to
LLC Gold Step lnvest building the Head Office for the Grоuр in ассогdапсе to construction contract terms and
cond itions.

19. Share capital

iп millions of Uzbekiston Sочms

lп millions of Uzbekiston sочms
except for пчmЬеrs of shores

NчmЬеr of
oUtstandin8 5hаrеs

(in thousand)
ordinary

sha res

preference

sha rеs
Sha rе

premiUm Total

к at з1 December 2020 520,258 878,455 8,651 219 8а7,з25

New shares issued з60,з5з 612,600 612,600

ь at з1 December 2021 880,611 1,491,055 8,651 279 1,499,925

Redemption shares issued (7,586) (12,896) (12,896)

к at з1 DесеmЬеr 2022

DUring 2022, the Grочр has reduced and has made redemption of ordinary Shares in the total of UZS 12,896
million. AIl shаrеs have а раr Value of UZS 1,700. The nominal re8istered amount of the GroUp'S issued share
capital соrrеsропds to the amoUnt reported in these consolidated financial Statements as at 31 December 2022,
as follows:

lп millions of Uzbekiston soums

Nominal
registered

а mount
Effect of

hyperinflation

lnflation
adjusted
amoUnt

5hare capital 1,484,14з

65

87з,025 1,478,159 8,651 279 L,487,029

2,667 1,486,810
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FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEOEMBER 2о22

lп accordance With the Resolution of the Са binet of М inisters of the Repu blic of Uzbekistan dated 29 Ма rсh 2021
"on approval of the Strategy for management and rеfоrm of state-owned enterprises in 2021_2025", funds
distributed Ьу state-owned enterprises fоr sponsorship and other non-discriminatory assistance iп ассоrdапсе
with the documents of the Presjdent and the Cabinet of Ministers of the Republic of Uzbekistan аrе recognised
as dividends оп the Government's shаrе and Withheld Uроп payment to the shareholder (Government).

ln ассоrdапсе With resolution of Administration of the President of the перuЬliс of Uzbekistan dated 2 August
2021 #02-RA2-4946 and approvaI of Supervisory Board #К-66 dated 8 November 2021 and #К3О-1 dated 1О мау
2021, the Group provided а charity in the amount of UZS 10,000 million. Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers
No, 166, the Withholding in the payment of dividends оп the state share was deemed expedient and the
Sponsorship Was allowed, thus, the Group recognised them aS а distribution of dividends оп оrdiпаry shares for
2020 and 2019 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity during the year ended 3]" DесеmЬеr 2О21.
During 2022, in ассоrdапсе with decision of shareholders the Group has declared dividends in amount of UZS
1,689 million from which UZS 848 million has offset from the amount of declared dividends intended for payment
to the Ministry of Finance. On the basis of resolution of Administration of the President of the Republic of
Uzbekistan dated 2 August 2021, #О2-RЛ2-4946 and approval ofSupervisory Board #К-54 dated 7 )ulу 2О22, #к64
dated 16 August 2022, К-80-1 dated 7 NочеmЬеr 2022 and К-85-2 dated 30 November 2О22, the Grоuр provided
further sponsorship in the amount of UZS 9,450 million during 2О22. Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers No,
166, the withholdin8 in the payment of divjdends оп the state share Was deemed expedient and the sponsorship
was allowed, thus, the Group recognised them aS а distribution of dividends on ordinary shares for 202О and
2019 iп the consolidated statement of changes jn equity dUring the year ended З1 December 2О22.
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lп 2022, the Gгоuр declared and paid dividends of UZS 1,689 million апd UZS 842 million on рrеfеrепсе shares
(31 December 2021: UZS З,З78 million).
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Reconciliotion of mочеmепts of liabilities to cosh flows orising frоm fiпопсiпg octivities

The table below details chan8es iп the Group's liabilities аrisiпg from financin8 activities, includin8 both cash and поп-саsh сhапgеý. liabilities arising from financing
activitles аrе those fоr Which cash flows Wеrе, оr future cash flows will Ье, classified in the Group'5 consolidated statement of cash f|ows as cash flows from financing
activities.

Nоп-саsh сhап8еs

31 DесеmЬеr
2o2L

(Restated)

Fiпапсiпg cash
inflow/

(outflow)
l nte rest

paid

Effect of
exchange

rate changes

conversion
into shares

оthеr
non-cash
changes

31 DесеmЬеr
2о22

Dividends
declared lnterestaccrued

Debt securities iп issue
Borrowings from government, state
and international financial
institutions

Dividends payable to shareholders
Lease liabilities

7з,474

5,674,L81,

845
74,92з

(1з,428)

868,948

(2,з19)
(4,051)

(295)

(2з2,517]'

6,821

17,о52

1,689

з09

2з6,8з5

1,894

155,005 6,719,5(и

215
74,u7

Non-cash changes

31 December
2020

Fiпапсiпg cash
inflow/

(outflow)

conversion
into shares

other
non-cash
changes

31 DесеmЬеr
2o2I

(Resъted)lnterest paid

Effec of
exchange

rаtе changes
Dividends
declared lnterestaccrued

Debt securities iп issue

Borrowings frоm government, state
and international financial
institutions

Dividends payable to shareholders
Lease liabilities

2,2оз

4,492,о45
604

t4,7з2

11,200

I,12з,з54
(3,137)

(6,з42)

1,0з9

202,279

!,92]-

(2зз,з22)

tз,4t4

5,674,LBt168,715

4,6t2

(1,028)

(196,114) t!7,224
з,з78 и5

14,92з
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2о. Net ]nterest income

lп millions of Uzbekiston Sourns 2о22 zo27

lnterest iпсоmе
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from other banks
Cash and cash equivalents

97о,о46
52,045
5 1,1 10

199

767,465
з2,54з
з8,678

27

Total interest iпсоmе 1,073,4(х) 8з8,71з

lnterest expenses
Borrowings from government, state and international financial institutions
Теrm deposits of individuals
Теrm deposits of state and public organisations
Теrm placements of other banks
Теrm deposits of legal entities
Lease liabilities
Debt securities in issue

(2з6,8з5)
(148,240)
( 125,87з)

(76,624|
(22,057]'

(1,894)

(з09)

|2о2,279)
(118,990)

(80,148)
(59,7з9)

|26,797l
(1,921)
(1,0з9)

Total interest ехрепsе (611,8з2) (490,913)

Net interest income before credit losses 461,568 з47,800

2L. Fее commission ]псоmе and expense

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums 2о22 2о21

Fее and commission income from:
- settlement trа nsactions
- Cash operations
- lпtеrпаtiопаl mопеу trапsfеrs
- Letters of credit
- Foreign сurrепсу conversion services
- оthеr

42,609
24,638
20,67t
t9,227
1,6,146

2,45о

44,639
t2,t62
22,466
19,з14
\7,54l
6,з66

Total fee and commission iпсоmе |25,74L l22,488

Fее and commission expense
- settlement transactions
- cash collection services
- Fоrеigп сurrепсу conversion services
- Letters of credit
- Other

(16,772)
(4,67з)
(\,770)

(472|
(4,077|

(17,565)
(4,з]2)

(з36)
(1,974)
(з,922)

Totalfee and commission expense (27,7ul (28,169)

Net fee and commission income 98,037 94,319
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22. Administrative and other operating expenses

lп millions of Uzbekistan Soums Notes 2о22 2o2l

staff costs
Depreciation and amortization of
premises, equipment and intangible
aSSetS

Security services
Membership fees
Rent and maintenance
professiona l services
Chariý
Communication charges
Stationery and supplies
Business triр and travel expenses
Taxes other than income tax
Fuel and utilities
Advertising and publicity
Representation ехре nses
Depreciation ехрепsе оп right-of-use assets
l nsura nce
Periodicals, books, newspapers
Fiпе and penalties
Litigation expenses
Other operating expenses

t2

274,9з4

45,68з
з5,152
14,714
tз,258
10,502
\0,29]
7,526
6,485
4,52t
4,272
3,907
3,800
2,255
1,679

654
з4з
140

16

2,з26

L7з,992

з2,100
26,754
6,624

10,879
з,173

11,з11
2,864
6,086
4,4з0
з,475
з,419
2,96з
1,567
L,о77
1,40з

454
53
25

1,776

Total administrative and other ореrаtiпg expenses з82,4il 294,425

2з, lпсоmе taxes

(о) Соmропепts of iпсоmе tox ехрепsе / (Ьепеfа:

lпсоmе tax expense comprises the following

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums 2о22 2o2L

Сurrепt tax charge

Deferred tax benefit
з7,71з

(59,506)
21,505
(18,з08)

lпсоmе tax (benefit)/expense for the year (27,79з| з,L97

Dеfеrrеd tax (credit)/debit through OCl (728) 2,20з

(28,521) 5,400
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lпсоmе tax (benefit)/expense for the уеаr through profit оr loss and OCl
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(Ь) Reconciliotion Ьеtwееп tox expense опd profit or loss multiplied Ьу applicoble tox mte

Reconciliation between the expected and the actual taХation charge is provided below

lп millions ol UZbekiston soums 2о22 2о21

(Loss)/Profit before tax (2з9,6з2) 25,2об

Theoretical tax charge at the applicable statutory rаtе - 2Фб (2021: 2Ф6)

- Nоп deductible expenses
- Тах exempt income
- тах incentive5
- other

|47,926l

18,042
(10,246)

5,041

5,518
(6,667)
(1, з60)

665

lпсоmе tax (benefit)/expense for the year (z7,79з) з,797

(с) Dфеrrеd toxes onolysed Ьу type of tеmроmry di|ference

"Тах rаtе d ifferences" comprlses of tax effects frоm reduction of standard income tax rаtе to encou rаgе the bankS
to increase the Share of long-term lоапS to customers in the total lоап рогtfоliо.

Differences between ltRS and Uzbekistan statutory taxation regulations give rise to certain temporary differences
between the саrryiпg amount of сеrtаiп assets and liabiljties for financial reporting purposes and for their tax
bases. The tax effect of the movements оп these temporary differences is detailed below, and is recorded at the
rаtе of 2ОО/о |2О2з,,. 2Оё/о),

7о

1) ]17
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lп millions of Uzbeklston sourns
31 December

2о22

(Charged)/

credited to
profit оr loss

(Cha rgеd)/
credited to

ocl
з1 DесеmЬеr

2о27

(Charged)/

credited to
profit ог loss

(Сhаrgеd)/

credited to
ocl

з1 December
2020

Тах effect of deductible/(taxable)
tеmроrаry differences

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other banks
Debt securitieS of the Government of the Republic of
uzbekistan

Loans and advances to customers
lnveStment in associates
Financial aSSets at fair value throUgh other comprehen5ive
income

Рrеmi5е5, equipment and intangible assets
other a55et5

ВоrrоWiпgS from government, state and
international financial in5titution5

Nоп-сurгепt assets held for sale
other liabilitie5

з8
922

(8)

1,72

46
750

42
з02

4
448

1,49

з7,516
зз9

76
54,ззб

(з,546)

{4,2з0)
1,,794

(188 )

6,8зб

(7з)

16,820
(зз9)

(1,79з)

112

2,488

(4,27 4)
(1,555 )

2,966
2,675
7,112

86
772,411

925
з,727

10

58,081

188
925

{з,709)

|728\ ),20з |5,149)
(2,4з7\

t,022

|277)

4,з48

89

Net deferred tax asset 114,652 59,506 (728) 55,874 18,з08 2,2оз з5,збз

Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

72о,481

{5,829)

16,020
2,1,з5

бз,8з8

|7 ,964)
17,809

499
2,20з 4з,826

{8,46з)

Net deferred tax assёt 774,652 18,155 (728) 55,874 18,з08 2,2оз 35,з63

71
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24. (Loss)/EarninEs per share

Basic earnings реr shаrе аrе caiculated Ьу dividing the profit оr loss attributable to equity hоldеrs of the Gгочр Ьу the
weighted ачеrаgе number of ordinary shares in issue during the уеаr, net of treasury shares.

Тhе Group has по dilutive potential оrdiпаry shares; thеrеfоrе, the dlluted earnings реr shаrе equal the basic earnings
реr share. Еаrпiпgs реr shаrе are calculated as follows:

Profit fоr the уеаr attributable to ordinary and preference sharehoIders is calculated as follows:

lп millions oI Uzbekiston soums 2022 2о27

(Lo55)/Profit for the year attributable to preference shareholders
(Loss)/Profit for the уеаr attributable to оrdiпаrу shareholders

(1,196)

{210,64з)

180
21,,829

(Loss)/Profit for the уеаr attributable to the owners (211,839) 22,оо9

Weighted ачеrаgе number of рrеfеrепсе shares in issue
Wei8hted ачеrа8е nUmber of ordinary ShаrеS in isSue 881 606

5

(239)

(2з9)
36
зб

25. Sе8mепt analysis

The Group's operations are а single rерогtаЬlе segment. The Вапk provides mainly banking services in the
Republic of Uzbekistan.

Тhе Bank identifies the segment in accordance With the criteria set in lFRS 8 "operatin8 Se8ments" and based on
the Way the operatjons of the Grоuр аrе regularly reviewed Ьу the chief operating decision maker to analyse
реrfоrmапсе and allocate TeSoUrces among business units of the Group.

The chief operating decision-maker ("CODM") has Ьееп determined as the Group's Сhаirmап ofthe Management
Воаrd. The CODM reviews the Bank's internal reporting in оrdеr to assess performance and allocate resources.
The Management has determined а single operating segment Ьеiпg banking services based оп these internal
rероrts.

26. Risk mana8ement policy

The risk management function Wjthin the Group iS саrriеd out in respect of financial risks, operational r|Sks and
legal risks. tiПаПСiаl risk соmрrisеs market risk (including счrrепсу risk, interest rate risk and оthеr price risk),
credjt risk and liquidity risk. The рramаry objectives of the financial risk mana8ement function are to estab|ish risk
limits, and then епsчrе that eХposure to risks stays Within these limits, The operational and legal risk mапаgеmепt
functions аrе intended to ensure рrореr functioning of internal policies and рrосеdurеs, in оrdеr to minimise
ореrаtiопаl and legal risks,

Сrеdit nsk. The Grоuр takes on ехроsчrе to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to а financial instrument
will cause а financial loss fоr the other раrtу Ьу failing to discharge ап obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as
а result of the Group'S lendin8 and other transactions With counterpaгties 8ivin8 rise to financial assets.

72
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The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the саrryiпg amounts of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The impact of po55ible nettin8 of assets and liabilities to rеduсе
potential credit expoSure is not 5ignificant.

Fоr guarantees and commitments to extend credit, the maХimum exposure to credit risk is the amount of the
commitment. The credit risk is mitigated Ьу collateral and other credit enhancements as disclosed in Note 29,

Тhе Grоuр has established а credit quality review рrосеss to provide еаrlу identification of possible changes iп
the creditworthiness of соuпtеrрагtiеs, lncluding regular collateral rечisiопs,

counterparty ljmits are established Ьу the use of the Group'S internal credit ratin8 System, which assigns each
counterparty а risk ratin8. Тhе credit quality review process aims to allow the Group to assess the potential loSS
as а result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective action.

Group's iпtеrпоl rotings Scole:

Standard Timely rерауmепt of "standard" loans is not in doubt. The Ьоrrоwеr is а
financially stable соmрапу, which has ап adequate capital level, high level
profitability and sufficient cash flow to meet its all eXistin8 obligations,
including present debt. When assesslng the reputation of the Ьоrrоwеr such
factors as the history of previous repayments, marketability of соllаtеrаl
(movable and immovable рrорегtу gчаrапtее) аrе taken into consideration.
As а whole, the financial position of а Ьоrrоwеr is stable, but some unfavorable
circumstances or tendencies are рrеsепt, which, if not disposed of, raise some
doubts about the borrower's ability to rерау on time. "Standard" loans With
insufficient information in the credit file or missin8 information on соllаtеrаl
could Ье also classified as "substandard" loans.
"Unsatisfactory" loans have obvious shoгtcomings, which make doubtfu the
repayment of the loan чпdеr the terms, envisaged Ьу the initial аgrееmепt.
Fоr lоапs classified as "U n5atisfactory", the primary source of repayment is not
sufficient and the Group has to Seek additional lоап repayment sources, such
as the sale of collateral.
"DoUbtful" are loans which, in addition to haVing the characteristics of
"Unsatisfаctory" loans, have additional Shortcomings, which make it doubtfuI
that the lоап will Ье rераid iп full чпdеr the exjsting circumstances. The
probability of iпсчrriпg loss in respect of 5uch lоапs is high.
Loans classified as "loss" аrе considered uncollectible and have such а little
Vаlче that their continuance as assets of the Group is not Worth. ThiS
classification does not mеап that the loanS have absolutely no likelihood of
rесоVеry, but rаthеr meanS that the G roup should cease recognising such loa ns
апd make every effort to liquidate such debts through selling of collateral оr
collection of the outstandin8 loan.

substandard 2

UnSatisfactory З

DoUbtful

I

4

LoSs 5

1з

The Grоuр structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes Ьу placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to опе Ьоrrоwеr, оr groups of Ьоrrоwеrs, and to geographical and industry se8ments. Limits on the level
of credit risk Ьу product and industry sector аrе approved regularly Ьу management. Such risks аrе monitored оп
а revolving basis and аrе Sub.ject to an аппuаl, оr mоrе frequent, review,
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The definitions for each category аrе considered as general 8uidelines and not hard and fast rules. Often, а credit
Will seem to fit various cate8ories. The management mUSt exercise professional judgment, ехреriепсе and
borrower's management integrity (willin8ness to rерау debts) to classify а ЬоrrоWеr into а рrореr and rеаsопаЬlе
category,

lt is the Grou p'S poljcy to maintain accu rate and con5istent credit ratings across the cred it portfolio. Th is facilitates
focused management of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit ехроsчrеs асrоss all lines of business,

8eographic regions and products. The rating system iS sUpported Ьу а variety offinancial analytics, combined With
processed market information to provide the main inputs for the measurement of соUпtеrраrtу risk. All internal
credit rаtiпgS аrе tailored to the Various categorjes and аrе derived in accordance With the Group's rating policy.
The attributable credit ratings for indjvidual loans аrе assessed and updated regularly.

Credit quality of lоопs опd оdvопсеs to customers

2о22

stage 1

12-month EcL
sta8e 2

Lifetime EcL
Sta8e З

Lifetime EcL

Loans to customeБ at amortised cost
- cate8ory 1

- category 2
- СаtеgоrY З
- category 4
- cate8ory 5

\,\70,162
8з,622
60,1з0

6,184,480
2,5з2,м
L,77o,L62

8з,622
60,1з0

2,5з2,400

Total loans to customers as
at з1 DесеmЬеr 2022 6,184,480 2,5з2,400 1,зlз,914 10,0з0,794

Loss а llowance as at
з1 Decem Ьеr 2022 (72,595) |з1,5,71з) (з21,680) (710,048)

Total Iоапs to customers as at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2022, net 6,111,885 2,2!6,627 992,2з4 9,з2о,746

2021 (Restated)

Stage 1

12-month EcL
stage 2

Lifetime EcL
staвe З

Lifetime EcL Tota l

Loans to customeБ at amortised cost
- category 1

- category 2

- cate8ory З
- category 4
- category 5

7,156,296

з99,269
91,з78

1,57 ,218

7,1,56,296
807,192
399,269
91,з78

157,218

807,192

Total lоап5 to customers as
at з1 DесеmЬеr 2021 7,756,296 807,192 647,865 8,611,з5з

Loss а llowa nce as at
з1 Decem Ьеr 2021 (102,046) (105,654) (129,048) (зз6,748)

Total loaný to customers as at
з1 December 2021, пёt а,274,6о57,о54,25о 701,5з8 518,817

74
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Risk limits сопtrоl опd mitigotion policies

The Group mапаgеs, limits and сопtrоl5 concentrations of credit risk wherever they аrе identified - in раrtiсulаr,
to individUal counterparties and groups, and to indUStrieS.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk jt undertakes Ьу placing limits on the amount of гisk accepted in
relation to one borrower, оr grоuрs of borrowers, and to gеоgrарhiсаl and industry segments. Such risks аrе
monitored оп а revolving basis and subject to an annual оr mоrе frequent review, when considered necessary.
Limits on the lечеl of credit risk Ьу product, industry sector and Ьу country are approved аппUаllу Ьу the Grоuр
cou ncil.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through rеgulаr analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential Ьоrrоwеrs
to meet interest and capital rерауmепt obligations and Ьу changing these lend ing limits whеrе appropriate.

(о) Colloterol. The Grоuр employs а гапgе of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. Тhе most
traditional of these is the taking of security fоr funds advances, which is соmmоп practice. Тhе Group
implements guidelines оп the acceptability of specific classes of collateral оr сгеdit risk mitigation.

Тhе principal соllаtеrаl types for loans and advances are:

rеаl estate;
veh icles;

insu rance;
equipment and inventory;
cash deposit;
other assets.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined Ьу the nature of the
instrument. Debt Securities, treasury and оthеr eligible bills аrе generally unsecured.

(Ь) Limits. Notwithstanding of the amount of the loans the Grочр credit committee approves аll Ьоrrоwеrs.

(с) Сопсепtrаtiоп of risks of fiпапсiоl assets with credit risk exposure.

concentrations arise when а number of counterpartie5 аrе engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, оr have similar economic features that Would cause their ability to meet сопtrасtuаl
obligations to Ье similarly affected Ьу changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative Sensitivity of the Group's реrfоrmапсе to developments affecting а particular indUStry or
gео8rа phica l location.

The maximum risk to single Ьоrrоwеr оr grоuр of affiliated Ьоrrоwеrs shall not exceed 25 percent of the
Group'5 tier ]. capital;
The maximum risk fоr unsecured credits shall not exceed 5 percent of Group's tjer 1 capital;
Total amount of all large credits cannot exceed Group's tier 1 capjtal Ьу mоrе than 5 times; and
Total loan amount to related раrtу shall not exceed 50 percent of Grоuр's tier 1 capital.

Some other specific control and mitigation measuTes аrе outlined beloW.

The Group's management focuses on concentration risk:

15
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FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEаEMBER 2022

Тhе Group's maximUm exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets оп the
statement of financial position, tоr gчаrапtееs and commitments to eХtend credit, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is the amount of the commitment.

The Grоuр rеvjеws ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows up past due balances. Management therefore
сопsidеrs appropriate to provide ageing and other information about credit risk.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defjned as the possibility of sustainin8 а loss as а result
of another рагtу to а financial instrument failing to реrfоrm in ассоrdапсе With the terms of the сопtrасt. The
Group useS the Same credit policies in makin8 conditional obligations as jt does for оп- statement of financial
position financial instrUments throUgh established credit approvals, riSk control limit5 and monitoring рrосеdчrеS.

Credit quality of fiпапсiаl assets

The tables below present information about the significant changes in the gross саrryiпg amount of financial
assets during the period that contributed to changes iп the loss аllоwапсе during the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr
2о22 апd 2021,:

,?6
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tlll I

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 7)

Debt securities ofthe
Gочеrпmепt of the

Republic of Uzbekistan
(Note 9) other assets (Note 1з)

Due from
оthеr
banks

(Note 8) Contin8encies (Note 29)

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums
Sta8e 1

12-month ECL
Sta8e 3

Lifetime ECL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Staвe 2

Lifetime
EcL

Stage 3
Lifetime

EcL

Stage 1

12-mопth
EcL

Stage 2

Lifetime
EcL

Stage 3

Lifetime
EcL

Gross carrying amount aS at
1 January 2022

Changes iп grоss carrying amount

- Transfer from stage 1

- Тrапsfеr frоm stage 2

- Тrапsfеr frоm stage 3

- Changes iп EAD*

New assets issued
Fiпапсiаl assets that have Ьееп
derecognised

Fоrеigп exchange differences and
other movements

79t,709

(144,6о4) 144,6о4

28,264

238,000

(105,415)

4з,91о

(144,590)

427,468

(42,442l

68,286

( 101,8з 1)

10,5 10

з54,987

з70,914

(354,987)

(455) 428

1,069

( 115)

152

267

tз,121,

(6зз)

404,764

(385,895)

608

(1,,974) (850)

570 44t,O7з 8з,507 1,602

2

( 152)

156

з,280

(464l

1

(8з,507)

L,974

(1,602)

850
Gross carrying amount as at
31 DесеmЬr 2022 851,924 t4 361,991 з70,914 1,069 1з,970 3,465 459,917
Loss allowance as at
31 December 2022 |I74| (14) (2,845) (428) (5) (1,191) |627| (512)

+ The line "Сhапgеý in EAD" represents chan8es in the grоss саrryiп8 amounts offinancial assetý measured at amortised cost issued iп рriоr реriоds which have not been
fUlly repaid durin8 2022,

77

l lll

бt7

27



I l a

I tllt(al
JotNT sTocK соммЕRсtдL вдNк'тURоNвдNк, дND lБ sUBslDlдRY
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cash апd cash
equivalents Due frоm other

banks (Note 8)

Debt securities of the
Gочеrпmепt of the

Republic of Uzbekistan
(Note 9) contingencies (Note 29)Other asseБ (Note 1З)(Note 7l

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Stage 1

12-month
EcL

Stage 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Stage 3

Lifetime
EcL

Stage 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 2

Lifetime
EcL

Sta8e З
Lifetime

EcL
lп millions uzbekiston soums

Gross carrying amount as at 1

January 2021

Changes in gross саrryiпg amount

1з2,518

з54,987

(1з2,518)

6,498

(55)

(5,87з)

1,591

(1,556)

14з,7о2

5,з9з

з5з,1 1з

(61,1з5)

2Ф,75о

(17,458)

56,763

(160,548)

1,602

- Changes in EAD*

New assets issued

Financial assets that have Ьееп

derecognised

Fоrеigп exchange differences
апd оthеr movements

445,з2l

170,58з

461,646

(269,080)

(16,761)

з21,586

9,012

\,28t,з54

(1,182,008)

(2,476|

(7)

589

Grоss carrying amount as at З1

DесеmЬеr 2021 427,468 354,987 бt7 83,507 1,602щl,о7з79t,7Ф

Loss al|owance as at
31 DесеmЬеr 2021 (2з0) (617) |2,799) (216)

* The liпе .'сhап8еs in EAD'' rерrеsепts сhапвеs jn the Bross саrrуiпg amounts offinancial assets measured at amortised cost issued in ргiоr periods which have not Ьееп

fully repaid during 2021

78
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l l

Thetables below present information about the si8nificant сhапgеs in the losý аllоwапсе on financialand non-financialassets durjngtheyear ended Зl DесеmЬеr 2022

and 2021:

cash and cash
equivalents

(Note 7)

Due frоm
other banl<s

(Note 8)

Debt securities of
the Gочеrпmепt of

the Republic of
Uzbekistan (Note 9) йhеr assets (Note 13) contingencies (Note 29)

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 3

Lifetime
EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Stage 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Stage 2

Lifetime
EcL

Stage З
Lifetime

EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

Sta8e 2

Lifetime
EcL

Stage З
Lifetime

EcL

Loss allowance for ECL as at
1 January 2022 2з0 2,58з з81 677 77о 2,799 216

Changes in the loss allowance
Тrапsfеr frоm stage 1

Тrапsfеr from stage 2

Тrапsfеr frоm stage З

- Changes in EAD*
New assets issued
Financial assets that have Ьееп

derecognised
Fоrеigп ехсhапgе differences and

other movements

(1)

(55)

80

(8з)

з

(з44)

78]

(25 1)

7о

1,52

(71)

1,108

189
з58

(77ol

(з5)

1

1з

152i
182
44з

(47l 28

428

(з81)

2

(464)

].

(2,799l

47

(216)

(28)

Loss allowance for ECL as at
31 DесеmЬеr 2022 t74 74 2,u5 428 5 1,191 627 512

*"сhапgе5 iп ЕдУ аrё attributable to chan8es in раrаmеtёrs (PD, LGD}, changes in EAD and adjustment of EcL due to transferto new ýtages, as Wellas transfers of EcL

on new financialassets measured at amortised cost originated durjngthe rерогtiп8 period from Staвe 1to othersta8es. The information on transfers above reflects the

migration offinancial assets measured at amoгtised cost from thёir initial sta8e (orthe sta8e as at the Ьеgiппiп8 ofthe reportin8 date) to the sta8e they Wёrе in аs at the

reporting date. This information does not reflect the intermediate stage that the financial assets measured at amoгtised cost could Ье assi8ned to throughout the
reportin8 реriоd,

79
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cash and cash
eqUivalents

(Note 7)

Due ftom other
banks

(Note 8)

other assets
(Note 13) Сопtiпgепсiеs (Note 29)

ln millions of Uzbekiston sоums

stage 1
12-month

EcL

5ta8e 1

12-month
EcL

sta8e 1
12-mопth

EcL

Stage З
Lifetime

EcL

Sta8e 1

12-month
EcL

stage 2
12-month

EcL

Stage З

12-month
Ect

Loss аllоwапсе fоr EcL as at
1Jапчаry 2021 2о 2,24о -744 з20 17а ? 7qq 216

chan8es in the loss allowance
- Сhап8е5 in EAD*

NeW aýsets is5ued

Financial as5et5 that have Ьееп

dereco8nised
Financial aýsets written-off

Fоrеigп ехсhап8е differences апd other
movements

55

154

(з) з69

з81

|7 44)

(7)

7,618

(7,з14)

4з

Loss allowance fоr EcL as at
з1 DесеmЬеr 2021 2зо 2,583 з81 2,799 276

*"Changes in EAD" аrе attributable to сhапgеs in parameters (PD, LGD), changes in EAD and adjustment of EcL due to transfer to new stages, as well as transfers of ECL

on new financial assets measured at amortised cost originated during the reporting реriоd from Stage ]- to other Stages. The information on transfers above reflects the
migration of financial assets measured at amortised cost from their initial stage (оr the Stage as at the be8innin8 of the rероrtiпg date) to the Stage they Wеrе in as at

the reportin8 date, This information does not reflect the intermediate stage that the financjal assets measured at amortised cost could Ье assigned to throughout the
rероrtiпg period,

80
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Debt securities of
the Gочеrпmепt of

the RерUЫiс of
Uzbekistan (Note 9)

(859)

790

617 77о
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Analysis of the Group's credit risk exposure реr class of financial asset and "stage" without taking into account
the effects of апу соllаtеrаl оr оthеr enhancement is provided in the following table.

З1 DесеmЬеr 2022

lп millions of Uzbekiston Sоums
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Sta8e 2
Lifetime ECL

Stage 3
Lifetime ECL Total

Loans to corporate customers that аrе individually
assessed fоr impairment
- rated frоm ВВ- to ВВ+

-not rated
Loans to customers that аrе collectively assessed
fоr impairment

528,255

з,755,462 2,5з2,4о0 785,659 7,о7з,527

2,429,о18
2,429,о18

529,988 2,959,006
2,429,о1,8

528,255

Total loans and advances to счstоmеБ, grоss 6,184,480 2,5з2,4ф 1,зlз,914 10,0з0,794

Less - Allowance fоr expected credit losses (14,з57| (315,77з) (з21,680) (710,048)

Total loans and advances to customers, пеt 6,110,12з 2,2t6,627 992,2у 9,з2о,746

lп millions of Uzbekiston Sourns
Stage 1

l2-month ECL

Stage 2
Lifetime ECL

Stage 3
Lifetime ECL Total

Loans to соrроrаtе customers that аrе
individually assessed for impairment
- rated frоm ВВ- to ВВ+

- not rated
Loans to customers that аrе collectively
assessed for impairment

1,980,607
1,980,607

5,175,689

з95,898

з95,898

2,376,505
1,980,607

395,898

807,192 257,967 6,2з4,848

Total loans and advances to customers,

8ross 7,156,296 8о7,192 647,865 8,611,353

Less - Allowance fоr expected credit
losses (102,046) (105,654) (129,048) (зз6,748)

Total loans and advances to customers,
net 7,о54,25о 701,5з8 518,817 8,274,6о5

Махimчm credit exposure

The maximum ехроsurе to credit risk is gепеrаllу reflected iп the саrryiпg amounts of financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position and unrecognised contractual commitments.

The maximum exposure to сrеdit risk f rоm financial assets as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2О22 is as follows:

81
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Related amounB not
set off iп the statement offinancial

lп millions of UZbekiston
soUms

G rоss

аmочпts of
recognised

financial
asSeъ

Gross
amounts

of
recognlsed

financial
liabilities
set off in

the
statement

of financial
position

Net
amounts of

financial
asseъ

presented

in the
statement

of financial
position

Cash
collateral

collateral
pledged

osition
Net ехроsчrе

after offset апd
collateral

1,588,940
з59,146

з70,486

9,з2о,746

28,8з1
47,6ot

|12),289)

(з0,920)

1,466,651 {614,901)
з59,146

з70,486

9,з2о,746

28,8з1
16,681

{4,9з5) (9,288,з8з)

851,750
з59,146

з70,486

27,428

28,8з1
16,681

459,405 459,405 (1,604 457,801

The maximum ехроsUrе to credit risk from financial assets as at 31 December 2021 is as follows

Related amounts not
set off iп the statement of financial

lп millions о| Uzbekiston
5oUms

G rоss
amountý of
recognised

financial
assets

G ross

аmочпъ
of

recognised
financial
liabilities
set off in

the
statement

of f]папсiаl
position

Net
аmоuпъ of

fiпапсiаl
assets

presented
in the

statement
of f]папсiаl

position

Cash
collateral

collateral
pledged

ition

Net exposure
аftеr offset апd

collateral

Cash and cash eqUivalents
Due from оthеr banks
Loans and advances to

cU5tomerS
Debt securities of the

Gоvеrпmепt of the
RepUblic of UzbekiStan

Financial a55et5 at fair vaiue
through other
comprehenSive income

other financialassets
Оf|-Ьаlопсе sheet items:
credit related commitments

1,,з25,7 78
424,885

8,274,6о5

з54,606

25,о67
8,494

|7о.7 64)

25,о67
570

791,,479

424,885

22,56о

з54,606

25,067
570

1,,254,954 |46з,475)
424,885

з54,606

8,274,6о5 |7,267) \8,244,778)

|] ,924)

з66,560 2,о4о з64,52о

82

Саsh and cash equivalents
Due from other banks
Debt SecUritie5 of the

Gочеrпmепt of the
RepUblic of Uzbekistan

Loans апd advances to
customers

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

оthеr financial assets
О|f-Ьоlопсе sheet items:
credit related commitmentS

з66,560
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Morket risk The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks аrisе from ореп positions in (а) счrrепсу,
(Ь) interest rаtе and (с) equity products, all of which аrе exposed to gепеrаl and specific market movements.
Мапаgеmепt Sets limits оп the Vаluе of risk that may Ье accepted, Which is monitored on а daily basis. НоWечеr,

the use of this аррrоасh does not рrечепt losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market
movements.

Сurrепсу isk. The Group takes оп ехроsurе to the effect of fluctuations in the prevailin8 foreign сurrепсу
exchange rаtеs on its financial position and cash flows. ln respect of сurrепry risk, the Соuпсil sets limits оп the
level of exposure Ьу сurrепсу and in total for both overni8ht and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily.
Тhе Grочр measures its сurrепсу risk Ьу:

Net position on each currency should not exceed 10% of Grочр's total equity;
Total net position on all currencies should not exceed З.5 % of Group's total equity

The table below summarises the Group's ехроsurе to foreign сurrепсу exchange rate risk at the reporting date
as at 31 December 2022:

lп millions oJ Uzbekiston soums uzs us Dollars EuroS other Tota l

МОNПАRY ЛSSЕБ
caSh and са5h equivalents
Due frоm other banks
Debt securities of the
Government of the Republic of
uzbekistan

Lоапs and advances to
customers
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

other financial a55etS

625,415
270,7 з5

370,486

28,8зr
12,000

77з,517
88,411

4,46з 218

22,)62 1,466,651

з59,146

з70,486

9,з20,746

28,8з1
16,681

з,970,465 5,07з,119 2/1,162

ToTAL MoNпARY pýsm 5,277,992 5,9з9,510 з22,777 22,262 11,562,541

MoNETARY LlABlLlTlEs

Due to other banks

customer accounts
Borrowings from government,
state and internationa!
financial institutions

Lease liabilitie5

other financial liabilities

26,696
2,42з,26з

1,880,469

14,047
з2,774

1,221,9зб
568,646

11,4 /9

2,889

6,68з з,682
1,251,,521,

з,оо2,27 4

6,719,5о4
14,047
4з,59з

4,560,751 278,284

ToTAL MoNпARY L|ABlLlTlEs 4,з76,589 6,з62,812 287,856 з,682 11,0з0,9з9

NET вАиNсЕ sнЕп PoslтloN 901,40з (42з,з02) з4,92L 18,580

8з

45,з97
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The table below summarises the Group's ехроsurе to foreign сurrепсу exchange rate risk at the rерогtiпg date
as at З1 December 2021:

lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums uл us Dollars Ечrоs other Total

MONПARYASSПS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due frоm оthеr banks

Debt securities of the Government
of the Republic of Uzbekistan

Loans and advances to customers
Financial assets at fair value
through оthеr comprehensive
income

оthеr financial assets

56з,763
292,349

354,606
з,з14,299

25,о67

54з

653,676
132,515

16,893

4,655,501 244,805

27

2о,622
2t

1,254,954
424,885

з54,606
8,274,6о5

25,о67

570
TOTAL MONETARY ASSПS 4,6to,62l 5,441,,719 261,698 20,643 10,зз4,687
моNпАRY LlABlLlTlES
Due to оthеr banks

customer accounts
Debt securities in issue

Borrowings frоm gочеrпmепt,

state and international financial
institutions
Lease liabilities
other financial liabilities

1,950,57з
tз,4t4

,J,,420,561

1,4,92з

5,з52

9з7,6t4
596,940 з,290

4,009,571 244,о49

5,475

8з9
9з7,614

2,551,642
Iз,414

5,674,\81
14,92з
t0,827

ToTAL MoNпARY LlABlLlTlES з,4(и,823 5,549,6(ю 247,зз9 839 9,202,601
NП ВАЦNСЕ SHEET POS|TION 1,205,804 (107,881) 14,з59 19,8й

lnvestments iп equities and поп-mопеtаry assets аrе not considered to give risе to any material сuгrепсу risk.

The Group also measures its счrrепсу risk Ьу matching financial assets and liabilities denominated in same
счrrепсу and analyses the effect of З0% аррrесiаtiоп/dерrесiаtiоп of that сurrепсу against Uzbekistan Soums
to the profit оr loss of the Grоuр (31 DесеmЬеr 2021: 30%).

The following table presents sensitivities of profit оr loss and equity to maximum оЬsеrчеd changes iп exchange
rаtеs dчriпg the respective уеаrs fоr respective currencies applied at the rерогtiпg date relative to the functional
сurrепсу of the Group, with all other variables held constant:

2022 2o2l

lп milliопs of Uzbekiston Soums

lmpact оп profit оr
loss, аftеr tax for

gain result

lmpact on рrоfit
оr loss, аftеr tax

fоr gain result

US Dollars strengthening Ьу З0% (2021: З0%)

US Dollars weakening Ьу З0% (2021:30О/о)

Еurо strengthening Ьу З0% (2O2t: З0%)

Еurо weakening Ьу 30% (2021: 30%)

Other сurrепсiеs strengthening Ьу З0% (2O2t: ЗО%)

Other сurrепсiеs weakening Ьу 30% (2021: 30%)

(126,990)
126,990

1,0,476
(10,476)

5,574
(5,574)

(з2,з64)
25,892
з,446

(4,з08)
4,75з

(5,941)

84
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Тhе exposure calculated only for monetary balances denominated iп currencies оthеr than the functional
сurrепсу of the Group. lmpact оп equity would Ье the same as impact оп statement of comprehensive income.

Limitotions of sensitivity опоlуsis,Тhе above tables demonstrate the effect of а change in а key assu mption While
other assumptions rеmаjп unchanged, ln reality, there is а correlation between the assumptjons and other
factors, lt should also Ье noted that these sensitivitie5 аrе поп-liпеаr, and lаrgеr оr smaller impacts should not
Ье interpolated or eХtrapolated frоm these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group'S assets and liabilities аrе actively
managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group mау Vаry at the time that апу actual market
movement occurs. Fоr example, the Group's financial risk management 5trategy aims to mапаgе the ехроsurе
to market fluctuation5.

As inveStment markets move past variou5 triggеr levels, management actions could include selling investments,
changing investment portfolio aIlocation and taking other protective action. consequently, the actual impact of
а сhапgе in the assumptions may not have апу impact on the liabilities, Whereas assets аrе held at market value
оп the statement of financial position. lп these circumstances, the different measurement bases for Iiabilities
and assets may lead to volatility iп equity. other limitations in the above Sensitivity analyses include the use of
hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential ri5k that only represent the Group's view of possible

пеаr-tеrm market changes that саппоt Ье predicted With апу ceгtainty; and the assumptjon that all interest
rates move in an identical fashion,

lnterest rоtе isk The Grочр takes оп exposure to the effects of fluctuations iп the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. lnterest marginS may increase aS а result of such changes
but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

Мапаgеmепt monitors on а daily basis and sets limits on the |еVеl of mismatch of interest rate repricin8 that
may Ье u ndertaken.

The Grочр has по significant interest rate risk, since major aS5et5 and liabilities are at fixed interest rates
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The GrоUр monitors interest rates for its financial instruments. The table below SUmmarises interest rates based
on rероrts reviewed Ьу key management реrsоппеl:

2о22 2о21

1п % р.о UБ USD EUR other Uzs USD EUR оthеr

Д5et5

cash апd cash eqUivalents 0_ 19 о11
0-

4+month
Libo.

0-4 month
LiborDue fгоm оthег banks

Debt secuгities ofthe
Gочеrпmепt
ofthe RepUblic of
Uzbeki5tan

Loans and advances to
сu5tоmег5

о-17

15-16

0-з5 2.2-12 2-1-8

0_17

1,2 1,4

0_зб 1.з_12 з8

LiabiIities

Due to оthег banks

customer accounts

lndividual5
- current/demand

accounts

- tегm deposits

Legal entitieS
- сUгrелt/dеmапd

accounts

- tеrm deposit5

- term ЬогrоWiпgs from
international financia
institutions

- tегm borrowings from
поп-Ьчd8еtагу fund5
and local commercial
banks

0_18 0-10

1-20 з-7

1-27 4 6,5

0_17.6

4.5-14

з,5 _ 18 2-з

1,.47,
6-mопth

Libor +

4_5

1,85 -

6-month
EURlBoR+

1,7

0_15

4.5-74

з-10 Libor 2-з

4.5 6,5

1.47-5 7.4-1."l

0 0,0

5з0 з-7

а-1 0,0

1,85

8-21

15_18

Lease liabilitie5 15 1з

other price risk, The GrоUр is exposed to prepayment risk through providjn8 loans, including mоrtgаgеs, Which
give the Ьоrrоwеr the right to еаrlу rерау the lоапs. The Group's сurrепt year profit or loss and equity at the
end of current rерогtiпg date would not have been significantly impacted Ьу changes in prepayment rates
because such loans аrе carried at amortised cost and the prepayment ri8ht is at оr close to the amoгtised cost
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of the loans and advances to customers. Transactions in eqUity products аrе monitored and authorised Ьу the
Treasury Department Ьу mопitоriпg dividend income реr eqUity instrument.

Geogrophiml risk солселtrоtiопs. The geographical сопсепtrаtiоп ofthe Grоuр's financial assets and liabjlities at
з1 December 2022 is set out below:

lп millions of Uzbekbtoл soums Uzbeki5tan oEcD Non-oEcD Tota l

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other banks
Debt securities of the
Government
of the RepUblic of Uzbekistan
LoanS and advance5 to cUStomer5
Financial assets at fair value
throUgh other comprehensive

income
оthеr financial assets

1,4з0,455
з59,146

з70,486
9,з2о,746

28,8з1
15,618

22,1об 14,090

1,06з

1,466,651
з59,146

з70,486
9,з2о,146

28,831
16,681

Total financial assets t1,525,282 22,106 15,15з 77,562,54L

Liabilities
Due to other banks
customer accounts
Borrowings f rоm government,
state and international financial
organisations

Lease liabilities
other financial liabilities
credit related соm mitments

541,,484
з,оо2,274

1,,59з,977

14,о47
4з,59з

885,645

з,945,515

11,0,0з /

t,18o,a72

L,25L,52L
з,ф2,274

6,719,5и
].4,047

4з,59з
885,645

Total financial liabilities, inclUding
off Ьаiапсе sheet positionS 6,080,960 з,945,515 1,890,109 11,916,584

Net Ьаlапсе sheet position
as at з1 December 2022 5,444,з22 (з,92з,409) (1,874,956)

8]

Аll financial assets апd liabilities from oEcD countrieS соmрrisе banking institutions of Gеrmапу and United
states of America; non-oEcD countries comprise banking institutions of Russia and China.
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The geographical сопсепtrаtiоп of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at 31 DесеmЬеr 2021 is set out
below:

lп millions uzbekiston 5очms uzbekistan oEcD Non-OECD Total

AsSets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other banks
Debt securities of the
Government
of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Loans and advances to
customers
tinancial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
iпсоmе
other financial assets

1,040,810
424,864

354,606

8,274,605

25,о67
54з

66,07з t48,071,
2t

27

1,254,954
424,885

354,606

8,274,605

25,067
570

Totalfinancial asseъ 10,120,495 66,07з 148,119 10,з34,687

Liabilities
Due to other banks
customer accounts
Debt securities in issue
Borrowings from government,
state and iпtеrпаtiопаl
financia l organisations
Lease liabilities
other financial liabilities
credit related com mitments

875,з50
2,551,642

1з,474

1,2з0,668
14,92з
t0,827

558,464

з,260,збз

62,264

1,18з,150

9з7,674
2,55I,642

1з,4l4

5,674,781-
1,4,92з

to,827
558,464

Tota l financia l liabilities,
including off Ьаlапсе sheet
positions 5,255,z88 з,260,збз L,z45,4L4 9,761,065

Net Ьаlапсе sheet position
as at 31 December 2021 4,865,2о7 (3,194,290) (1,097,295)

Liquidity risk Liquidity гisk is the risk that ап entity will encounter difficulty meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to daily calls оп its available cash rеsоuгсеs frоm overnight deposits,
сurrепt accounts, maturing deposits, lоап drаw downs,8uarantees and frоm margin and other calls оп cash
settled derivative instruments. The Group does not maintain cash rеsоurсеs to meet all of these needs as

ехреriепсе shows that а minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can Ье predicted with а high leve| of
certainty. Liquidity risk is managed Ьу the Asset/Liability Committee of the Grоuр.

The Grоuр seeks to maintain а stable funding base comprising рrimаrilу amounts due to other banks, corporate
and retail customer deposits and invest the funds in diversified portfolios and inter-bank placements of liquid
assets, in оrdеrtо Ье ableto rеsропd quicklyand smoothlyto unforeseen liquidity requirements.

The liquidity management of the Group requires considering the level of liquid assets necessary to settle
obligations as they fall due; maintaining access to а rап8е of funding sоurсеs; maintaining funding contingency
plans and monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against regulatory rеquirеmепts. The Grоuр
calculates liquidity rаtiо on а daily basis in ассоrdапсе with the requirement of the CBU. These ratios аrе
calculated using figures based оп Uzbek National Accounting Standards.
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The Treasury Depaгtment receives jnformation about the liquidity profile of the financial assets and liabilities.
The Тrеаsury Department then provides fоr an adeqUate poгtfolio of shогt-tеrm liquid assets, largely made up
of Short-term liquid trading securities, deposits With banks and other inter-bank facilities, to ensure that
sufficient liqUidity iS maintajned within the Group as а whole.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress teSting чпdеr а Variety of scenarios covering
both поrmаl and mоrе severe market conditionS is реrfоrmеd Ьу the Treasury Dерагtmепt.

The table below shows liabilities а5 at З1" December 2022 Ьу their remaining contractual maturity. The amounts
disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. These undiscounted cash flows
differ from the amount included in the Statement of financial position because the statement of financial
position amoUnt is based on discounted cash flows.

When the amount рауаЬlе is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined Ьу rеfеrепсе to the conditions
existing at the rерогtiп8 date. Fоrеigп сUrrепсу payments аrе translated usin8 the spot exchange rate at the
rероrtiпg date,

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at З1 December 2022 is as follows:
Tota l

gross

amount
outflow

Саrryiп8
amount

ln millions о|
uzbekiston soums

Demand and
less than
1month

Frоm 1 to
6 months

Frоm б to
12 months

очеr
12 mопth5

Liabilities
Due to оthеr bankS
customer accounts
Borrowings from

8очеrпmепt,5tаtе and
internationa l fina ncia l

organisations
Lease liabilities
other financial
liabilities
credit related
commitments

279,175
1,524,581

1,909,9зб
4з4

405,694
607,0з0

249,5з7
2,7 зз

266,8з2
64з,065

з98,776
1,125,40з

6,8з9,092
8,з20

r,з5о,477
з,900,079

9,з60,165
74,о47

L,251,521
з,ф2,274

6,719,504
74,о47

4з,59з 4з,59з 4з,59з

7 ,286 21з,-750 261,,289 40з,з20 885,645 885,645

Total potentialfuture
payment5 for financial
ob!iBations з,765,005 7,4?8,744 1,5з5,з46 8,774,971 15,554,006 11,916,584

89

з61,600
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The maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at З1 December 2021 is as follows:

lп millions of
uzbekiston soums

Demand and
less than
1 month

Frоm 1 to
6 months

Frоm б to
12 months

over
12 months

Tota l

grоss

amount
outflow

Саrryiпg
amoUnt

Liabilities
DUe to other bankS

customer accounts
Debt securities in issue
ВоrrоWiпgs from

8очеrпmепt, State and
international financial
organiSation5

Lea5e liabilitieS
оthеr financial liabilities
credit related
commitments

9,428
1,272,о95

782

1,509,251
з92

10,827

7а,718

275,011
7з,869
2,о4з

181 ,445
1,961

110,210
240,018
12,8з7

298,зз4
?,з47

552,0з4
1,290,699

452

5,424,982
1з,059

946,68з
2,876,687

15,514

7,42o,oL2
17,759
7о,827

9з7,614
2,551,642

1з,4l4

5,674,181
74,92з
ro,827

1з9,594 62,657 з45,4з5 558,464 558,464

2,812,95з 679,92з 726,4оз 7,626,667 11,845,940 9,761,065

Customer accounts аrе classified in the above analysis based оп contractual maturities. Ноwечеr, in accordance
with Uzbeklstan Civil Code, indivlduals have а right to Withdraw their deposits рriоr to maturity if they forfeit
their right to ассruеd interest. The Grоuр does not use the above undiscounted maturity analysis to mапаgе
liquid ity. lnstead, the

Group monitors rеmаiпiпg contractual maturities, which аrе sчmmагisеd as follows as at 31 December 2022:
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lп millions of Uzbekiston Soums Dеmапd and less than 1 mопth trоm 1 to б months Frоm б to 12 months over 1 уеаr Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other banks

Debt securities of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan

Loans and advances to customers

2з1,92о

1 18,8зб

45,16 1

93,715

251,650

з2з,з,J,7 547,]45

?з1,426

8,4о4,52з

2з7,92о
331,141

370,486

9,з2о,746

Total interest Ьаriп8 aýsetý 4о1,917 668,682 547,745 8,641,949 1о260,29з

Cash and cash equivalents

Duе frоm other banks

Fiпапсiаl assets at fаir value through other соmрrеhепsiче income

other financial assets

1,,228,7з1

28,005

28,8з1

16,681

I,228,7зt
28,005

28,831

16,681

Total поп-iпtеrеst Ьеаriпg assets L,зо2,24а 1,з02,248

Total fiпапсiаl assets 1,7о4,165 668,682 547,745 8,64],949 11,562,541

Llabillties

Due to оthеr banks

customer accounts

Debt securities iп issue

Borrowings frоm gочеrпmепt, state and international financial organisations

224,5о9

15о,170

1,559,55з

380,54з

497,866

119,004

25о,з28
55з,2 з 1

208,5 10

з03,087

455,06з

4,8з2,4з7

1,158,467

1,656,3з0

6.719,504

Total interest Ьеаriпg liabilities |,9з4,2з2 99Z4lз ]"012,ffig 5,590,587 9,534,301

Due to other banks

cuStomer accounts

Lease liabilities

оthеr financial liabilities

50,з98

1,з45,944

4з4
4з,593

8,980

) 71,а, 2,56о

зз,616

8,з20

9з,054

т,з45,944
L4,u7
43,593

Total non-interest Ьеаriпg liabilities 1,1ио,з69 1]"71з 2,56о 41,996 1,496,6з8

Total fi папсiаl liabilities з,з74601 1,009,126 1,014629 5,6з2,583 11,030,939

Net liquidity 8ар (1,670,436) (з4о.444) (466,884) з,Oо9,з66 5з1,602

cumulative liquidity 8ар at З1 Decembr 2022 (2,010,880) |2,477,764| 5з1,6о2
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Although the Grоuр does not have the right to use the mandatory deposits held jn Central bank of Uzbekistan
for the purposes of funding its operatin8 activities, the mana8ement classifies them as demand deposits in the
liquidity gap analysis оп the basis that thеir паturе iS inherently to fund sudden Withdrawal of customer
accoU ntS.

The matching апd/оr controlled mismatching of the maturitieS and interest rates of assets and liabilities i5

fundamental to the management of the Grочр. lt is unusual for banks ечеr to Ье completely matched since
business transacted is often of an чпсегtаiп term and of different types, Ап unmatched position potentially
enhances profitability, but сап also increase the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to rерlасе, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities
as they mature, аrе imрогtапt factorS in assessing the liquidity of the Grоuр and its exposure to changes in

interest and exchange rates.

Mana8ement believes that in Spite of the fact that а substantial роrtiоп of customer accounts is оп demand and

less than 1 month, diversification of these deposits Ьу пumЬеr and type of depositors, and the past ехреriепсе
of the Grочр would indicate that these customer accounts provide а lопg-tеrm and stable source of funding for
the Group.

The analysis Ьу rеmаiпiпg contractual maturities аrе summarised as follows at З1 DесеmЬеr 2021:
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lп millions of Uzbeklston Soums Dеmапd and less than 1 month Frоm 1 to б months Frоm б to 12 months Очеr 1 уеаr Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other banks

Debt Securities of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan

Loans and advances to customers

161,6о8

198,597

99,918

192,998

655,107

7о9,721

784,49о

287,7зо

6,636,4].1

99,918

з97,451

з54606
8,274,ffi

Total interest Ьаriп8 assets з60,205 948,о2з 894211 6,924,t4t 9,126,58о

Cash and cash equivalents

Due frоm оthеr banks

Financial assets at fаir value through оthеr comprehensive income

other financial assets

1,155,0зб

1,0з4

25,о67

570

26,4оо

1,155,0зб

27,4з4

25,067

570

Total non-interest Ьеаriп8 assets I,|a\707 26,ю 1,208,107

Total fiпапсiаl assets I,54L,9T2 948,02з 894211 6,950,541 10,3з4,687

Liaыlities

Due to other banks

customer accounts

Debt securities iп issue
BorrowingS from government, State and internationa| fiпапсiаl organisations

112,8зз

1,4]2,84о

272,о25

62,671

1,2о1
9],918

з8з,з2о
21,1,495

1 1,8 13

19 1,692

26s,522
1,о24,зз9

400
з,91,1,671,

92о,867

1,411,зз8

11414
5,674181

Total interest Ьеаriпg Iiabilities ]"585,67з 4з3,875 798,з2о 5,2о],9з2 8,019,800

Due to other banks

customer accounts

Lease liabilities

оthеr financial liabilities

а,о7]
1,1з8,264

29а

10,827

2,040

1,49z

8,670

1,785 11,з48

16,747

1,1lto,304

t4,92з
to,a27

Total поп-iпtеrеst Ьеаriпg liabilities t,\57,466 3.5з2 10,455 11,з/в 1,182,8о1

Total fi папсiаl liabilities 2,74з,тз9 4з7,ф7 808,775 5,21з,280 9,202,6о1

Net liquidity gар |L,2о7,227| 510,616 85,4зб |,7з7,26L 1,1з2,086

Cumulative liquidityBap at 31 DесеmЫ 2021 |1,2oL,227l (690,611} (6о5.1 75) 1,1з2,шб

The Group receiveý short tеrm deposit from оthеr state owned Ьапk5 with а payback period of less than опе уеаr and deposit from customers. These funds

are used to finance state initiated programs, which are part ofthe соmmоп aim of all of the bank5 iпvоlvёd, Therefore, althouвh thё maturity of thё fiпапсе
provided bythe Gгочр i5 lоп8еr than that ofthe finance received to fund the projects, the resultin8liquidity mismatch is mitigated.

9з
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Thus, the management believes that the Siвnjficant maturity mismatch between assets and liabilities With

maturity Up to 12 months does not rерrеsепt а significant risk to the Group's liquidity, as а very low рrороrtiоп
of due to other banks, demand deposits and short-term deposits is expected to Ье withdrawn based оп the

Group's past years' and сUrrепt уеаr eхperience, which is consistent With the gепеrаl banking practices in the

banking sector of Uzbekistan.

27. Fаirчаlче of financial instruments

lFRS defines fаir value aS the price that Would Ье received to sell ап asset оr paid to transfer а liability in ап

orderly transaction between market participants at а measurement date,

The fair values of the Group's fanancial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value оп а rесUrriп8

basis.

Fair value measurements are analysed Ьу level in the fair value hiеrаrсhу as follows: (i) level опе аrе

measurements at qUoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fоr identical assets оr liabilities, (ii) level two

measurements аrе valUation5 techniques With alI material inputs observable for the asset оr liability, еithеr

directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived frоm prices), and (iii) level three measurements аrе

valuations not baSed on observable market data (that is, чпоЬsегчаЬlе inputs). Mana8ement applies judgement

in categorising financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. lf а fаir value measurement uses observable

inputs ihat require significant adjustment, that measurement iS а Level з measurement. The significance of а

valuation input is assessed against the fair Value measurement in its entirety,

some of the Group's financial assets and financial tiabilities аrе measured at fаir value at the end of each

rероrtiпg уеаr. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities аrе determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).Financial assets and

financial liabilities аrе classified in iheir entirety based оп the lowest level of input that i5 significant to the fair

value measurements. Management's assessment of the significance of а раrtiсчlаr input to the fair value

measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of the assets and liabilities being measured and

their placement within the fair Value hierarchy.

The Grоuр considers that the accountin8 estimate related to the valuation of financial instruments whеrе

quoted markets prices аrе not available is а key sочrсе of estimation uпсегtаiпtу because: (i) it is hi8hly

susceptible to changes from year to уеаr, as it requires management to make assumptions about interest rates,

volatiiity, exchangeiates, the credit rating of the сочпtеrраrtу, valuation adjustments and specific features of

transactions and (ii) the impact that recojnising а change iп the valuations would have on the assets reported

on the consolidated statement of finaniial position, а5 well as, the related profit or loSs reported on the

consolidated statement of profit оr loss, could Ье material,

Except as detailed in the following table, the management considers that the carrying values of financial assets

and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values,

some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities аrе measured at fair value at the end of each

rерогtiп8 period. The fotlowing table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined (iпъаrtiсulаr, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used) at З1 December

2о22 апd 202\:
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FinancialДsets/
Liabilities а5

at з1 December
2о22

Саrryiпg
чаlче

Fаir
value

Fairva|Ue hiеrаrфу
Valuation model{s)

and key input(s)

si8nificant
unobser-

vable
ln

Relation5hip of
unobservable

inputs to fair value

Lоап5 апd advanceS
to customers

Due to other
banks

9,з2о,746 7,7зз,694 Level з

з59,146 з47,9з7 Level з

1,25:.,521 1,224,1з2 Level з

з,оо2,274 2p452аб Level 2

6,719,504 7,21з,з91 Level з

DiscoUnted ca5h
flows аrе e5timated

based оп ачегаgе
inteгe5t rates

Di5counted caSh

f!ows аге estimated
based оп поп-

obServable inpUtS

Discounted cash
flows аге eStimated

baýed on поп-
observable inputs

Di5counted cash
flows are eStimated

based on ачегаве
interest rates (fгоm

оьsеrчаьlе stati5tical
bulletin of the cBU)

N/A
The greater discount- the

smaller fair value

Регсепtа8е
diScoUnt

The grеаtег discount- the
smaller fаiг value

Регсепtаgе
discoUnt

The 8reater discount- the
smаllеr fair value

Регсепtаgе
discoUnt

The grеаtег diScount- the
smаllеr fаiг valuecustomer accounts

ВоrrоWiп8s from

8overnment,5tate
and international
financial
organiSations

valuation mode]

based оп internal
model

Регсепtаgе
discount

The grеаtеr diScount- the
smаllеr fair value

дs at з1 Decembe r 2о22 апd 2О21, the Grоuр determined fair va lue fоr Some of its financial aSSetS and liabilities

using the discounted cash flow model Ьу applyin8 cBU Statistical bulletin, which became open to public staгting

2О],9. Such financial instruments Wеrе cate8orised as Level 2.

tоr those financial instruments whеrе interest rates were not dirесtlу available in the cBu statistical buIletin,

the Grоuр determined the fair value of financial instruments u5ing the discounted cash flow model based оп the

rates of the deals concluded towards the end of the reporting period. Due to the absence of ап active market

оr observable input5 for in5truments with characteristics similar to the Bank's financial instruments,

the Management considered the latest rates as the most appropriate input from аll available data fоr calculation

of the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities. Тhеrеfоrе, these lonв-term financial instruments that

are not measured at fair valUe оп а rесurriпg basiS but where fair value disclosures are required, аrе categorised

Within Level З.
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Financial^sSets/
Liabilities as

at з1 December
2027

Fаir
valUe

hiегаrсhу
valuation model(s)

and key input(s)

significant
чпоЬsеr-

vable
inpUt(5)

Relation5hip of
uпоьsеrчаьlе

inputs to fаjr valueFair valUe

Loans апd
advances
to cu5tomers

Due fгоm
other
bank5

Due to other
banks

8,2/4,6о5 '1,594,з54 Level з

424,885 42з,82в Level з

5,674,181 4,з62,819 Level з

valuation model
baSed on iпtеrпа1

model
Регсепtаgе

di5coUnt

The greater

d]scount the smаllеr
fair value

Discounted cash
flows аrе estimated

based оп ачегаgе
interest гаtеs

Discounted cash

flows аrе estimated
based оп поп-

оЬsегчаЬlе inputs
Discounted cash

flows are estimated
based оп поп-

observabIe inputs

Di5counted cash

flows аrе estimated
ba5ed on ачегаgе

interest rates (from

ob5ervable 5tati5tical
bulletin of the cBU)

N/A

Percenta8e
discoUnt

Регсепtаgе
di5coUnt

Percentage
d]scoUnt

The 8геаtеr
discount- the smаllеr

fair value

The 8reater
dlscount- thе smaller

fair value

The 8rеаtеr
discount- the Smаllеr

fаiг value

9з1 ,614 929,916 LeVel з

customer accounts 2,551,642 2,з52,757 Level 2

ВоrrоWiпgs frоm

8очеrпmепt,
State and
international
financial
oгBaniSations

28. Management of capital

The Group's objectives when mana8ing capital аrе (i) to comply with the capital requirements set Ьу the cBU,

and (ii) to safeguard the GrоUр'5 ability to continue as а gоiпg сопсеrп. compliance With capital adequacy ratios

,"t Ёу tb" CB-U is monitored monthly With rероrts очtliпiпg their calculation reviewed and signed Ьу the

chairman and chief Accounta nt,

under the current capital rеquirеmепts set Ьу the cBu, banks have to maintain ratios of:

. Ratio of Group's main tier 1capital to risk weighted assets {"capital adequacy ratio") above а prescribed

minimum leve! of 8 percent (2021: 8 реrсепt);
. Ratio of Group's tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets ("capital adequacy ratio") above а prescribed

minimum level of 1О.О percent (2021: 10.0 percent)i

. Ratio of total regulatory capital to risk Weighted assets ("Regulatory capital ratio") above а prescribed

mjnimum level of 13.О percent (2021: 13,0 percent);and

. Ratio of Group's tier 1 capital to total assets less intangibles ("Leverage ratio") above а рrеsсriЬеd

minimum level of б percent (202].: б реrсепt).
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discount- the Smaller

fair value
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The following table analyses the Group's rеgчlаtоry capital rеsоurсеs for capital adequacy purposes in

accordance With the requirements Set Ьу the cBU:

lп millions ol UzЬеkЫоп sоUms

2о22
(unaudited)

2о21
(unaUdited)

Тiеr 1capital
ordinary share capital
capital reServeS
Retained еаrпiпgs (рrечiочS years)

Less: lnvestments to non-consolidated entitieS

Total main tier 1capitаl
рrеfеrепсе shares

5hare premium

1,488,594
226,84з
7з,66t

(200,62з)

1,588,475
8,445

2I9
8,664

1,488,594
2о8,219

479
(85,497)

1,611,795
8,445

219
8,6

Additionalcapital
1,597,1з9 1,620,459

Totaltier 1 capital

52,861 101,56з

76,827
1з,881

87 ,7I1
12,1зо

оthег
15з,з08 792,271

Total tier 2 capital
7,75о,441 1,812,7з0

Total regulatory capital
17,2б1,562 10,1з1,410

Risk weighted asseв
1з,884,977 7|,825,о72

Ksets for levera8e ratio

Со pitol ode quocy roti os :

Moin tier 7 copitol adequocy rotio

Тiеr 1 copitol odequocy ratio

Totol rеgulоtоrу copitol odequocy rotio

14,71%

14.18%

15,54%

1,1,50%

15.9%

16,0%

17.9%

1з,7%
Leveroge rotio

29, contingencies and commitmenв

Legol ргосееdiпgs. trоm time to time and in the поrmаl course of business, claims against the Group аrе

received, On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and ехtеrпаl professional advice management iS

of the opinion that no material losses will Ье iпсurrеd in respect of claims and accordingly no provision has Ьееп

made in these consolidated financial statements,

Тох tegislotion. Uzbek taХ, сurrепry and customs le8islation iS subject to чаryiпg inte rpretations, and changes,

occu r-frequ е ntly. Management's interpretation оftйе legislation may Ье challenged Ьу the regional and federal

authorities. Recent events within the uzbekistan suggest that the tax authorities may Ье takin8 а mоrе assertive

position in their interpretataon of the legislation апd assessments, and it is possible that transactions and

;ctivities that have not been challenged in the past may Ье challenged. Дs а result, significant additional taxes,

penalties and interest may Ье assesied. tiscal periods rеmаiп open to review Ьу the authorities in respect of

taxes for five са lenda r уеа rs preced ing the year of revieW. Under сегtаiп circU mstanceS reviews may сочеr lопgеr

periodS.

Соmрliопсе with соуепоп8. The Group iS Subject to cedain covenants. дs disclosed in Note 17, the Group WaS

not in compliance With certain financial covenants related to its borrowings,
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Теr 2 capiИl
current уеаr net profit

tmpairment provision on standard aSsets, in the amount of not more than

1.25% of the total amoUnt of risk-Weighted assets



Credit reloted соmпr?mелts. The primary purpose of these instruments i5 to ensure that funds аrе available to а

cUstomer aS required. GUaranteeS and standby letters of credit, which represent irrечосаЬlе assUrances that the
Group will make payments in the event that а customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the
same credit risk as loans. Documentary and соmmеrсiаl letters of credit, which are Written undertakings Ьу the
Grоuр оп behalf of а customer authorising а third рагtу to draw drafts оп the Grоuр up to а stipulated amount

u пdеr specific terms and conditions, аrе collateralised Ьу the underlying 5hipments of goods to which they relate

оr cash deposits and therefore саrry less risk than а direct borrowing.

commitments to extend credit represent Unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans,

guarantees оr letterS of credit. With respect to credit risk оп commitments to extend credit, the Group is

potentially exposed to loss in ап amount equalto the total unused commitments, if the unused amounts wеrе

to Ье drаwп down, However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments since most

commitments to extend credit аrе contin8ent чроп customers maintaining specific credit standardS. The Group

monitors the tеrm to matu rity of cred it related comm jtments becauSe lon8er-term commitmentS gепеrаllу have

а grеаtеr degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments. outstandin8 credit related commitments are as

follows:

2о27

lп millions о| Uzbekiston soums 2о22 Restated)

Guarantees issued

undrawn credit iines
LetterS of credits, поп post-financing

LetterS of credits, post-financing With commencement after rероrtiпg period

end

458,зlз
427 ,844

1.604

з57 ,461
19з,944

2,040

10,8з8

Total grоss credit related commitments 887,761 5Ф,289

LesS - cash held aS security against letters of credit

Less - ProviSion for expected credit losses

(1,604)
(512)

(2,040)
(з,785)

885,645 558,4ф

Total amount of 8uarantees issued and undrawn credit lines do not necessary rерrеsепt future cash

requirements as these financial instruments may expire оr terminate Without being funded.
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з0. Related party tвnsactions

parties are gепеrаllу considered to Ье related if the рагtiеs are uпdеr common control оr one party has the

ability to control the other раrtу оr сап exercise Significant influence очеr the other рагtу in making financial оr

ореrаtiопаl decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the

substance of the relationship, not mеrеlу the legal fоrm.

"Shareholders" are shareholders with а shareholding in excess of 1%;

"оthеr related parties" - government rеlаtеd organisations and companies

дt 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, the outstanding balances with related раrtiеs Wеrе as follows
Other

8overnment

Кеу
mana8ement Total as реr financial

ln millions oI UZbekiston

soUms related rties shаrеhоldеrs rsоппеl Total statements са оп

cash and caSh equivalents
Due from оthеr banks

Debt Securitie5 of the
Government of the
RepUblic of Uzbekistan

LoanS and advance5 to
customers

Financial assetS at fair value

throUgh other
comprehensive iпсоmе

other assets
Due to other banks

customer accounts
BorroWingS from
gочеrпmепt, State

and international financial
institutions
other liabilities

558,855
зз1 ,295

з14,892 55,594

2,594,949

з,з67
14,954

452,28з
8з0,900

186

106

692,91,4
442

2,175,085
2r5

б

558,855
зз7,295

370,486

2,594,949

2,а67,999
657

1,466,651
з59,146

з70,486

9,з2о,746

28,8з1
244,з79

1,257,527
з,ф2,274

о719,504
55,487

710

оthеr
вочеrпmепt

related parties

КеY mапаgеmепt

реrSоппеI

Total as реr
f]nancial

statement5
са пTotal

ln millions of uzbekiston soums

lnterest income
lnterest ехрепSе
Dividend income
Expected credit loSses оп loans

and advances to customers
AdminiStrative and other
ореrаtiпg expenses

120,11з
7 7,2о1,

7,24з

11,235

124,797
226,267

7,24з

LL,2э5

1,07з,400
611,8з2

!,24з

500,516

68,251 6,408 74,665

99

з,з67
15,146

452,28з
8з1,276

The income and expense items with related раrtiеs for 2о22 wеrе as follows:

shareholders

4,684
155,066

з82,464
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At З1 DесеmЬеr 2О2],, the oUtstanding baIances with related раrtiеs Were as follows

lп millions of Uzbeklstoл sourns

other
вочеrпmепt

related
parties shareholdeБ

кеу
mапа8еmепt

реrsоппеl

Total as реr
financial

statemenБ caption
Total

cash and caSh equivalents
Due from other banks
Debt securities of the
Government
of the Republic of UzbekiStan

Loans and advances to customers
tinancial assets at fair value

throUgh other comprehensive
income

other assets
Due to other banks

customer accounts
Debt securities in is5ue

Borrowings f rom gочеrпmепt,

state and international financial

in5titution5
other liabilities

467 ,o4I
з90,746

з49,487
2,255,2з7

з,175
951

651,155
660,з80

1з,014

578,148
10

5,500

1,149,26з
845

467,uL
з90,746

з54,987
2,255,2з7

з,175
951

ь51,1)э
66з,070
1з,014

2,з27,41L
855

7,254,954
424,885

з54,606
8,27 4,6о5

25,о67
14з,2з4
9з7,614

z,55L,Ф2
1з,4t4

5,674,181
29,з46

16з

The income and ехрепsе items with related parties for 2021were as follows

other
gочеrпmепt

related parties shareholders

кеу

management

реrsоппеl Tota l

Total as реr
f]nancial

statements
caption

lnterest income
lntereSt expense
Dividend income
Expected credit lo55es оп loan5

and advances to customers
Admini5trative and other
ореrаtiпg expenses

lп millions о| uzbekiston soums

58,09з
42,2оз

797

7 ,564 150,210

з8,з50 5,224 2э4,425

Short-term benefits fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in Which management

LJzbekistOn soums 2о22 2о27

510
125,066

8з8,71з
490,913

791

lп millions oI

shоrt-tеrm benefits:
- salaries and other short-term benefits
- Social secUrity costs

5,587
821

4,592
бз2

100

58,60з
161,269

79r

rendered the related services,

Кеу management compensation is presented below:

7,564

44,758
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з1. Events afterthe епd ofthe reportin8 period

ln ассоrdапсе With the decision of the CBU dated 16 Маrсh 2023, the base rаtе was decreased to 14 percent

реr annum епsчriпg that relatively tight monetary conditions аrе maintained in the downward dynamics of the

inflation forecast (8.5-9.5 реrсепt). ln ]anuary-June 202з, the annUal inflation rаtе decreaSed to ].2.4 percent

реr annUm. Global inflation continued to moderate during 1,'t half of 202З, in addition to tighter monetary

policies of key central banks, the increased demand for safe assets in the context of rесепt Ьапk ruп episodes

iп the international bankin8 sector raises the Volatility оп financial and commodity markets,

In ассоrdапсе With Presidential Decree #83 dated 1 Маrсh 202З "оп additional measures to ассеlеrаtе strategic

reforms", the government Shares in the Share capital of the Bank (s.67%) have Ьееп transferred to the А8епсу

for Strategic reforms under the President of the Republic of UZbekistan.

НоWечеr, uncertainty remains related to the future developments of geopolitical risks and their impact оп the

есопоmу of Republic of Uzbekistan.
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The management of the Group monitors the current developments in the economic and political environment

and takes the mеаsчrеs it deems necessary to maintain the Sustainability and development of the Group's

business in the near future.


